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Lifestyle International Holdings Limited (together with its subsidiaries,
the “Group”) is a Hong Kong-based retail operator that specializes in the
operation of mid to upper-end department stores in Hong Kong and the
PRC. The Group owns two SOGO stores in Hong Kong including the
flagship store in Causeway Bay (“SOGO CWB”), the largest and leading
department store in Hong Kong, as well as the Tsim Sha Tsui store,
which features a slightly different format that targets a younger group of
customers. Our Shanghai Jiuguang Store was established with a similar
business format to that of our flagship SOGO CWB, and is now widely
recognized as one of the most sought-after shopping locations in
Shanghai.

The Group’s retailer brand names — SOGO and Jiuguang — has become
household names over the years, and enabled the Group and its
management team to develop concrete retail brand building and
management expertise, which is leveraged on to further expand its
business into other cities in China. Suzhou Jiuguang and Dalian
Jiuguang has been gaining traction and delivering satisfactory
performances since their opening in January and May 2009 respectively.
Tianjin Lifestyle Plaza, the Group’s first shopping mall opened in
December 2010 in the PRC, also received encouraging market response.
The Group’s up and coming Shenyang Jiuguang store is scheduled for
launch in 2013. Meanwhile, to further tap the vast potential of the
important Shanghai market and to push ahead with the Group’s long-
term growth plan in China, the Group acquired a plot of land in Zhabei
District in December 2011, which will be developed into a commercial
complex, part of which will be established as its second Shanghai
Jiuguang store, representing a key strategic milestone of the Group to
solidify its presence in the Yangtze River Delta. With the Group’s strong
balance sheet and operating cash flows as well as its unparalleled brand
equity, it is always prepared to take on new investment opportunities to
further fuel its growth momentum in the future.
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Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

]feGO/O//z'ce anofgjrzbczpafgj[ace
O/yjusz'ness

20th Floor, East Point Centre
555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

Porin cz)o al Banker

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Auditors

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Solicitors

Richards Butler
in association with Reed Smith LLP
Sit, Fung, Kwong & Shum
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Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
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Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Cayman) Limited
Butterfield House, 68 Fort Street

P.O. Box 609

Grand Cayman KY1-1107

Cayman Islands

Shbare In / ormalion

Place of listing: Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited
Stock code: 1212
Board lot: 500 shares
Financial year end: 31 December
Share price at 31 December 2011: HK$17.12
Market capitalization at 31 December 2011: HK$28,548 million

Website Address

www.lifestylehk.com.hk
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Financral ]fzyé /zyé ls
BHHER

O/o eralin g SResulls 85345

HK’000 T-#:7T 2010 2009 2008 2007

9,832,734 8,399,095 7,674,699 6,780,518
4,317,465 3,756,208 3,521,633 3,112,368
1,896,256 1,498,442 1,324,637 1,241,953
1,407,534 1,142,468 927,226 1,024,085
83.9 68.5 54.5 60.2
33.7 28.0 24.0 24.0

Sales proceeds & # fi 15 3K IH

Turnover % 2658

Profit before taxation BRHB i ]

Net profit %7

Basic earnings per share (HK cents) % B 554 2 A (A5Al1)
Total dividends per share (HK cents) 4 i 8 4858 (#s 1)

for the year ended 31st December #% + = =+—H ILFE

Turnover Srowth &EFHME

CAGR 13.32%

5,000 FE AN ER

5,132

4,317

4,000

3,000

2,000

1,000

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
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HK$ Million
T
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500

2007

CAGR 14.67%

FEGHERER

3,000

2010 2011

2011 Sales Froceeds yjy TMarbet! —F——F4H B8] 4> 2 8158 T {5 2108

Hong Kong
it

Sales Proceeds Growth in Hong Kong
T U L TR RIS =R

+23.1%

e Market leader
AT A S A

e High customer loyalty
R 25 S aURE

China
H

Sales Proceeds Growth in China

R ZETS 8 15 T AT s I =

+21.2%

e Future growth driver
ARAIERT) )
e Expansion in good progress
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2011 Hlilestones
ES SRS

Sep s

Secured HK$5 billion 5-year
loan facility from a syndicate of banks
MEAS 508U TT T AF U SR I3 B

Noov +-

SOGO CWB raked in all-time high
sales on the first day of Thankful
Week event of HK$79.9 million

P SRV S5 65 R TG R B E H
£ 79,900,000 #5 JC 2 Hr =

Nov+-

Awarded “Best Management Team' of
2011 Golden Bauhinia Awards
BT —— SR BE)

[ B A P [ B 48T
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Acquired a plot of land in Zhabei District,
Shanghai, home to the Group’s second
Shanghai Jiuguang store

S ARAF AL g 1 L e ) — B 3
AT 25 8 55 W B g A5

Niceties of
[orfe

CDQC += A

Awarded “The Most Investment
Potential Company’ by

Capital and Capital Weekly Magazine
BAECEARRETE) L

CEARZH Y [ B B POE A A2 | 4818
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“Ma vie et mon
style a Jiuguang”
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Lau Luen-hung, Thomas %%
Managing Director A8 457

For years, Lifestyle International has been following a set of business
strategies that are prudent yet proactive, visionary yet viable. With the
comprehensive insight and dedication of the management team, the
Group has always been able to maintain a sharp focus on its business
objectives and strive for growth. From a solid beginning anchored on a
single department store in Causeway Bay, Hong Kong, the Group has
grown to become a well-known retail operator with solid business
operations in various regions across China, including Shanghai, Suzhou,
Dalian and Tianjin. Today, Sogo and Jiuguang are household names that
represent the preferred shopping destinations for customers of different
nationalities and from all walks of life.

As a well-established industry leader in its hometown, Lifestyle
International has witnessed ups and downs of the sector and the
economy over the years. In good times, the Group’s operations
consistently report remarkable growth; when the going gets tough, it is
still able to show its mettle and outshine its industry peers.

The year 2011 was one such year in which Lifestyle International
showed its strength and resilience amid challenges. Despite various
downside risks around the world that affected many economies and
enterprises, the Group managed to keep a steady footing and continued
to deliver a satistactory set of operating results for the year. Its Hong
Kong operations continued to outperform the market average and the
mainland businesses also fared well.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group’s turnover and net
profit respectively increased year-on-year by 18.9% and 34% to
HK$5,132 million and HK$1,886.3 million. Consistent with previous
years, the Board has decided to continue the approximately 40% payout
on earnings and hence recommended payment of a final cash dividend
of HK cents 25.7 per share. Together with the interim dividend of HK
cents 19.2 paid during the year, the total dividends for the whole
financial year 2011 amounted to HK cents 44.9. Over the last seven
years, the Group’s earnings represented a compound annual growth rate
of 24.2%. The strong performance was attributable to the Group’s
well-tuned business strategies and its solid foothold in the Hong Kong
and mainland Chinese retail industries, which consistently enjoyed
tremendous growth during the period.
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Managing Director’s Message (continued) 348 48 Bl (%)

While the European sovereign debt crisis continued to deepen and the
US struggled with its economic woes throughout 2011, China’s economy
remained relatively strong, recording a 9.2% GDP growth. Retail sales of
consumer goods grew by 17.1% year-on-year, a mild slowdown from
18.4% in 2010. In Hong Kong, the general economy was inevitably
affected by the global economic slowdown but the retail industry grew
spectacularly at a rate of 24.8%, the highest in recent decades, thanks to
the stable employment market, positive consumer sentiment, wealth
etfect and the thriving inbound tourism.

During the year, the Group stayed focused on implementing sensible
business strategies, with a view to maintaining a leadership position in
our hometown. We also launched a variety of measures to mitigate the
economic uncertainties and volatilities. Our Hong Kong operations
continued to outperform the sector, with a combined sales revenue
contributing to 21.7% of the gross sales revenue of Hong Kong’s
department store sector.

Our operations in mainland China also stayed on an upward trend
throughout the year. While the Shanghai Jiuguang store saw a
deceleration in terms of year-on-year sales growth, our two younger
stores, namely Suzhou Jiuguang and Dalian Jiuguang, continued to gain
traction. In particular, Suzhou performed in a way that exceeded the
management’s expectations. We are confident of their ability to make
greater contribution to the Group’s profit in future.

The Group’s strategic investment in the Beiren Group has steadily
proved to be a reliable profit generator, which clearly illustrates Lifestyle
International’s ability to identity lucrative opportunities. In 2011, the
Beiren Group recorded sales growth higher than the average in the PRC,
and the profit margin continued to expand.

With many uncertainties still lingering around the European debt crisis
and the recovery of the US and the global economy, the year 2012 looks
set to be even more challenging. Therefore, the management takes a
cautious outlook on the Hong Kong and China economies and their
retail markets in 2012. Nevertheless, there are reasons to be optimistic.
We believe China’s consumer market will continue to grow, amid
continued urbanisation and expansion of the middle class across the
country. As for Hong Kong, the home turf of Lifestyle International, the
management believes the retail market may experience slightly higher
growth compared with mainland China in 2012, given Hong Kong’s
unique position as a shopping paradise that will continue to attract
mainland shoppers. Moreover, the persisting wealth etffect and resilient
demand from local consumers should not be overlooked.

Construction of the Group’s Shenyang store is nearing completion and
the store is set to open in early 2013. Meanwhile, we are pleased to
report that we acquired in December 2011 a plot of land in the bustling
Zhabei District, Shanghai, in order to push ahead with the Group’s
long-term growth plan in China. The site will be developed into a
commercial complex, part of which will be established as our second
Jiuguang store in Shanghai. The move will enable the Group to further
tap the vast potential of the important Shanghai market, and it
represents a key strategic milestone of the Group as it seeks to solidity its
presence in the Yangtze River Delta.
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Leveraging our strong balance sheet and operating cash flow, and our
unparalleled brand equity, we always keep ourselves open to new
investment opportunities and are able to rely on support from banks. In
2011, we secured a HK$5 billion 5-year loan facility from a syndicate of
banks, partly for refinancing the remaining balance of the existing HK$4
billion facility secured in 2006. To establish an alternative financing
channel for itself, in January 2012, the Group placed a debut issue to the
tune of US$350 million with a 5-year tenor that drew an overwhelming
response in the market. Both the Group and the bond have been
assigned a “Baa3” and “BBB-" rating by Moody’s and Fitch. The issuance
not only provided additional funding to the Group but it also marked an
important step in the Group’s corporate development.

Lastly, on behalf of the board, I would like to thank our management
team members and staff for their hard work throughout the year, as well
as our customers, business partners and shareholders for their support.
We shall be grateful for your continuing trust and support in the years
to come.

Lau Luen-hung, Thomas
Managing Director

27 February 2012
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Tarket Qverview

The year 2011 was a year of economic uncertainty, with the recession
alarm bells ringing across the globe, particularly in advanced economies.
At the beginning of the year, there were hopes that the momentum of
the global recovery would continue but the cautious optimism was then
replaced by apprehension as the sovereign debt crisis in Europe
deepened and showed no signs of abating. Meanwhile, the US economy
continued to grapple with its economic woes, and Japan’s struggling
economy was dealt a blow by the earthquake in March. As for emerging
economies, while they outshone their developed-world counterparts in
terms of growth and jobs in 2011, their dynamism was not enough to
counter fears about inflation and shrinking demand from the US and
Europe.

Despite the gloom, China’s economic growth was still relatively strong,
with a 9.2% GDP growth compared with 10.3% the previous year. The
decrease was by and large the desirable result of the Chinese
government’s moves to tighten monetary and credit control and restrain
investment stimuli, lest overheating of the economy should end up in a
hard landing. Retail sales of consumer goods grew 17.1% year-on-year,
a mild slowdown from 18.4% a year ago. Urbanisation, wage growth
and consumption-friendly policy incentives were the factors helping the
double-digit growth.

In Hong Kong, the overall economy was inevitably affected by the global
economic slowdown, with the exports sector bearing the brunt amid
tough external conditions. However, the retail sector grew at a
spectacular rate of 24.8%, the strongest in recent decades, thanks to the
stable employment market, rising consumer confidence and wealth
effect, and the thriving inbound tourism.

Financial Review 2011

Despite all the challenges and elements of fragility plaguing the global
economy, Lifestyle International managed to deliver once again a
shinning set of results for the financial year 2011, thanks to the Group’s
well-tuned business strategies and its solid foothold in the retail markets
of both Hong Kong and mainland China which enjoyed tremendous
growth during the year.

During the year, the Group applied a host of strategies to capture growth
opportunities and seize the retail boom in Hong Kong. Meanwhile, it
made relentless efforts to nurture the brand equity of Jiuguang in China
and ramp up performances of its younger establishments in mainland
China. As a result, the Group’s aggregate sales revenue grew by 22.6%
year-on-year in Hong Kong dollar terms.

The high brand equity of SOGO CWB and SOGO TST, Lifestyle
International’s Hong Kong operations, continued to prove to be a
valuable asset to the Group. Both stores delivered double-digit sales
growth for the year 2011, and their combined sales revenue accounted
for 73.2% of the Group’s total revenue and 21.7% of the gross sales
revenue of Hong Kong’s department store sector.

The Group’s operations in mainland China also delivered healthier and
improving performance. Shanghai Jiuguang was still the biggest profit
contributor to the Group’s mainland business, while business at the
Suzhou Jiuguang and Dalian Jiuguang stores continued to show
improvement.
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Surprises down

every aisle,

7 every corner

7UFHOU€F d[)O/CSd[QS TFOCGGJS

For the year 2011, Lifestyle International’s turnover was up 18.9% from
the previous year with the total sales proceeds (net of VAT), from both
direct and concessionaire sales transactions, surged by 22.6%. Even
contribution from the younger stores in China was coming up strong,
the Group’s Hong Kong operation, especially that of the SOGO CWB,
was the main growth driver.

In terms of sales contribution by geographic segment, the Group’s
operations in Hong Kong and mainland China respectively generated
HK$8,826.7 million and HK$3,225.4 million in sales proceeds,
accounting for 73.2% and 26.8% (2010: 72.9% and 27.1%) of the
Group'’s total sales proceeds.

Cross Troﬁ’/ and Concessionaire Raltes

The Group’s gross profit margin as a percentage of turnover amounted
to 58.5%, compared with 57.5% in 2010. Gross profit reached
HK$2,999.9 million, up 20.9% from HK$2,481.2 million recorded in the
previous year. Average concessionaire rate for the Group was stable at
approximately 22.2% (2010: 22.3%) and the slightly lower blended
concessionaire rate in the current year was a result of better
performances of the relatively lower rate counters, including gold and
jewelry items and luxury accessories.

Ne/ Tro/z'/

Net profit attributable to shareholders for the year amounted to
HK$1,886.3 million, up 34.0% from HK$1,407.5 million of the previous
year. The protfit this year included an one-off realized gain after tax of
HK$125.1 million from the disposal of 90% equity interest in a
subsidiary company that owns an investment property. On a comparable
basis, there was also an one-off gain after non-controlling interests of
HK$68.7 million in 2010 which related to a discount on acquisition of
an associated company. Overall, the Group’s net profit margin after
excluding this one-off gain has improved from 31.0% in 2010 to 34.3%
this year. The margin expansion was partly attributable to the operating
leverage the Group continued to enjoy as well as the narrowing of losses
at the younger stores. The margin improvement was also helped by the
significant increase in share of profit of associates, namely Beiren Group
during the year.
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Sellin g and Distribution Costs

Selling and distribution costs of the Group’s Hong Kong operations
remained relatively stable with the exception of salary and wages costs
which increase, apart from the general wage rise, was mainly
attributable to the payment of discretionary bonuses to reward
management and staff in view of the excellent results of the Group as
well as compensation payment in lieu of leave entitlement. Increase in
selling and distribution costs at our stores in China were rather mild
except again the staff costs and payment of the additional turnover
rental to the property joint venture company. Total selling and
distribution expenses as a percentage of total sales proceeds of the Group
reduced to approximately 8.0% from 8.9% in 2010.

Administrative 6)(/0 enses

The Group’s general administrative expenses remained relatively stable
and the increase during the year was due mainly to payment of
consultancy fees, legal and related fees and expenses in respect of
various projects under study by the Group during the year as well as the
rise in staff costs as mentioned in the selling and distribution costs
section above. Total administrative expenses as a percentage of total
sales proceeds of the Group remained stable at approximately 2.1%
(2010: 2.1%).

(S/a//[ Gosts

Staff costs (excluding directors) increased by 14.7% to approximately
HK$349.7 million during the year as a result of the payment of
discretionary bonuses and leave compensation which to certain extent
may not be recurring. The bonus payment plus leave compensation for
staff this year represented approximately 10% of total staff costs. General
salary and wages increment during the year was approximately 6.7% in
Hong Kong and 15.4% in the PRC which are largely in line with the
market. Total full time headcounts of the Group remained stable at
around 2,400 with just over 950 working in Hong Kong and the rest in
mainland China.

Other Income

The increase in other income this year stemmed mainly from exchange
gains part of which was released upon disposal of the 90% interest of a
subsidiary in the PRC which owns an investment property. Other
increases included additional management fee received at our new
Tianjin Lifestyle Plaza during the year.

Ynvestment Income

Investment income comprises mainly interest income from the Group’s
bank deposits and net investment income, including fair value changes
as well as actual coupon interest receivable, from a portfolio of yield
enhancing financial products consisting of mainly corporate bonds and
other similar fixed income type products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued) 4 2J& i & 47 (4

Finance Gosts

The Group’s total finance costs, consisting of mainly interest expense on
bank loans and other finance charges, increased to HK$57.9 million
(2010: HK$35.8 million) during the year. The increase was a result of
the relatively higher interest cost upon renewal of the loan facility on 30
September 2011 which bears higher interest margin comparing to the
previous loan facility. During the year, approximately HK$11.0 million
of the interest expense has been capitalized as property under
development in respect of the Shenyang Jiuguang store project.

gdfl’ Ua/ae Géanyes on gnoes/men/
Pro perties

The amount this year comprises fair value gain (before tax) in respect of
the Group’s investment properties situated mainly in the PRC as well as
some HK$201.8 million realized gain (before tax) on disposal of the 90%
equity interest in a subsidiary which owns an investment property. The
amount last year represented realized and unrealized revaluation gain
on investment properties in the amount of HK$1.1 million and HK$62.0
million respectively.

Bz'yaz'o@'/y and Financial Resources

As at the end of 2011, the Group was in net cash position. Cash at banks
was approximately HK$7,269.3million (2010: HK$3,760.8 million) with
bank loans at approximately HK$6,623.7 million (2010: HK$3,398.2
million). Of the cash at banks, approximately 78.1% was denominated
in US dollar and HK dollar and 21.9% was denominated in the
renminbi.

Bank loans included a HK dollar-denominated secured 5-year (due in
September 2016) loan facility of HK$5,000 million (fully drawn-down as
at the end of 2011) of which approximately two-third is repayable
semi-annually and the remaining one-third is of a revolver nature. This
loan facility bears interest calculated with reference to the HIBOR. Other
bank loans comprised RMB350 million (equivalent to HK$431.9 million)
project loan bearing interest calculated with reference to the PBOC
lending rate; an unsecured 3-year term loan of RMB290 million
(equivalent to HK$357.9 million) bearing a fixed interest rate, as well as
US$55.9 million (equivalent to HK$434.0 million) US dollar loans
against which certain of the Group’s financial investment are pledged.
Apart from the above, a HK$400 million unsecured loan facility bearing
interest calculated with reference to the HIBOR was drawn for general
working purposes as at the year end.

The returning to net cash position during the year was a result of the
strong operating cash flows and the receipt of the proceeds of
approximately HK$657.7 million from disposal of the 90% interest in a
subsidiary while the capital expenditure requirement was relatively
small. Including the payment of a deposit of RMB493.3 million for the
acquisition of a parcel of land in Zhabei, the Group incurred a total of
approximately HK$975.1 million capital expenditures (2010: HK$216.3
million) during the year. Subsequent to 31 December 2011 in January
2012, the Group also issued a 5-year US$350 million unsecured fixed
rate US dollar bond for financing the Group’s department store projects
in the PRC, bearing interest at 5.25% per annum.
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As at 31 December 2011, the Group’s certain leasehold land and
buildings in Hong Kong with a carrying value of approximately
HK$1,502.9 million (2010: HK$1,547.3 million), together with certain
shares of the Company’s subsidiaries, had been pledged to secure the
HK$5,000 million (2010: HK$4,000 million) banking facility granted to
the Group of which HK$5,000 million (2010: HK$4,000 million) has
been utilised. In addition, certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment in the PRC and the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss with carrying values of approximately HK$1,489.3
million (2010: HK$1,500.8 million) and HK$465.9 million (2010:
HK$154.4 million) respectively had been pledged to secure loan facilities
in the amount of approximately RMB350 million (2010: RMB390
million) and US$55.9 million (equivalent to HK$434.0 million) (2010:
US$20 million) respectively.

Keview of Op eralions

With management’s solid industry experience and vision, the Group
stayed focused on implementing sensible business strategies during the
year, steering the Group to record another year of strong results amidst
uncertainties and volatilities, at home and abroad.

HONG KONG

SOGO CWB

As with past years, SOGO CWB contributed to the Group the biggest
share in terms of both revenue and profit in 2011. As a pointer to the
general economic health of Hong Kong, the store performed largely in
line with the general retail market and once again outperformed its
department store peers. For the whole of 2011, SOGO CWB'’s revenue
expanded by 23.2% year-on-year, with exceptionally high growth
occurring in both the second and third quarter. On the whole, the sales
growth of the store was mainly driven by a 16.8% increase in ticket size
and an uptick of nearly 2 percentage points of the stay-buy ratio, with
the traffic footfall remained fairly constant.

During the “Thankful Week” events in May and November, the store
once again delivered remarkable results. The event in November charted
new records, with the first day raking in an all-time high of HK$79.9
million sales, up 16.2% year-on-year. Together, the two events
generated some HK$1,059.9 million in sales, which represented a 25.2%
year-on-year growth. Indeed, the “Thankful Week” event has become a
talk-of-the-town event for local and mainland shoppers in recent years.

SOGO TST

Having established its position as a competent industry player with a
good track record, SOGO TST is today on a par with SOGO CWB in
terms of its ability to deliver consistent growth and positive results. As a
widely popular shopping destination in Kowloon, SOGO TST recorded a
22.5% increase in total sales revenue in 2011. The rise was largely
attributable to an upsurge in tourist arrivals in the area. Stay-buy ratio
increased to 16.4% from 15.6% while total daily traffic footfall remained
steady at 29,000. During the year, we continued with our etforts to
refine our product mix and brought in a host of new up-market brands
which helped improve the average ticket size.
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MAINLAND CHINA

SHANGHAI JIUGUANG

As one of the most preferred shopping locations in Shanghai, our
Shanghai Jiuguang remained on a growth path throughout the year,
with sales takings grew 7.8% in local currency term from the previous
year. Average ticket size showed an uptick of 14.8% and stay-and-buy
ratio was steady at 43%.

Positioned as a mid-to-high end shopping destination, Shanghai
Jiuguang caters to the increasingly sophisticated taste of consumers and
their demand for discretionary and luxury goods. Its high brand equity
and diverse merchandise mix form the basis of its sound business
portfolio.

During the first four months of the year, Shanghai Jiuguang thrived on
the growth momentum carried forward from 2010. In May, however,
growth of business began to slow down gradually due mainly to
dampened consumer sentiment brought about by credit tightening and
economic uncertainties abroad. In addition, as part of the plan to
upgrade the store, the store’s supermarket floor underwent large-scale
renovation in the fourth quarter which inevitably led to a drop in traffic
footfall. As soon as the renovation work completed and the floor fully
reopened in December, the traffic picked up notably.

SUZHOU JIUGUANG

Efforts in ramping up performance of the Suzhou Jiuguang started to
bear fruits in 2011. In full operation for nearly two years, Suzhou
Jiuguang delivered satisfactory performance in 2011 as the store
continued to grow in popularity and gradually established a persistent
growth trend. Net sales revenue rose 51.2% year-on-year with average
daily traffic footfall increased steadily to 14,200 from 12,200 in the
previous year. For the year 2011 as a whole, this young store has
achieved meaningful positive EBITDA with significant reduction in the
loss from operations.

We have learnt from government officials that trial operation of the
city’s first metro line is set for end of April 2012 and it is expected that
this metro line will benefit our Suzhou Jiuguang by bringing up more
traffic flow and hence revenue when it becomes fully operational.

DALIAN JIUGUANG

Dalian Jiuguang, a store in Northern China launched into operation in
May 2009, managed to deliver a steady performance in 2011. Net sales
amount was up 24.4% from 2010. Leveraging on its prime location and
Jiuguang’s brand equity, the store is gradually gaining local recognition,
as evidenced by the improvement in daily traffic footfall from 5,300 to
5,800. The management remains positive about Dalian Jiuguang’s future
growth. For the full year, it has also achieved positive EBITDA.

TIANJIN LIFESTYLE PLAZA

Located at the teeming Binjiang Road and positioned as a trendy
shopping destination, this 11-storey Lifestyle Plaza, opened a year ago,
offers a vast array of brands and a diverse product mix catering to young
shoppers. The Group has been focusing on building up the traffic footfall
through various promotion and marketing schemes. These efforts are set
to continue in the year to come.
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Ynterests in Assocrates

Performance of the Group’s investment in Hebei, namely the Beiren
Group, continued to shine in 2011. During the year, Beiren Group
recorded an approximate 34.3% year-on-year increase in sales revenue
and on the whole, the Beiren investment contributed approximately
HK$221.9 million in profit (before non-controlling interest) to Lifestyle
International in 2011, compared with HK$100.6 million in 2010.
Including a new shopping complex opened in October 2011 in Baoding,
a city in Hebei, Beiren Group currently operates a total of approximately
780,000 square meters of floor space that comprises 12 department
stores, 22 supermarkets and various outlets specializing in electric
appliances, consumer electronic products and jewellery.

axpansion in Mainland China

The Group’s Shenyang Jiuguang store project, located at the well-known
pedestrian walk of Zhongjie Lu, is progressing according to plan and is
scheduled for opening in 2013.

To continue its expansion plan, the Group acquired on 13 December
2011 a plot of land in the transportation hub and upcoming area of
Zhabei District, Shanghai, at a consideration of RMB2,467 million. The
acquisition was made with an attempt to tap the vast potential of retail
market in Shanghai bolstered by the rising number of affluent
consumers. With a site area of over 50,000 square metres, the site will
be developed into a commercial complex, including a Jiuguang
department store. The Group will be the sole party to carry out the
project, which means the site will be developed in a way that fits the
specific needs of the Group’s department store business and other retail
business requirements and other amenities. Upon completion in around
2016, the project is expected to enable the Group to further broaden its
presence in the important Shanghai market.
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Qutlook and Future Trospecfs

The year 2012 looks set to be even more challenging than 2011, with
many open questions about the prospect of the global economy. For
now at least, it remains a matter of conjecture as to when the debt crisis
in Europe will be over and whether the US economy will be able to
continue staying on its recovery track. For China and Hong Kong, the
downside risk together with the domestic challenges in these markets
may further undermine the economic growth.

Nevertheless, we believe one needs not be overly pessimistic. China
should be able to avoid a hard landing and domestic demand will remain
relatively strong. Meanwhile, continued urbanisation and expansion of
the Chinese middle class population are key factors that will prop up the
domestic demand. The Chinese government’s 12th Five-Year Programme
is expected to continue pushing the ongoing process of rebalancing from
export-led growth to domestic demand-driven expansion. Here in our
home turf Hong Kong, inflation is said to have peaked in the fourth
quarter last year, and the number of mainland visitors should continue
to grow. Local consumption will remain strong so long as the
employment rate remains stable and the wealth effect persists. On the
whole, management takes a cautiously optimistic view regarding the
retail markets in China and Hong Kong and believes Hong Kong retail
may once again experience slightly stronger year-on-year growth than
its counterpart in China in 2012.

Into 2012, the Group has already geared up itself to tackle challenges in
the year to come and at the same time to capture growth opportunities
through a host of sound and sensible business strategies. We will take
full advantage of our vigorous financial position and strong brand equity,
with the ultimate aim of bringing greater returns to our shareholders.
We will carefully monitor market developments and roll out well-
planned and innovative marketing and promotion programs for our
operations at the right time, so as to foster growth and safeguard our
market-leadership position.

As we continue to keeping ourselves open to new strategic investment
opportunities, much effort will go into launching the Shenyang Jiuguang
store in accordance with the scheduled timetable and at the same time,
we will finalize the development plan of our newly acquired project in
Zhabei, Shanghai.
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and Practices

The Board of Directors (“Board”) and management of the Company are
committed to maintaining good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The Company adopts the corporate governance principles as
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and focus
on a quality Board, sound internal controls, and transparency and
accountability to all stakeholders.

Code Gomp[z'ance

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2011, except code provision
E.1.2.

Code provision E.1.2 requires that the chairman of the Board should
attend the Company’s annual general meeting and that the chairmen of
the Company’s audit and remuneration committees should be available
to answer questions at the Company’s annual general meeting. Due to
other business engagements, Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-tung, the Chairman of
the Board, and Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon, Chairman of the Audit
Committee, were unable to attend the 2011 annual general meeting of
the Company.

Tbhe Board

(1) Board Composition
As at the date of this report, the Board consists of a total of ten
Directors, including two Executive Directors, four Non-executive
Directors and four Independent Non-executive Directors. More
than one-third of the Board is represented by Independent Non-
executive Directors with one of whom being a certitied public
accountant. The Board believes that the balance between
Executive and Non-executive Directors is reasonable and adequate
to provide sufficient checks and balances that safeguard the
interests of shareholders and the Company. Each Director has
different professional qualification and knowledge and industry
experience and expertise, which enable them to make valuable
and diversified advice and guidance to the Group’s business
activities and development.

Details of the composition of the Board are set out in the
“Corporate Information” section to this Annual Report. The
Directors’ biographies, including the relationships among the
Directors are set out in the “Profile of Directors” to this Annual
Report.

The independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors is
assessed according to the relevant rules and requirements under
the Listing Rules. The Company has received written confirmation
of independence from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors and the Company is of the view that all Independent
Non-executive Directors meet the independence guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and are therefore
independent.
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(2)

3)

Chairman and Managing Director (2)
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for setting the overall
strategic plan and development of the Group whereas the
Managing Director is responsible, in addition to assisting in setting
the Group’s strategic plan, for implementing the Board’s decisions,
monitoring and supervising the Group’s overall performance,
ensuring adequate capital and managerial resources are available
to implement the business strategies being adopted from time to
time, setting out and monitoring targets, plans and direction for
senior management, reporting to the Board on the Group’s
performance and proposing business plans and strategies for
further evaluation and assessment of the Board.

The positions of the Chairman of the Board and the Managing
Director are currently held by two different individuals for the
purpose of ensuring an effective segregation of duties and a
balance of power and authority.

Responsibilities (3)
The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective
manner. The Board steers and oversees the management of the
Company including, establishing strategic direction and setting
long-term objectives for the Company, monitoring performance of
senior management, protecting and maximizing the interests of
the Company and its shareholders, and reviewing, considering and
approving and the subsequent reviewing and monitoring of the
annual budget against actual performances and results. The Board
has delegated senior management, under the leadership of the
Managing Director, with authorities and responsibilities for the
day-to-day operations and administration of the Group.

Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and in the best
interests of the Company. The Directors are aware of their
collective and individual responsibilities to the Company and all
stakeholders in respect of the manner in which the affairs of the
Company are being controlled and managed.

Directors are required to make declaration of their direct or
indirect interests, if any, in any proposals or transactions to be
considered by the Board. If a Director has a potential conflict of
interest in a matter to be considered by the Board which the Board
has determined to be material, the matter will be dealt with in
accordance with applicable rules and regulations and, if
appropriate, an independent Board committee will be set up to
deal with the matter.

All Directors have full access to and are provided with adequate,
reliable and timely information about the operations and latest
development of the Group to enable them to discharge their
responsibilities and make timely decision. Information and analysis
of the Company can be accessed directly through briefing and
reporting by the Executive Directors and senior management
during regular board meetings. Through the Company Secretary,
independent professional advices, at the expense of the Company,
could be sought should such advice be considered necessary by
any Director for carrying out his/her duties properly.
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(4) Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board as a whole is responsible for the appointment of
Directors. Under the Company’s Articles of Association, the Board
may from time to time appoint a Director either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any such new Director
shall hold office until the next following general meeting of the
Company (in the case of filling a casual vacancy) or until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company (in the case of
an addition to the Board) and shall then be eligible for re-election
at the same general meeting.

All Directors (including Non-executive Directors) are subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years and are

subject to re-election in accordance with the Company’s Articles of

Association and the Code.

(5) Board Meetings and Directors” Attendance

The Board meets regularly and held four meetings during the year

ended 31 December 2011 to review among other things quarterly
operating performance of the Group, approve the Group’s interim
and final results announcements and financial statements and to
recommend or declare dividends.

Board members attended the Company’s board meeting either in
person or through telephone conferencing means in accordance
with provision in the Company’s Articles of Association. During
the year, Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas, The Hon. Shek Lai-him,
Abraham, Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon and Mr. Hui Chiu-chung,
Stephen attended all the four regular board meetings; Ms. Lau
Yuk-wai, Amy and Mr. Cheung Yuet-man, Raymond attended
three of the said four meetings; Mr. Doo Wai-hoi, William
attended two of the said four meetings; Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-tung
and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry attended one of the said four
meetings; while Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Joseph did not attend any of
the said four meetings.

(6) Practices and Conduct of Board and Board
Committee Meetings
The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the proper
convening and conducting of the Board and Board Committee
meetings, with the relevant notices, agenda and Board and Board
Committee papers being provided to the Directors and relevant
Board Committee members in a timely manner before the
meetings.

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping minutes of all
Board and Board Committee meetings. Board and Board
Committee minutes are available for the inspection by Directors
and Board Committee members.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions in the shares of the Company.

In response to a specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors
confirmed that they complied with the requirements of the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2011.
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Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility for overseeing the
preparation of the financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2011. The Directors ensure that the financial statements of
the Group are prepared so as to give a true and fair view of the Group’s
state of affairs, the results and cash flows for the year, and on a going
concern basis in accordance with the statutory requirements and
applicable accounting and financial reporting standards.

The Directors also ensure timely publication of the Group’s financial
statements and aims to present a clear, balanced and understandable
assessment of the Group’s performance and position through all its
publications and communications to the public and is aware of the
requirements under the applicable rules and regulations about timely
disclosure of price-sensitive information.

The statement by the auditors of the Company regarding its reporting
responsibilities and opinion on the financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2011 is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” to this Annual Report. The Board has taken steps to
ensure the continued objectivity and independence of the external
auditors. For the year ended 31 December 2011, the external auditors of
the Company received approximately HK$4.2 million for audit services
provided to the Group.

Doard CGommittees

As at the date of this report, there were three Board Committees,
namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee in operation and each one of them was
established with specific terms of references to assist the Board in
discharging it responsibilities.

(1) Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely, Mr. Lam
Siu-lun, Simon, Mr. Cheung Yuet-man, Raymond, The Hon. Shek
Lai-him, Abraham and Mr. Hui Chiu-chung, Stephen, all are
Independent Non-executive Directors. None of them is, or has
previously been, the partner of the Company’s current or previous
external auditors. The Audit Committee is chaired by Mr. Lam Siu-
lun, Simon, who is a certified public accountant. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its
responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, which follow
closely the guidelines of the code provisions of the Code, are
available from the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

1. considers the service and appointment of the Company’s
external auditors, nature and scope of auditing, and the
related audit fee;

2. reviews and approves changes in accounting policies and
practices, to review effectiveness of the financial reporting
system and process and its compliance with applicable
accounting standards, the Listing Rules and legal
requirements;
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(2)

3. oversees adequacy of the Group’s financial reporting process,
internal control procedures and risk management system;

4. considers and discusses audit findings directly with external
auditors;
5. assists the Board in overseeing the proper preparation of the

Group’s financial statements and annual reports; and

6.  performs the corporate governance duties as set out in the
Code.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2011 with all committee members attended both
meetings. In the meetings, the Audit Committee (i) reviewed and
discussed with the external auditors on the Group’s financial
statements before they were submitted to the Board for
consideration and approval and (ii) reviewed the external auditors’
audit findings. No material issues have been reported to the Board
by the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December 2011.

On 23 February 2012, the Audit Committee met to review the
Group’s audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2011 (“2011 Consolidated Financial
Statements”), including the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, with the Company’s external auditors. The
Audit Committee recommended the 2011 Consolidated Financial
Statements for the approval of the Board.

The Audit Committee also recommended to the Board the re-
appointment of Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as the
Company’s external auditors for the year ending 31 December
2012 and that the related resolution shall be put forth for
shareholders’ consideration and approval at the 2012 annual
general meeting.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee members comprise as majority
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam
Siu-lun, Simon, The Hon. Shek Lai-him, Abraham and Mr. Hui
Chiu-chung, Stephen, and one Executive Director, Mr. Lau Luen-
hung, Thomas, who is the Managing Director and the Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. In the board meeting held on 27
February 2012, the Board has appointed Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon
to act as the chairman. The Remuneration Committee is provided
with sufficient resources to discharge its responsibilities.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee setting out
the committee’s authority and duties, which follow closely the
requirements of the Code Provisions of the Code and are available
from the Company’s website.

The principal role of the Remuneration Committee is to provide
advice and recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
package of Directors and senior management, on any specific
remuneration package with reference to market conditions,
performance of the Group and the individuals against preset goals
and targets as set by the Board from time to time, and if necessary,
on any compensation policy for termination of office of Directors
or senior management.

(2)
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The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2011, with all committee members attended
the meeting. In the meeting, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed and recommended the remuneration package of
Directors and senior management.

(3) Nomination Committee
In the board meeting held on 27 February 2012, the Board has
established the Nomination Committee. The Nomination
Committee members comprise as majority three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon, who is the
Chairman of the Nomination Committee, The Hon. Shek Lai-him,
Abraham and Mr. Hui Chiu-chung, Stephen, and one Executive
Director, Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee setting out
the committee’s authority and duties, which follow closely the
requirements of the Code Provisions of the Code and are available
from the Company’s website.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

1. reviews the structure, size and composition (including skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at lease annually
and makes recommendations on any proposed changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

2. identifies individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selects or makes recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships;

3.  assesses the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors; and

4.  makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors, in particular the chairman and the chief executive.

Directors’ and O /I'cers’ Lrabilities

Ynsurance and nafemni/y

To indemnify Directors and officers of the Company against all costs,
charges, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by them in the
execution of and discharge of their duties or in relation thereto, the
Company has arranged insurance cover for this purpose.
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YInternal CGontrol Framework

1)

(2)

Internal Controls

The Board acknowledges its responsibility in maintaining a sound
and effective system of internal control for the Group to safeguard
interests of stakeholders and assets of the Company at all times.

The Group’s system of internal control which includes a defined
management structure with limits of authority is designed to help
the achievement of business objectives, safeguard assets against
unauthorised use or disposition, ensure the maintenance of proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use or for external publication, and ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations. The system is
designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss and to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the operational systems for the achievement of
the Group’s objectives.

Management has conducted regular reviews during the year on
the effectiveness of the internal control system covering all
material factors related to financial, operational and compliance
controls, various functions for risk management and physical and
information systems security. The Audit Committee had been
reported during Audit Committee meetings of key findings
identified by the Company’s external auditors and discussed
findings and actions or measures taken in addressing those findings
relating to the Group’s internal controls. No material issues on the
system of internal control have been identified during the year
ended 31 December 2011 which required significant rectification
works.

The Board has, working in conjunction with senior management,
conducted an annual review on plans and progress for continuous
improvement work of the internal control system of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit team is responsible for conducting
regular review of the Group’s internal control procedures,
including accounting system and operational procedures, and will
make recommendations to the relevant department management
for necessary actions. The management considers the present work
arrangement of the internal audit functions is effective having
taking into account the current organizational structure, lines of
responsibility, authority of the management team and the risks
associated with the operations of the Group. The senior
management and Audit Committee reviews and monitors closely
the works of the team and are committed to strengthening the
functions of the Group’s internal auditing team. In addition to its
agreed scheduled work, the internal audit team may conduct other
review and investigative work of the Group’s business on an ad
hoc basis when it is required.
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Commitment to 7ra123/0 arenc

The Board emphasizes in creating and maintaining a high level of
transparency through timely disclosure of relevant information on the
Group’s business and activities to the shareholders, investors, media and
investment public, through regular press releases, analysis’s briefings,
press conferences, as well as timely updating of the Company’s website.
Our Executive Director and senior management, who look after the
business operations, are committed to response to enquiries from
regulators, stakeholders and business partners.

Ynvestors’ Kelations and
Communication with Sharebolders

The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in
building successful relationships with its stakeholders. The Company
always seeks to provide relevant information to existing and potential
investors, not only to comply with the different requirements in force
but also to enhance transparency and communications with shareholders
and the investing public. This is part of a continuous communication
program that encompasses meetings and relevant announcements to the
market in addition to periodic written reports in the form of preliminary
announcement of results and interim and annual reports.

The Company also maintains a corporate website on which
comprehensive information about the Group is made available. Regular
meetings are also held with institutional investors and research analysts
to provide them with timely updates on the Group’s latest business
developments which are of non-price sensitive nature. These activities
keep the public informed of the Group’s activities and fosters effective
communications.

The Group also participated in investment conferences and forums
during the year in order to enhance the awareness of the investing
public of the Group’s business operations, development and strategies.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is fully compliant with
disclosure obligations stipulated under the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential
investors have an equal opportunity to receive and obtain externally
available information released by the Group.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas (BA, MBA)

Managing Director

Mr. Lau, aged 57, joined the Company in January 2004. He is the
Managing Director of the Company who leads and manages the whole
Group. He is responsible for setting and implementing policies and
strategies, and monitoring results and targets of the operations of the
Group. Mr. Lau is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee of
the Company. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor degree and a Master degree of
Business Administration. Mr. Lau is also a member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference Shanghai Committee and a
member of the Board of Directors of Shanghai Jiao Tong University. He
is the younger brother of Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Joseph and Ms. Lau
Yuk-wai, Amy.

Mr. Doo Wai-hoi, William (JP)

Mr. Doo, aged 67, joined the Company in March 2005. He is the Vice-
Chairman of New World China Land Limited, the Deputy Chairman of
NWS Holdings Limited, and an independent non-executive director of
The Bank of East Asia, Limited and Shanghai Industrial Urban
Development Group Limited. All the companies mentioned above are
listed companies. Mr. Doo also acts as a director of New World Hotels
(Holdings) Limited and Fung Seng Diamond Company Limited. He has
been serving as a Governor of the Canadian Chamber of Commerce in
Hong Kong since 1995. In addition, Mr. Doo is a Member of the
Standing Committee of the Eleventh Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference in Shanghai, and the Convener of the Shanghai
Committee in Hong Kong and Macau. He has been appointed as the
Honorary Consul of the Kingdom of Morocco in Hong Kong since June
2005. Mr. Doo is the son-in-law of Dato” Dr. Cheng Yu-tung and
brother-in-law of Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry.

Non-executive Directors

Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-tung (DPMS, LLD(Hon), DBA(Hon),
DSSC(Hon), GBM)

Chairman

Dato’ Dr. Cheng, aged 86, joined the Company in March 2004. Dato’ Dr.
Cheng is also the Honorary Chairman and Non-executive Director of
Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited, the Chairman of New World
Development Company Limited and Melbourne Enterprises Limited, a
non-executive director of Shun Tak Holdings Limited and SJM Holdings
Limited, all being listed companies, the Chairman of Chow Tai Fook
Enterprises Limited, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited and
New World Hotels (Holdings) Limited, and a director of Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings) Limited and Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited
(formerly known as Centennial Success Limited). Dato” Dr. Cheng was
awarded Grand Bauhinia Medal by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in 2008. Dato” Dr. Cheng is the father of
Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry and the father-in-law of Mr. Doo Wai-hoi,
William.
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Non-executive Directors (continued)

Dr. Cheng Kar-shun (BA, MBA, DBA (Hon),

LLD(Hon), GBS)

Dr. Cheng, aged 65, joined the Company in March 2004. Dr. Cheng is
also the Chairman and Executive Director of Chow Tai Fook Jewellery
Group Limited, the Managing Director of New World Development
Company Limited, the Chairman and Managing Director of New World
China Land Limited, the Chairman of NWS Holdings Limited, the
Chairman and Non-executive Director of New World Department Store
China Limited, the Chairman of International Entertainment
Corporation, and an Independent Non-executive Director of HKR
International Limited. All the companies mentioned above are listed
companies. Dr. Cheng is also a director of Chow Tai Fook Enterprises
Limited, Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited, Cheng Yu Tung
Family (Holdings) Limited and Chow Tai Fook (Holding) Limited
(formerly known as Centennial Success Limited) and the Managing
Director of New World Hotels (Holdings) Limited. Dr. Cheng is a
Standing Committee Member of the Eleventh Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of The People’s Republic of China. He was
awarded the Gold Bauhinia Star by the Government of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region in 2001. Dr. Cheng is the son of Dato’ Dr.
Cheng Yu-tung and the brother-in-law of Mr. Doo Wai-hoi, William.

Ms. Lau Yuk-wai, Amy

Ms. Lau, aged 58, joined the Company in March 2004. Ms. Lau holds a
Bachelor Degree of Science and a Doctor Degree of Dental Surgery from
the University of Toronto, Canada. She is a practicing dentist registered
with the Royal College of Dental Surgeons of Ontario, Canada. She is
also a non-executive director of Chinese Estates Holdings Limited, a
Hong Kong listed company. Ms. Lau is the sister of Mr. Lau Luen-hung,
Thomas and Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Joseph.

Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Joseph

Mr. Lau, aged 60, joined the Company in March 2004. Mr. Lau is the
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Chinese Estates Holdings
Limited, a Hong Kong listed company. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree
of Science from the University of Windsor, Canada. He has over 36 years
of experience in corporate finance, manufacturing and property
investment and development. Mr. Lau is the elder brother of Mr. Lau
Luen-hung, Thomas and Ms. Lau Yuk-wai, Amy.

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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\gbd%peno@n/fN%n~execuhbe Directors

Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon (BA, ACA, FTIHK)

Mr. Lam, aged 62, joined the Company in March 2004. Mr. Lam
graduated from the University of Hong Kong in 1973. After graduation,
he worked at KPMG Peat Marwick London and Hong Kong and obtained
his qualification as a Certified Public Accountant from HKICPA in 1979.
Mr. Lam has been a practicing accountant for over 22 years and is the
proprietor of Messrs. S.L. Lam & Company. He has served as a member
of the Insider Dealing Tribunal on a number of occasions. He is an
independent non-executive director of Le Saunda Holdings Limited and
Kiu Hung Energy Holdings Limited, both are listed companies.

Mr. Cheung Yuet-man, Raymond

Mr. Cheung, aged 57, joined the Company in March 2004. Mr. Cheung
is an entrepreneur and has over 19 years of experience in the textile and
garment manufacturing industries and has over 18 years of experience
in property investment.

The Hon. Shek Lai-him, Abraham (BA, DIP. ED., JP)

Mr. Shek, aged 66, joined the Company in March 2004. Mr. Shek
obtained his Bachelor degree of Arts in 1969 and has extensive
experience in the property development field. He is a member of the
Legislative Council for the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
(the “HKSAR”) representing real estate and construction functional
constituency since 2000. Mr. Shek is a member of the Court of each of
The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology and The University
of Hong Kong. Mr. Shek is a director of The Hong Kong Mortgage
Corporation Limited and an independent non-executive director of MTR
Corporation Limited, Midas International Holdings Limited, Paliburg
Holdings Limited, NWS Holdings Limited, Chuang’s Consortium
International Limited, Chuang’s China Investments Limited (also acts as
Chairman), ITC Corporation Limited, ITC Properties Group Limited (also
acts as Vice Chairman), Titan Petrochemicals Group Limited, Country
Garden Holdings Company Limited, Hsin Chong Construction Group
Limited, Hop Hing Group Holdings Limited, SJM Holdings Limited,
Kosmopolito Hotels International Limited and China Resources Cement
Holdings Limited, all being listed companies. He is also an independent
non-executive director of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited (the
manager of Champion Real Estate Investment Trust) and Regal Portfolio
Management Limited (the manager of Regal Real Estate Investment
Trust), both are being listed. Mr. Shek was awarded the Silver Bauhinia
Star by the Government of the HKSAR in 2007.

P sr IR AT E R
IS (BA, ACA, FTIHK)
MAEEBAF 625 » A FRIAEZ A IMEALNT o
MAEER— UL ZFAEFHERERER - M
T Vs S A R S P AR SRR — UL LA
HEWUE WS G TR A S ERR 2 YL G Rl B A - Mok
AR TR 22 4F > 3l 2 MR IR g il
BT E o 450 2 RIEAE NS5 B A - 1
1 R 2 42 [ A B 2 A) A I e R IR FRA W 2
B IEATE S (Rl AR S EHTAAE) -

3V e

WS EBUAE 57 i R E A= INBEA R -
RSB RIS AT I 19 AF AT S A B SR
5 K0 18 M) SEBCE KL -

it B (BA, DIP. ED. - K- F#i1)

A BT 66 % > i ZFEF A=A AN o
BREATR— NIV SO LB > iR
07 T AT MR AR o A Sl A A R I AT L I ST ik
R E AR R AR E o REFEBREHE K
Y &N L) Y= Rl = S B R L7 oK
FKAMRAFES  WATBEKARAR - BEg
[ B PR W)~ ORI R B A R A~ BB AR
EARAT -~ ELEEEPBEAERAR -~ LR
G RRA ) (GEAT E ) ~ MpE B E A RA A -
A Ml AR AT BR AN /] (GRAT I E ) ~ A iesE
A PR 7]~ R P A BR AN T~ HT B e AR
PR F) A B A PR F) P TR 4
RS A~ TENLIY 5 A A PR A S 2 K R4
HRRAF BB IEAATE S > 5255 A AR 357
FWHZ G LT - B EREEEE (ER) f/
FRAF (EEEEGETNERAN) MEEEn Ty
PR (B2 S b BN ) ST IE AT 7
PG TR B B s BT Ll o A B R 2007 R4
A Y R AT IS A ISR A R R AL 7 o

MRR BRI A RAT B ——EER



Profile of Directors (continued) # = fili /- (4%)

gnafepenofen/ Non-executive Directors

/ continued, /

Mr. Hui Chiu-chung, Stephen (JP)

Mr. Hui aged 64, joined the Company in July 2005. He is the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of Luk Fook Financial Services Limited, has
40 years of experience in the securities and investment industry. He had
for years been serving as a Council Member and Vice Chairman of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, a member of the Advisory
Committee of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission,
director of the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited, a
member of the Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, an appointed member of the Securities and Futures
Appeal Tribunal, a member of Standing Committee on Company Law
Reform, a member of the Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts
of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission and also an
appointed member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Investigation Panel A. Mr. Hui was appointed by the
Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the Peace in 2004 and was also
an appointed member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee of the
Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in 2006. He is at
present a member of Government “Appointees” (independent member)
of Appeal Panel of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Hui
also serves as an Independent Non-executive director of the Hong Kong
Exchanges and Clearing Limited, Jiuzhou Development Company
Limited, Chun Wo Development Holdings Limited, Frasers Property
(China) Limited, China South City Holdings Limited and Non-executive
director of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Directors’ (J?e/oor/
TEeREST

The Directors of the Company present their annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2011.

Prin cip al Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the operation of “lifestyle”
department stores and other retailing format and property holding in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Particulars of the Company’s principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 47 to the financial statements.

Kesults and %pproprz'a/fons

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 62.

An interim dividend of HK cents 19.20 per share was paid during the
Year. The Directors have recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK cents 25.70 in cash per share to the shareholders
whose names appear on the Register of Members of the Company on
30 April 2012. Total cash dividend amounting to HK cents 44.90 per
share for the Year.

Fixed Assets

Details of the movements during the year in the investment
properties and property, plant and equipment of the Group are set
out in notes 18 and 19 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Gapz’/a/

Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 35 to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Report (continued) 5% € #t i # (%)

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas (Managing Director)
Mr. Doo Wai-hoi, William

Non-executive Directors:
Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-tung (Chairman)
Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry

Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Joseph

Ms. Lau Yuk-wai, Amy

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lam Siu-lun, Simon

Mr. Cheung Yuet-man, Raymond

The Hon. Shek Lai-him, Abraham

Mr. Hui Chiu-chung, Stephen

In accordance with Article 87 of the Articles of the Company, Mr.
Doo Wai-hoi, William, Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Joseph, Mr. Lam Siu-
lun, Simon and Mr. Hui Chiu-chung, Stephen shall retire by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each Non-executive Director and Independent
Non-executive Director is appointed for a specific term of one year
and is subject to retirement and re-election at annual general
meeting in accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas (“Mr. Lau”) and Mr. Doo Wai-hoi,
William (“Mr. Doo”), both Executive Directors, has a service contract
with the Company for the period from 1 April 2010 to 31 March
2013 and 2 March 2011 to 1 March 2014 respectively in respect of
their respective directorships. The three-year term under Mr. Doo’s
service contract expired on 1 March 2011 and as no prior
termination notice was served by either party, the service contract of
Mr. Doo has already been automatically renewed for another term of
three years commencing from 2 March 2011 pursuant to the terms
thereof. There is no specific clause in both service contracts providing
for the amount of compensation in case of early termination of
office.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Directors’ and Géz'e/

Executive’s

Interests in Shares and @/nofer[yiny

CSAG[‘GS

As at 31 December 2011, the Directors” and the chief executive’s
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and

Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) as recorded in the register required to be

kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock

Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors of Listed Issuers are set out

below:

(i) Long positions in the issued shares of the

Company

AT BRI By B AR B A
3 2 W 4t

REE T A= RERGE SR X & )
5352 MeHUE M A7 < B RC AT AT 8% > BRI ey
WD) 1) A2 ) B A s g 28 2 B AT B ) ([ 32 B 1) 4%
R o 25T 2 G FAT B AR AT IAS 2 W) B I
B e A7 (2l 2 T 3 B e 190 365 XV 8 B 3R ) A e
i NP SR

(i) AA/FCHEITBMHZEE

Approximate percentage of

Number of interest in the issued share
ordinary shares capital of the Company
Name of Director Nature of interest of the Company (Note 3)
A A vl C B AT R A
AN 2 BB MR Z BRI 4 1L
HHLEA HE 2 PEE JR A g H (HH3E3)
Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Thomas Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 1,080,000,000 64.77%
(“Mr. Thomas Lau”) A AR (MERE 1)
Bl
Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2) 57,230,000 3.43%
ZRERI A RIS (W3E2)
Beneficial owner 65,250,000 3.91%
it TN
Notes: BiFE
1. Real Reward Limited (“Real Reward”), which is jointly owned by United 1. tH United Goal Resources Limited ([United Goall) % Go
Goal Resources Limited (“United Goal”) and Go Create Limited (“Go Create Limited ([ Go Create]) 3t [7] *F ¥ # i Z Real
Create”) in equal shares, holds 1,080,000,000 shares. United Goal is Reward Limited ([ Real Reward |) #47 1,080,000,000 it ©
ultimately owned by Mr. Thomas Lau and a family trust with certain United Goal H1 %1885 56 A Jo & VoG 32 3 A\ 0 5 88 i ol
family members of Mr. Lau Luen-hung, Joseph (“Mr. Joseph Lau”) as (TBIBRME Sk 1) 25 F FR B 2 KRG iE A BT - R
eligible beneficiaries. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is deemed to PRI BB > B8 58 A AR AF 1 Real Reward FF
be interested in the 1,080,000,000 shares held by Real Reward. $#1,080,000,000 I i HE4
2. Dynamic Castle Limited (“Dynamic Castle”), which is wholly-owned by 2. i %) %k 4 & & # A7 Z Dynamic Castle Limited
Mr. Thomas Lau, holds 57,230,000 shares. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. (IDynamic Castle )) 47 57,230,000 [ © #5538 %5 K0 £
Thomas Lau is deemed to be interested in the 57,230,000 shares held by e ) B 8 6 S A& i #fF R Dynamic Castle iF £
Dynamic Castle. 57,230,000 i AT HE S -
3. As at 31 December 2011, the issued share capital of the Company was 3. RoF——F A= ARFZEBEITIRA L

HK$8,337,567.5 divided into 1,667,513,500 shares of HK$0.005 each.

8,337,567.5Ws I » 4F [ 1,667,513,500 i 1 I 1 {E0.005
I By
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Directors’ and Géz'efaxeca/iue’s

N AT BRI By B AR B

Ynterests in Shares and Wnofer[yiny 13 2 P25 ()
CSAGZ‘QS /Con/I}zueJ/
(ii) Long position in the underlying shares of the (i) Ao FIRH B B Ay 2 5 AT — I HE

Company — share options

Number of underlying shares
of the Company (Note)

Name of Director Nature of interest

Approximate percentage
of interest in the

issued share capital

of the Company

AR 23 v AT AR
w4 HE 25 1 H AT Z B B H (ML) REdE 2 MEAIH 43 b
Mr. Thomas Lau Beneficial owner 17,020,000 1.02%
BIERGSEE Ha A A
Note: Please refer to the details set out in the section headed “Details of Options BEGE = RERERE S TR AR T IR HE 2 RN ) — 0 o

Granted by the Company”.

(iii) Long position in the underlying shares of the

Company — Euro Medium Term Note

Number of underlying shares
of the Company (Note)

Name of Director Nature of interest

(i) A R BB 0 2 4 A — Bk IS R

Approximate percentage
of interest in the

issued share capital

of the Company

A A ) AT A RE SR 2
EHA B 25 1 AL W Z AH B B H (B ) MEAIE 4 b
Mr. Thomas Lau Beneficial owner 804,733 0.05%
LlE i shtas Haifia A

Note: As at 31 December 2011, Mr. Thomas Lau held a Euro Medium Term Note
with a notional amount of USD2,000,000 and a maturity date on 23
September 2013 (subject to early redemption). The redemption amount
on maturity date will be determined by reference to the final share price
of the worst performing stock of the basket of stocks which includes the
Company. In the event where Mr. Lau elects to receive the redemption
amount on maturity date in the Company’s shares in lieu of cash, the
number of share, calculated using the exchange rate on 29 June 2011
(date of transaction) and the contracted strike price, will be approximately
804,733 shares.
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HoZ—AE = BIEEeER — R
T ZAESUA T = A B AT A ) S R R 2
2,000,000 3 JT 2 B T U SR o i B H 2 6] K
— TS (R PR AR A ) R B 2 2 IR R
JRATIGE o 25 315 H 7 310 HOSEFR IO A 24 W] R 571 IF B
GAE SRR A > G FE—— AN A TR (B2
HO) 2 08 38 T 43 49 b i AT I 8 &t O B I Ay
804,733 A B ©



Directors’ and Géz'e/éjxecu/jue’s
Ynterests in Shares and @/nofer[yiny

cSéares /con/inueaf/

(iv) Long positions in associated corporations

S AT AR By SRR B %
1y 2 HE %5 (a0

(iv) AR 2 A

Total number Percentage
Name of Director = Name of associated corporation Nature of interest of shares held of interest
3 34 WG 0 1 4 1 HE %3 2 il 4 M A 4 REfR 4 1L
Mr. Thomas Lau Real Reward Interest in controlled 1 50%
Blae e corporation (Note 1)
ZHEGIA AR R (BET)
Crystal Key Investment Limited Interest in controlled 1 100%
corporation (Note 2)
ZREH A w S (B RE 2)
Grandville Venture Corp. Interest in controlled 50,000 100%
corporation (Note 2)
ZREH A R (BaE 2)
Global Centre Investments Limited Interest in controlled 1 100%
corporation (Note 2)
SZPER A R (B3E 2)
Leeson Limited Interest in controlled 1 100%
EEARAR corporation (Note 2)
ZYEGIA AR R (BT 2)
Wise Ocean Limited Interest in controlled 1 100%
A RA corporation (Note 2)
ZRER A e (BaE 2)
Notes: W -
1. United Goal is ultimately owned by Mr. Thomas Lau and a family trust 1. United Goal#47 Real Reward 50% fff i » fi th %
with certain family members of Mr. Joseph Lau as eligible beneficiaries, A R VG 2 g N T B SR e A T R R 2 B T
has 50% interest in Real Reward. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau is TRAHEAT o MRIRRE IR BN SR - 8830 S A4 W AE
deemed to be interested in the one share in Real Reward. Real Reward — B e fy sP AT HE 45 o
2. United Goal is ultimately owned by Mr. Thomas Lau and a family trust 2. United Goal #E47 Real Reward 50% i & » 3lf fly %)% g

with certain family members of Mr. Joseph Lau as eligible beneficiaries,
has 50% interest in Real Reward. Crystal Key Investment Limited,
Grandville Venture Corp., Global Centre Investments Limited, Leeson
Limited and Wise Ocean Limited are, either direct or indirect, wholly-
owned subsidiaries of Real Reward. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Thomas Lau
is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Real Reward in Crystal
Key Investment Limited, Grandville Venture Corp., Global Centre
Investments Limited, Leeson Limited and Wise Ocean Limited.

Saved for those disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, none
of the Directors or chief executive had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO.

A R R 2 g N T BB S A T R R R 2 F A FE
J #HEAT © Crystal Key Investment Limited * Grandville
Venture Corp. * Global Centre Investments Limited ~
R AT PR W) AP AT R A W) 45 Real Reward B o ) 1 4
LB 2 A o MU E S R ) > BB SR BRI
Real Reward f£ Crystal Key Investment Limited -
Grandville Venture Corp. * Global Centre Investments
Limited ~ BE5 A RS a) BAR A FR A W5 A3 2 B oh
s o

B bl higg F5h - R F—— T+ =1
H > HRARCRE I3 B ) 5 0 910 58 352 e 38 7 T 4 47
e MR Re ek o AR AT (T 3 8 s R A FAT U
BRACAS S T wCHAT: (] A B 125 P (et 2 B 1 B 0
VSR XV ERIT FE ) BBy - AT B0y ul A e
A A R A SR o

3 ] AT PR ]
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Ynterests of Substantial
Stharebolders

As at 31 December 2011, the following persons (other than a
Director or the chief executive of the Company) had an interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange are set
out below:

Long positions in the shares and the underlying
shares of the Company

2 B A

AR AZF 0 FIAL (RUFES
SR AT ER) ARIECGE S SO BB 336 AT
THAE 2 e M A2 8, > Sl A9 28 7] R 5 BT a8t 1)
FAN > AN ) 2 AR KA B 073 (4528 5 S 301 B A6 4] )
55XV ST AR ) T A JE T P 2 RE A R RE AR
Bl

A i) JBe Ay B R B e Ay 2 e AT

Approximate

percentage of interest

in the issued share capital
of the Company

Name of Shareholder Nature of interest and capacity Number of shares (Note 4)
AR A F B8 1T
JBe A 1 4
ZHHEMIL
Jbe 3 44 RESTEE R S5 Bty B H (B5E4)
Real Reward Beneficial owner (Note 1) 1,080,000,000 64.77%
Hai A A (k)
United Goal Interest in controlled 1,080,000,000 64.77%
corporation (Note 2)
S PEH 2 IR (B RE2)
Asia Prime Assets Limited Interest in controlled 1,080,000,000 64.77%
(“Asia Prime”) corporation (Note 2)
PN 2 AR (B 5T 2)
Go Create Interest in controlled 1,080,000,000 64.77%
corporation (Note 3)
SREH 2 mIHERR (B RE3)
Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Interest in controlled 1,080,000,000 64.77%
Limited (“CTF Enterprises”) corporation (Note 3)
SRR AR SYER A AR (FERE3)
(M AR AEAZED
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Ynterests of Substantial
Shareholders (continued)

Long positions in the shares and the underlying
shares of the Company (continued)
Notes:

1. Real Reward is a company jointly owned by United Goal and Go Create in equal
shares. United Goal is ultimately owned by Mr. Thomas Lau and a family trust
with certain family members of Mr. Joseph Lau as eligible beneficiaries. Go Create
is wholly owned by CTF Enterprises of which family members of Dato” Dr. Cheng
Yu-tung have controlling interests. Mr. Thomas Lau, Mr. Joseph Lau and Dr.
Cheng Kar-shun, Henry, being Directors, are also directors of Real Reward.

2. Asia Prime, a company wholly owned by Mr. Thomas Lau, holds more than
one-third of the entire issued share capital of United Goal, a 50% shareholder of
Real Reward. By virtue of the SFO, Asia Prime and United Goal are deemed to be
interested in the 1,080,000,000 shares held by Real Reward. Mr. Thomas Lau and
Mr. Joseph Lau, being Directors, are directors of United Goal and Mr. Thomas Lau
is also the sole director of Asia Prime.

3. Go Create is wholly owned by CTF Enterprises of which family members of Dato’
Dr. Cheng Yu-tung have controlling interests, has 50% interest in Real Reward.
By virtue of the SFO, CTF Enterprises and Go Create are deemed to be interested
in the 1,080,000,000 shares held by Real Reward. Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-tung and
Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry, being Directors, are directors of CTF Enterprises and
Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry is also a director of Go Create.

4. As at 31 December 2011, the issued share capital of the Company was
HK$8,337,567.5 divided into 1,667,513,500 shares of HK$0.005 each.

Save for those disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, no other
persons had any interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

A A A ()

AR 2 7 B A5 BRI IR 2 4 A (A)
Wi

1. Real Reward 1 United Goal 52 Go Create 3% [i] - ¥ # 47 - United
Goal H BIBRIE 5o A4 Jo B B Z 1 N By BB SE AR 5 TR IRRR 2
FIEAT s AR © Go Create 1 AR 2 G HEA - TR FIH
(A S a3 VLN E R Rl Sl i kbl o
P IfE ok MO S A8 /b Real Reward Z 5 -

2. Asia Prime i #8805 S0 £ 2 & HEA - HFFA United Goal & %
ATIAS K8 = 4> 2 — > T United Goal /%547 Real Reward 50%
it Z A o MR S K B 5 B > Asia Prime % United Goal B{#i
J4 i Real Reward JiT .2 1,080,000,000 i H He # HE 2 o # 5 28
106 S8 AR I B8R ifE 5 A £ United Goal Z ¥ 5 - 1 %1 8208 Y6 A4 IR /%
Asia Prime Mf— 2 # 5 -

3. Go Create H1 &5 BAA 1 1 2 G0 A B A IR 2 2 JR R AR 4
2 EHEH © Go Create & Real Reward #EA 50% #E i o MRIEH %
B > FIRAE A3 K Go Create B /4 /7% Real Reward #7747
Z.1,080,000,000 i FHHEAHESR o HE 4GB MU I A+ RO A AL
TRARE R #EE - MPREMAE LIRS Go Create L H#EH -

4. R FE AT A S H s AR R Z CBTIRAS8,337,567.5
WIT > 4345 1,667,513,500 AR HI{E 0.005 7T 2 B -

Br Bt gR 50 > RS =1 iRE
CRET5 B R 690D 55 3 3 6 IR TG /7 2 SR rC A A 8%
R AT AT N AR AR 2% ) B P53 B AR B e 003 o 0 A A ]
HEIRA -

FABB A A T =%t 41
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Share O tion Schemes

(1)

42

The 2004 Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “2004 Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted for a period of 10 years commencing 27
March 2004 pursuant to a written resolution of the sole
shareholder as incentive or rewards for the contribution of the
eligible participants to the Group.

Under the 2004 Share Option Scheme, the Company may
grant options to (i) any full-time employee of the Company or
of any subsidiary; (ii) directors (including non-executive
directors and independent non-executive directors) of the
Company or any subsidiary; (iii) advisors and consultants to
the Company or to any subsidiary in the areas of technical,
financial legal or corporate managerial who, at the sole
determination of the board of Directors of the Company (the
“Board”), have contributed to the Company and/or any
subsidiary (the assessment criteria of which are (a) contribution
to the development and performance of the Company and/or
subsidiary; (b) quality of work performed for the Company
and/or any subsidiary; (c) initiative and commitment in
performing his/her duties; and (d) length of service or
contribution to the Company and/or any subsidiary).

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2004 Share Option Scheme and any other
scheme of the Company is not permitted to exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the date of the
commencement of dealings in the shares on the Stock
Exchange, being 144,000,000 shares of HK$0.005 each after
the share subdivision in 2007. Since termination of the 2004
Share Option Scheme had been conditionally confirmed and
approved in an extraordinary general meeting held on 3 March
2009, no further options will be offered under the 2004 Share
Option Scheme, but all options granted prior to such
termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the 2004 Share Option Scheme.

The number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of
which options granted and may be granted to any individual in
any one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of
the Company in issue, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. Options granted to substantial
shareholders, Independent Non-executive Directors, or any of
their respective associates (including a trustee of a discretionary
trust of which they or any of their family interests are
discretionary objects) in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share
capital and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be
also approved by the Company’s shareholders.

i Rib g ]
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Share Op/z'ozz Schemes (continued)

()

(ii)

The 2004 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit
specified in the offer letter (which shall not be later than 5 days
from the date of offer), upon payment of HK$1 per option.
Options may be exercised at any time during a period
commencing on or after the date on which the option is
accepted and deemed to be granted and expiring on a date to
be notified by the Board to each grantee which shall not be
more than 10 years from the date on which the option is
accepted and deemed to be granted. The exercise price is
determined by the Directors of the Company, and will not be
less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s
shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing price of the
shares for the tive business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
share.

The 2009 Share Option Scheme

The adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2009 Share
Option Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the
Company in an extraordinary general meeting held on 3
March 2009 for a period of 10 years commencing from 3
March 2009 as incentive or rewards for the contribution of the
eligible participants to the growth of the Group and to provide
to the Group with a more flexible means to reward,
remunerate, compensate and/or provide benetfits to the eligible
participants.

Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme, the Company may
grant options to (a) any full-time or part-time employee of the
Company and/or any subsidiary; (b) any Director (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
director) of the Company and/or any subsidiary; and (c) any
consultant or adviser (whether professional or otherwise and
whether on an employment or contractual or honorary basis
or otherwise and whether paid or unpaid), distributor,
contractor, supplier, service provider, agent, customer and
business partner of the Company and/or any subsidiary who,
at the sole determination of the Board, have contributed or will
contribute to the Company and/or any subsidiary.

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for
which an option must be held or the performance targets
which must be achieved before an option can be exercised
under the terms of the 2009 Share Option Scheme. However,
the Board may offer to grant any options subject to such terms
and conditions in relation to the minimum period of the
options to be held and/or the performance targets to be
achieved before such options can be exercised and/or any other
terms as the Board may determine in its absolute discretion.

R RE ST ) ()

()

(i)

R F VAR REET B (4)
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Share Op/z'ozz Schemes (continued)

(i)

44

The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options which may be granted under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 166,860,950 shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at 3 March 2009, the date on which the 2009 Share Option
Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Company,
which represented approximately 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of this report.

Unless otherwise approved by the shareholders, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the issued share capital of the Company.

Where options are proposed to be granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, and the
proposed grant of options will result in the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant representing
in aggregate over 0.1% of the issued share capital of the
Company on the date of offer and having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such grant of options must be
subject to the approval of the shareholders taken on a poll at
general meeting. The connected person involved in such
proposed grant of options and all other connected persons of
the Company must abstain from voting in such general
meeting (except that any connected person may vote against
the proposed grant provided that his intention to do so has
been stated in the relevant circular to the shareholders).

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit
specified in the offer letter (which shall not be later than 5 days
from the date of offer), upon payment of HK$1 on acceptance
of the offer. Options may be exercised at any time during a
period to be notified by the Board to each grantee which shall
not be more than 10 years from the date of the offer. The
exercise price is determined by the Directors of the Company,
and will be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the
Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s share.
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GOIIZ/O dﬁy
As at 31 December 2011, options to subscribe for an aggregate of
28,565,000 shares of the Company granted to a Director (as disclosed

above) and certain full-time employees pursuant to the Scheme

AL FI A% T W I HE 2 w1

MoE A A= 1 SO R > AN
FARTE R B 1 — 4 T LA T AR BT n] AR
4 4£28,565,000 A2 w4 HL i R AT 2 1 A T

remained outstanding, details of which were as follows: TR -
Number of share options
i I H
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised  Lapsed Cancelled as at Subscription
1 January during during during during 31 December price per
Date of grant 2011 theyear theyear theyear the year 2011  Option period share
R4 BB
—HA—H +ZA=E+—H
B"YHM WAL ENET O ERTE FRKRE FRGEE FARTTHE B 15 R W
Director
H
Mr. Thomas Lau 31/08/2007 17,020,000 —_ — —_ — 17,020,000  01/10/2008 - HK$18.50
BIBRG S 26/03/2014 18.50 17T
(Note 2)
(HH&E2)
Employees 07/10/2005 694,000 —  (100,000) - - 594,000  07/10/2006 — HK$6.16
e B 26/03/2014 6.16 7T
(Note 1)
(D)
02/02/2009 15,107,000 — (3,916,000)  (240,000) — 10,951,000  07/02/2010 — HK$6.40
26/03/2014 6.40#7C
(Notes 3 & 4)
(W33 Ked)
Total 32,821,000 — (4,016,000)  (240,000) — 28,565,000
At

MR BRI A RAT B4R
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Gomp any (continued)

Notes:

46

FRE -

The options, granted on 7 October 2005, are exercisable from 7 October 2006 to 1.
26 March 2014 (both days inclusive) in the following manner:
(i) up to 40% of the total number of options granted under the Scheme

commencing 7 October 2006;
(ii) up to 70% of the total number of options granted under the Scheme

commencing 7 October 2007; and
(iii) up to 100% of the total number of options granted under the Scheme

commencing 7 October 2008.
The options, granted on 31 August 2007, are exercisable from 1 October 2008 to 2.

26 March 2014 (both days inclusive) in the following manner:

(i) up to 40% of the total number of options granted under the Scheme
commencing 1 October 2008;

(ii) up to 70% of the total number of options granted under the Scheme
commencing 1 October 2009; and

(ifi)  up to 100% of the total number of options granted under the Scheme
commencing 1 October 2010.

On 3 March 2009, the outstanding options previously granted to employees of the 3.
Group on 31 August 2007 (which entitled such employees to subscribe for an

aggregate of 20,400,000 shares) were cancelled and replaced by new options

granted by the Company entitling them to subscribe for the same number of

shares at an exercise price of HK$6.40 per share (the “2009 Employee Options”).

The 2009 Employee Options are exercisable from 7 February 2010 to 26 March

2014 (both days inclusive) in the following manner:

(i) up to 40% of the total number of options granted under the Scheme
commencing 7 February 2010;

(ii) up to 70% of the total number of options granted under the Scheme
commencing 7 February 2011; and

(iii) up to 100% of the total number of options granted under the Scheme
commencing 7 February 2012.
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Detarls 0/ Op/z'ons gran/eofgy the
Gompany (continued)

Notes: (continued)
4. According to the Black-Scholes pricing model (the “Model”), the fair value of the

options granted in 2009 was estimated at HK$19.9 million. The variables used in
the model were as follows:

Exercise price HK$6.40
Share price on HKS$5.53 closing price on 3 March 2009
grant date
as defined in
accordance
with HKFRS 2
Expected volatility 55.26% historical volatility of the
Company'’s share price over
previous years
Expected life 1.5-3.5 years based on management’s best
estimation, taking into account
non-transferability, exercise
restrictions and other behavioural
considerations
Risk-free rate 0.57-1.27% reference to yield of Exchange
Fund Notes in accordance with
expected life of the option
Expected dividend 4.34% based on historical dividend yield

yield of the shares of yield the Company
over 12-month period

This Model was developed to estimate the fair value of publicly
traded options that have no vesting restriction and are fully
transferable. As the Company’s share options have
characteristics significantly different from those traded options,
and the value of the share options varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions, any change in the
variables so used may materially affect the estimation of the
fair value of the share options.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares

or Debentures

Other than as disclosed under the section “Details of options granted
by the Company”, at no time during the year was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries, a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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Directors’ Report (continued) 5% € #t i # (%)

Directors’ Interests in (jonfracﬁsq/‘
<5{7n40bance

Other than as disclosed under the section “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, no contracts of significance to which the Company, its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether

directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.

Cbn/ﬁnuhy’Cbnnecﬁ%/SGansachbns

The following transactions of the Group constituted non-exempt
continuing connected transactions (“Continuing Connected
Transactions”) for the Company during the financial year ended 31
December 2011 under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”):

(1) Shanghai Ongoing Department Store’s tenancy
agreement
On 26 November 2004, the Group’s 65% owned Shanghai
Ongoing Department Store Limited (“Shanghai Ongoing”)
entered into a tenancy agreement with the Group’s 50%
owned L JUE T FR/A ] (“CityPlaza Co”) in respect
of the lease of the entire building of Shanghai Joinbuy
CityPlaza (“Joinbuy CityPlaza”) of approximately 92,000
square metres (“sq.m.”), for a period of 20 years commencing
from 1 October 2004 (“Tenancy Agreement”), at a basic annual
rental of RMB125 million, with adjustment for additional
rental at the rate of 3.5% on the amount over and above the
annual turnover of RMB1,500 million generated from the sales
at the whole Joinbuy CityPlaza. Management fee was on a cost
incurred basis.

The Tenancy Agreement was arranged for the leasing of the
retailing space as necessary for the operation of the Group’s
Shanghai Jiuguang Department Store (“Shanghai Jiuguang
Store”).

During the year, a total of RMB194.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$234.2 million) rental and management fee
was paid by Shanghai Ongoing to Cityplaza Co. under the
Tenancy Agreement.

The Group’s 65% owned Shanghai Ongoing is owned as to 5%
by EiILA (GEHE) AR (“Joinbuy Group”) and 30% by
LA B A R/ ] (“Joinbuy Co”). The Group’s 50%
owned Cityplaza Co is owned as to 12% by Joinbuy Group and
38% by Joinbuy Co. Joinbuy Group is the controlling
shareholder of Joinbuy Co. Thus, Joinbuy Group and Joinbuy
Co, being substantial shareholders of Shanghai Ongoing, are
connected persons of the Company. In view of Joinbuy Group
and Joinbuy Co have substantial equity interest in Cityplaza
Co, Cityplaza Co is an associate of Joinbuy Group and a
connected person of the Company. Thus, the transaction under
the Tenancy Agreement constituted a continuing connected
transaction for the Company.
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Contin uz'ny Connected Transactions FrEEBEAE 5 om0

/ continued, /
(2) Leasing of the premises for the Sogo Tsimshatsui  (2) RPWHENREWEME
Store

On 24 February 2005, the Group’s 100% owned Sogo Hong
Kong Company Limited (“Sogo HK”) entered into a lease
agreement as tenant with Hong Kong Island Development
Limited (“HK Island”) as landlord for the leasing of portion of
ground floor, portion of podium 1 and the entire podium 2 of
The Amazon at No. 12 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, Kowloon
to Sogo HK for a term of 15 years commencing from 30
September 2005 (“Lease”), at a turnover rent based on sales
generating within the leasing premises at a rate of 6% for the
Ist to the 10th year and 7% for the 11th to the 15th year.

The Lease was negotiated as at an arm’s length with general
commercial terms. This leased premise is occupied by the
Group for its necessary operation of the Tsimshatsui lifestyle
department store in Kowloon side.

During the year, a total of HK$61,626,000 rental, management
fee and other charges was paid by Sogo HK to HK Island under
the lease.

HK Island is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of New
World Development Company Limited. Go Create Limited, a
company wholly-owned by Chow Tai Fook Enterprises Limited
(“CTF Enterprises”), is directly interested in 50% of Real
Reward Limited (“Real Reward”), the direct controlling
shareholder of the Company. By virtue of its indirect
shareholding in the Company, CTF Enterprises is a connected
person of the Company. As an associate of CTF Enterprises, HK
Island is a connected person of the Company. Therefore, the
transaction under the Lease constituted a continuing connected
transaction for the Company.
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Con/z'nuz'ny Gonnected Transactions
/con/z'nueJ/

3)

S0

Watches Dealership Agreement at the Suzhou
Jiuguang Store

On 22 September 2009, the Group’s 100% owned Ongoing
(Suzhou) Department Store Limited (“Suzhou Ongoing”)
entered into a dealership agreement with Ji KAEERE £17 (F%
) A PR T (“CTE Suzhou”) for a consignment arrangement
of a retailing counter of approximately 590.1 sq.m. on the first
floor of Suzhou Jiuguang Department Store (“Suzhou Jiuguang
Store”) for selling watches for a period commencing from 29
April 2009 to 28 February 2012 (“Suzhou Watches
Consignment”). Under the arrangement, Suzhou Ongoing
would receive a monthly commission charging on certain
percentages of the gross turnover at the said counter subject to
a minimum monthly commission of RMB147,525,
RMB177,030 and RMB236,040 for the respective years. On 30
August 2011, Suzhou Ongoing, CTF Suzhou and T & J& K 1 i
F 88 A PR A L4372\ (“CTF Shanghai Branch”) entered
into an agreement to assign all the rights, responsibilities and
liabilities of CTF Suzhou under the Suzhou Watches
Consignment to CTF Shanghai Branch with effect from 1
August 2011 (the “Suzhou Watches Assignment”).

The Suzhou Watches Consignment and the Suzhou Watches
Assignment were entered into in the ordinary course of
business of the Group as the merchandises to be sold by CTF
Suzhou in the Suzhou Jiuguang Store can enhance the product
mix and branding of the available merchandises in the Suzhou
Jiuguang Store and fulfil the Group’s customers” demand.

During the year, Suzhou Ongoing received a total of
RMB3,257,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,931,000) for
commission, management fee and other charges from CTF
Suzhou and CTF Shanghai Branch.

As CTF Enterprises is a connected person of the Company and
its associates, CTF Suzhou and CTF Shanghai Branch, are also
deemed to be a connected person of the Company, the
transaction under the Suzhou Watches Consignment and the
Suzhou Watches Assignment constituted a continuing
connected transaction for the Company.

FrEEBHE A 5 )

3)
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/corz/z'nueO//

(4) Jewellery Dealership Agreement at the Shanghai  (4) #0285 SO AR 8 1k

Jiuguang Store

On 22 September 2009, Shanghai Ongoing entered into a
dealership agreement with EIXAEERE &47 (M) FIRAF L
1643/ 7] (“CTF Shanghai”) for the consignment arrangement
of a retailing counter of approximately 96 sq.m. on the second
floor of the Shanghai Jiuguang Store to CTF Shanghai for
exhibiting and selling jewellery under the brand name of
“Chow Tai Fook” for a period of 2 years commencing from 1
September 2009 (“CTF SH 2009 Consignment”). Shanghai
Ongoing would receive a monthly commission charging on
certain percentages of the gross turnover from sales generating
at the said counter subject to a minimum monthly commission
of RMB86,400.

Upon expiry of the CTF SH 2009 Consignment, on 30 August
2011, Shanghai Ongoing entered into another dealership
agreement with CTF Shanghai to continue the consignment
arrangement for a period of 6 months commencing from 1
September 2011 to 29 February 2012 (“CTF SH 2011
Consignment”). Shanghai Ongoing would receive a monthly
commission charging on certain percentages of the gross
turnover from sales generating at the said counter subject to a
minimum monthly commission of RMB86,400.

The CTF SH 2009 Consignment and the CTF SH 2011
Consignment were entered into in the ordinary course of
business of the Group as the merchandises to be sold by CTF
Shanghai in the Shanghai Jiuguang Store can enhance the
product mix and branding of the available merchandises in the
Shanghai Jiuguang Store and fulfil the Group’s customers’
demand.

During the year, Shanghai Ongoing received a total of
RMB3,092,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,732,000)
for commission, management fee and other charges from CTF
Shanghai under the CTF SH 2009 Consignment and the CTF
SH 2011 Consignment.

As CTF Enterprises is a connected person of the Company and
its associate, CTF Shanghali, is also deemed to be a connected
person of the Company, the transaction under the CTF SH
2009 Consignment and the CTF SH 2011 Consignment
constituted a continuing connected transaction for the
Company.
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(5) Watches Dealership Agreement at the Shanghai
Jiuguang Store
On 23 November 2009, Shanghai Ongoing entered into a
dealership agreement with CTF Shanghai for a consignment
arrangement of a retailing counter of approximately 12 sq.m.
on the second floor of the Shanghai Jiuguang Store for selling
watches for a period of 2 years commencing from 25
September 2009 (“Shanghai Watches 2009 Consignment”).
Under the arrangement, Shanghai Ongoing would receive a
monthly commission charging on certain percentages of the
gross turnover at the said counter subject to a minimum
monthly commission of RMB14,400.

Upon expiry of the Shanghai Watches 2009 Consignment, on
30 August 2011, Shanghai Ongoing entered into another
dealership agreement with CTF Shanghai to continue the
consignment arrangement for a period of 6 months
commencing from 1 September 2011 to 29 February 2012
(“Shanghai Watches 2011 Consignment”). Under the
arrangement, Shanghai Ongoing would receive a monthly
commission charging on certain percentages of the gross
turnover at the said counter subject to a minimum monthly
commission of RMB14,400.

The Shanghai Watches 2009 Consignment and Shanghai
Watches 2011 Consignment were entered into in the ordinary
course of business of the Group as the merchandises to be sold
by CTF Shanghai in the Shanghai Jiuguang Store can enhance
the product mix and branding of the available merchandises in
the Shanghai Jiuguang Store and fulfil the Group’s customers’
demand.

During the year, Shanghai Ongoing received a total of
RMB267,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$323,000) for
commission, management fee and other charges from CTF
Shanghai under the Shanghai Watches Consignment.

As CTF Shanghai is a connected person of the Company, the
transaction under the Shanghai Watches 2009 Consignment
and the Shanghai Watches 2011 Consignment constituted a
continuing connected transaction for the Company.

(6) Jewellery Dealership Agreement at the Sogo
CWB Store
On 26 April 2010, Sogo HK entered into a dealership
agreement with Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Company Limited
(“CTF Jewellery”) for a consignment arrangement of a counter
of 1,107.40 square feet on the first floor of the Sogo Causeway
Bay Store (“Sogo CWB Store”) for exhibiting and selling fine
jewellery under the brand name of “Chow Tai Fook” (“Sogo
Jewellery Arrangement”) for a period of two years
commencing from 1 March 2010 to 29 February 2012 (“2010
CTF Consignment”). Sogo HK would receive a monthly
commission charging on certain percentages of the gross
turnover at the said counter subject to an annual minimum
commission of approximately HK$4 million.
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(6)

(7)

Jewellery Dealership Agreement at the Sogo
CWB Store (continued)

During the year, Sogo HK received a total of approximately
HK$25.4 million for commission, management fee and other
charges from CTF Jewellery under the 2010 CTF Consignment.

The 2010 CTF Consignment was entered into in the ordinary
course of business of the Group as the merchandises to be sold
by CTF Jewellery in Sogo CWB Store can enhance the product
mix and branding of the available merchandises in the Sogo
CWRB Store and fulfil the Group’s customers’ demand.

As CTF Enterprises is a connected person of the Company and
its associate, CTF Jewellery, is also deemed to be a connected
person of the Company, the transactions under the 2010 CTF
Consignment constituted continuing connected transactions
for the Company.

Jewellery Dealership Agreement at the Suzhou
Jiuguang Store

On 7 October 2010, Suzhou Ongoing entered into a dealership
agreement with CTF Suzhou for the consignment arrangement
of a retailing counter of approximately 102 sq.m. on the first
floor of the Suzhou Jiuguang Store for selling fine jewellery
under the brand names of “ J&l K 4% ” or “Chow Tai Fook”
(“Suzhou Jewellery Arrangement”) commencing from 1
September 2010 to 31 August 2012 (“2010 Suzhou CTF
Consignment”). Under the agreement, Suzhou Ongoing would
receive a monthly commission charging on certain percentages
of the gross turnover at the said counter subject to a minimum
monthly commission of RMB51,000.

During the year, Suzhou Ongoing received a total of
RMB1,645,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,985,000)
for commission, management fee and other charges from CTF
Suzhou under the 2010 Suzhou CTF Consignment.

The 2010 CTF Consignment was entered into in the ordinary
course of business of the Group as the merchandises to be sold
by CTF Suzhou in the Suzhou Jiuguang Store can enhance the
product mix and branding of the available merchandises in the
Suzhou Jiuguang Store and fulfil the Group’s customers’
demand.

As CTF Suzhou is a connected person of the Company, the
transactions under 2010 Suzhou CTF Consignment constituted
continuing connected transactions for the Company.
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Directors’ Report (continued) 5% € #t i # (%)

Contin uing Gonnected Transactions

/con/z'nueJ/

(8) Jewellery Dealership Agreement at the Dalian
Jiuguang Store
On 7 October 2010, the Group’s 100% owned Lifestyle Plaza
(Dalian) Co., Ltd (“Dalian Lifestyle”) entered into a dealership
agreement with U IRAEIRE 4176 FRA Al (“CTF Beijing”)
for the consignment arrangement of a retailing counter of
approximately 107 sq.m. on the first floor of the Group’s
Dalian Jiuguang Department Store (“Dalian Jiuguang Store”)
to CTF Beijing for selling fine jewellery under the brand names
of “ I XA " or “Chow Tai Fook” for the period commencing
from 2 September 2010 to 31 August 2012 (“Dalian Jewellery
Consignment”). Dalian Lifestyle would receive a monthly
commission charging on certain percentages of the gross
turnover at the said counter subject to a minimum monthly
commission of RMB32,100.

The Dalian Jewellery Consignment was entered into in the
ordinary course of business of the Group as the merchandises
to be sold by CTF Beijing in the Dalian Jiuguang Store can
enhance the product mix and branding of the available
merchandises in the Dalian Jiuguang Store and fulfil the
Group’s customers’ demand.

During the year, Dalian Lifestyle received a total of
RMB1,199,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,447,000) for
commission, management fee and other charges from CTF
Beijing under the Dalian Jewellery Consignment. As CTF
Enterprises is a connected person of the Company and its
associate, CTF Beijing, is also deemed to be a connected person
of the Company, the transaction under the Dalian Jewellery
Consignment constituted a continuing connected transaction
for the Company.

(9) Leasing of the shop at the Tianjin Lifestyle Plaza
On 17 November 2010, the Group’s 100% owned Li Hua Jia
Commercial Building (Tianjin) Co., Ltd (“Tianjin Property Co”)
entered into a tenancy agreement with CTF Beijing in which
Tianjin Property Co agreed to lease a shop of approximately
974 sq.m. on the first floor of the Group’s Tianjin Lifestyle
Plaza (“Tianjin Mall”) to CTF Beijing for selling fine jewellery
under the brand names of “ J&l K A& 7 or “Chow Tai Fook”, gold
and watches for a period of 36 months commencing from 3
December 2010 (“Tenancy”). Tianjin Property Co would
receive a monthly rental charging on certain percentages of the
gross turnover at the said shop subject to a minimum monthly
commission of RMB149,800, RMB224,700 and RMB299,600
for the respective years of the Tenancy.

The Tenancy was entered into in the ordinary course of
business of the Group as the merchandises to be sold by CTF
Beijing in Tianjin Mall can enhance the product mix and
branding of the available merchandises in Tianjin Mall and
fulfil the Group’s customers’ demand.

As CTF Beijing is a connected person of the Company, the

transaction under the Tenancy constituted a continuing
connected transaction for the Company.
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Contin uz'ny Connected Transactions FrEEBEAE 5 om0

/corz/z'nueO//

(10) Framework Agreement (10) HEZ fah ik

On 29 November 2011, the Company entered into a
framework agreement which took effect on 15 December 2011
(the “Effective Date”) for continuing connected transactions
entered into between the Company and Chow Tai Fook
Jewellery Group Limited, an associate of CTF Enterprises (“CTF
Jewellery Group”) (the “Framework Agreement”) for the
purpose of consolidating and governing all existing (including
transactions (3) to (9) above) and future transactions between
members of the Group and members of CTF Jewellery Group
and its subsidiaries (collectively “CTFJ Group”) arising from the
following:

(a) concessionaire arrangements in respect of retailing
counters for the sale of jewellery and watches by CTEJ
Group at properties in Hong Kong and PRC owned by, or
leased to, the Group or at which the Group operates its
business; and

(b) leasing or sub-leasing of premises to members of CTFJ
Group at properties in Hong Kong and PRC which are
owned by, or leased to, the Group

(collectively the “Transactions”).

The Directors consider that the inclusion of jewellery and
watches at “Chow Tai Fook” branded retailing counters in the
stores operated by the Group provides a well mix of products
for the Group’s customers. In view of the strong brand equity
of “Chow Tai Fook”, the Directors consider that it is beneficial
to the Group to continue to enter into the Transactions as the
Transactions have facilitated, and will continue to facilitate, the
operation and growth of the Group’s business. The Directors
are of the view that the Transactions are and will be entered
into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group
and are and will be on normal commercial terms.

As CTF Enterprises is a connected person of the Company and
its associate, CTF Jewellery Group, is also deemed to be a
connected person of the Company, the Framework Agreement
and the transactions contemplated thereunder constitute
continuing connected transactions for the Company.
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Directors’ Report (continued) 5% € #t i # (%)

Con/z'nuz'ny Gonnected Transactions
/con/z'nueJ/

All the Continuing Connected Transactions above have been
reviewed by the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company who have confirmed that for the year ended 31 December
2011 the Continuing Connected Transactions have been entered into
(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company; (ii)
either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Company than terms available to (or from) independent third
parties; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The auditor of the Company has provided a letter to the Board
pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules to confirm that for the
year ended 31 December 2011 the Continuing Connected
Transactions (i) have received approval of the Board of Directors of
the Company; (ii) are in accordance with the pricing policies of the
Company, where applicable; (iii) have been entered into in
accordance with the terms of the agreements governing the
transactions; and (iv) have not exceeded the respective cap amounts
for the year ended 31 December 2011 as set out above in respect of
each of the Continuing Connected Transactions.

Remuneration Folic 'y

The remuneration policy of the Group is set on basis of the
employees’ merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments package of the Directors of the Company are
reviewed and concluded by the Remuneration Committee, with
consideration to the Company’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to

Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out
under the section headed “Share Option Schemes” above.
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Gompe/z'zzy DBusiness Interests 0/ o TR B A

Directors

Save as disclosed below, as at 31 December 2011, none of the PR N X E S N A=+ —H #E
Directors nor their respective associates had any interest in a business 0 % % B 2 Wi 88 ABE MG E fo] 2 DL 2k ) fi BA 4R BT
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, 0T S35 T 4 T e 3 T B R B AT AT RE £

with any business of the Group.

Businesses which are considered to compete or likely
to compete with the businesses of the Group

R s S A S8 I3 0 A 5t T T B R T I S

Nature of Interest
of the Director

Name of Director Name of entity Description of business in the entity
HPWEA B4 SEW A R % R R R T
Cheng Kar Shun, Henry New World Development Equity interest in New World Director
BRR G Company Limited Department Store China #HH
Hi S EE A TR A Limited, which operates
department stores in the
People’ s Republic of China
R A v N R AL K
HEA R Z R &
AR A]
New World Department Operations of department Director
Store China Limited stores in the People’s #HH
AT rp A R A Republic of China
L NGRS e g e = /N
Dato’ Dr. Cheng Yu-Tung New World Development Equity interest in New World Director
EE AR L Company Limited Department Store China #
Bt R R A A A Limited, which operates
department stores in the
People’s Republic of China
TR TE v N R A
HEAR R E &R
AR
As the Board of the Company is independent of the boards of the AN RV E G AL A R SE S o A Bk
above-mentioned entities and none of the above directors is in HR A AR LN S MORE A R A R A

control the Board of the Company, the Group is therefore capable of ~ “FHRHE#ESTHIEH -
carrying on its businesses independently of, and at arm’s length,
from the businesses of these entities.

3 ] AT PR ]
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Directors’ Report (continued) 5% € #t i # (%)

Purchase, Sale or %eo[emp/fon 0/
The Gompany s Securities

During the year, the Company repurchased 15,487,500 ordinary
shares from the market through The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$280 million. The share repurchase was effected
by the Board for the enhancement of shareholders” value and details
of which are as follows:

Total number

B~ VR BB P AR A R IR

FAAAE R > AN F) DL AEARAE 47 280,000,000 7 T 45 i
T A 28 5 0T A RN W) (T 3 9T ) W [ 15,487,500 Jik
WL o RO B )Y A PR R AR 25 o [ RE
EIF -

of ordinary Highest Price Lowest price Aggregate

shares paid per share paid per share consideration

Month of the repurchase repurchased HKS$ HKS$ HK'000
Pt A 4 I dve v 1 JIr A5 4 i d5 A1 £ AT

JE Il H 4 Ji I 5 3 3t 4 WL T T
09/2011 351,500 18.80 17.94 6,425
10/2011 7,488,500 18.44 16.54 131,293
11/2011 6,810,000 19.98 17.18 128,436
12/2011 837,500 17.18 16.64 14,225
15,487,500 19.98 16.54 280,379

All of the shares repurchased during the year were cancelled on
delivery of the share certificates and the nominal value of such
cancelled shares was credited to capital redemption reserve and paid
out from the Company’s retained profits, and the relevant premium
of approximately HK$280,302,000 was paid out from the Company’s
share premium.

Saved as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company during the year.

Pre-em plive %zyé ls

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles although there are no restrictions against such rights under
the laws in the Cayman Islands.

6122 p[ o y ees

As at 31 December 2011, the Group employed a total of 952
employees in Hong Kong and 1,452 employees in the PRC. Staff
costs (excluding directors” emoluments), including employees’ share
option charges of HK$2.5 million (2010: HK$6.2 million), amounted
to HK$349.7 million (2010: HK$304.8 million) for the year. The
Group ensures that the pay levels of its employees are competitive
and in line with market trend and its employees are rewarded on a
performance related basis within the general framework of the
Group’s salary and bonus system. For the year ended 31 December
2011, no share options (2010: nil shares) had been granted to
employees of the Group.
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7/72/'01“ Customers anO/cSup/oﬁ'ers

The Group is principally involved in retail business. The five largest
customers and the tive largest suppliers of the Group accounted for
less than 35% of the Group’s turnover and purchases respectively
during the year.

CSU/?G'cz'en cy 0/ Public Float
Based on information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total

issued share capital was held by the public as of the date of this
report.

Charitable Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$1,349,000 (2010: HK$105,000).

Auditors

The consolidated financial statements for the year have been audited
by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”). A resolution will
be submitted to the annual general meeting to reappoint Deloitte as
auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lau Luen-hung, Thomas
Managing Director

27 February 2012
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gnofepenofen/ Auditor’s f/?epor/
BIBRAREE

Deloitte.
=E)

TO THE MEMBERS OF LIFESTYLE INTERNATIONAL
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Lifestyle
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 62 to 143,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2011, and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with
Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2011
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 February 2012
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Consolidated Statement 0/ Gompreéensiue YIncome

geralkik

for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % — & ——4E+ =] =+—H IF4E)¥

2011 2010
i TR
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B Tt Tt
Turnover -] 7 5,131,950 4,317,465
Cost of sales S A 7 (2,132,077) (1,836,222)
Gross profit EH 2,999,873 2,481,243
Other income HAd A 9 249,898 172,614
Selling and distribution costs P K o3 81 A (962,011) (876,827)
Administrative expenses AT 32 (248,797) (204,659)
Investment income FERA 10 64,301 58,079
Fair value changes on investment properties a2 N TH T
Realised gains on disposals & S B AR 11 203,346 1,128
Unrealised gains 5 B AR 11 94,417 62,026
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity R A — R e [ 2 o) s 23 29,393 24,252
Discount arising on acquisition of additional o i — R B A w1 R AL
interest in an associate HE#5 2E A 2 AT 39 — 114,556
Share of profits of associates R A 7 2 i i ) 22 221,892 99,632
Finance costs FlE AR 12 (57,911) (35,788)
Profit before taxation I3 8 i Vi ) 2,594,401 1,896,256
Taxation B 13 (535,151) (330,410)
Profit for the year A B Vi A 14 2,059,250 1,565,846
Other comprehensive income Hopth 2 T e A
Exchange differences arising on translation W S R A
of foreign operation Pt 197,429 159,428
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal HR A — [T AR 2 ) R R o
of a subsidiary e 5, ft 38 (36,067) —
Share of exchange differences of associates R Wi a5 ) R 5t 2 42,762 20,240
Share of exchange difference of a jointly JREAG — Z L [ P 1 e
controlled entity [ 56, 25 %5 9,753 7,931
Other comprehensive income for the year AR AR JE A A A 213,877 187,599
Total comprehensive income for the year AR A THT A AR 2,273,127 1,753,445
Profit for the year attributable to: AR A AL g )
Owners of the Company E/NEIE 2SN 1,886,301 1,407,534
Non-controlling interests FEFE A 75 172,949 158,312
2,059,250 1,565,846
Total comprehensive income attributable to: JREAG A T A R
Owners of the Company EN/NCIES ZEUN 2,078,382 1,577,723
Non-controlling interests FEPE e 2R 194,745 175,722
2,273,127 1,753,445
Earnings per share (a3 ecn
— basic — FEAR 17 HK$1.1239 HK$0.8392
— diluted — 17 HK$1.1141 HK$0.8340
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SRBRIAEA

at 31 December 2011 jA —&F——44+_H=+—H

2011 2010
R4 TEREAE
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B 31 Tioe Tt
Non-current assets I Ui B
Investment properties [ES-C/E 18 1,147,261 1,609,018
Property, plant and equipment L/ E JF%E& i) 19 3,985,972 3,815,144
Prepaid lease payments TEAS AL B BRI 20 1,373,133 1,334,765
Long-term deposits paid BRI 21 631,214 3,083
Interests in associates E"E’%“ NGILG R 22 2,039,839 1,348,828
Interest in a jointly controlled entity ] 42 o] B B RE i 23 486,089 467,929
Club debenture @F)ﬂf# 12,737 12,737
9,676,245 8,591,504
Current assets L)
Inventories oty 24 71,949 61,611
Prepaid lease payments TR K 20 22,715 21,721
Trade and other receivables TEUIR &ﬁ{ﬂz}ﬁq&z%’(ﬁ 25 326,673 214,012
Amount due from a jointly controlled entity JHE Wi — 5% 3 ] 2 7l ‘ﬁ@fk 26 69,899 —
Financial assets at fair value through N B W ~E
profit or loss SR 27 1,144,574 786,370
Bank balances and cash SATH AT Bl 28 7,269,294 3,760,829
8,905,104 4,844,543
Assets classified as held for sale YRR E 29 — 436,909
8,905,104 5,281,452
Current liabilities ) A 6
Trade and other payables JREAST R R L A JRE A 30 2,078,733 2,009,463
Amount due to a jointly controlled entity JRE A — 5 3 [i] 2 o) B O 26 — 29,934
Tax payable JRESIBLIE 262,877 166,742
Bank borrowings — due within one year SRATIE & — —4F N E 31 2,693,114 2,985,200
Derivative financial liabilities A A R 32 14,333 —
5,049,057 5,191,339
Current assets less current liabilities B WO B A 3,856,047 90,113
Total assets less current liabilities HHE WO B A 13,532,292 8,681,617
Non-current liabilities FE B A A
Bank borrowings — due after one year SRATIE & — — 4R E 31 3,930,620 413,000
Deferred tax liabilities R AERLTE B fE 33 220,595 198,576
Amount due to a non-controlling JREAST R A W) — 44 TR HE A
shareholder of subsidiaries JBEHR 2 K 34 174,379 166,987
4,325,594 778,563
9,206,698 7,903,054
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) ##& B %k ¥t # (41)

at 31 December 2011 A —F——F+_H=+—H

2011 2010
R4 R
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & SR Tk

Capital and reserves A gt
Share capital A 35 8,338 8,395
Reserves fibifte 8,391,834 7,208,489
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR FIEEAT N4 i 4 8,400,172 7,216,884
Non-controlling interests I PE e 2 806,526 686,170
9,206,698 7,903,054

The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 143 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27

February 2012 and are signed on its behalf by:

Lau Luen-Hung, Thomas %835
Managing Director oy Fus]

A

Doo Wai-hoi, William

Executive Director
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Consolidated Statement of Géanyes n 67u1'z‘y
GanBEDE

for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % & ——4E+ A =1—H IF4EEF

Attributable to owners of the Company

LY N i

Capital Asset Share-based Non-

Share Share redemption revaluation  Exchange  payment  Retained controlling
capital  premium  Reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve profits Total  interests Total

BARR  REER [IES
Rk RbEE ] il Gl EAGE Gl TREEA At RIS #it
HK$'000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000
TEr T T T T T T T T T TR
(Note 37)
(B33
At 1 January 2010 RoF-Z5--0 8368 1916411 13,115 N8 IBGAL M43 149381 3666003 6121469 561538 6,683,007
Proit for the year KRR - - - - - - —LAUTS% 1AM 18312 1565846
Other comprehensive income for the year REFHMATIA - - - - — 1018 - — 10189 17410 18759
Total comprehensive income for the year KEERIIALE - - - - — 1018 — LA 1B 1T LIRS
Recognition of equity-settled share based payments BB ER B - - - - - - 15365 - 1536 - 1536
Exercise and lapse of share options TR Rk 7 39686 - - - - (5,602) 8 341 - 3%
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests ERAFERRERRE - - - - - - - - — 5109 (51,090)
Dividends paid BRARE - (531866) - - - - - —  (531,866) —  [531,866)
Transfer of reserves Lyl - - 16,219 - — — - (16,219) - - -
At 31 December 2010 RoF-ZE+-A=4-H 8395 144231 29,334 28 123,641 414511 159,144 5057400 7,216,884 686,170 7,903,054
Proft for the year KRR - - - - - - — 1886301 188301 172,949 2,059,250
Other comprehensive income for the year KEFHLARIA - - - - — 192081 - — 192081 A9 23877
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEATIASE - - - - — 192081 — 1886301 207838 194745 22117
Recognition of equity-settled share based payments — HEFBAR AR - - - - - - 2513 - 2513 - 1513
Share repurchase RirEER

— repurchase of shares — Ry m) - - - - - - - m) - m)
— premium on repurchase of shares — BB EE - (28098) - - - - - - (280,986) - (2809860)
— transfer —#F - - - 7 - - - il - - -
Bxercise and lapse of share options BREETH RN 0 9630 - - - - (4206) B B - Bm
Dividends paid to non-controlling inerests CIRATEERERRE - - - - - - - - — (4389 (74389)
Dividends paid RS - (623 - - - - - - (62 — s
Transfer of reserves HER - - Ble - - - - (Bole) - - -
At31 December 2011 REF——F4ZH=1-H 8338 530,652 52,950 305 123,641 606,592 157451 6920243 8,400,172 806,526 9,206,698
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Consolidated Statement 0/ Cast Flows

BeRensX

for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % — & ——4E+ =] =+—H IF4E)¥

2011 2010
i TR
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
B Tt Tt
OPERATING ACTIVITIES R
Profit before taxation IR 5 iy s ) 2,594,401 1,896,256
Adjustments for: BAEH DU R
Interest income on bank deposits SRATAE R Z AU A (52,035) (12,384)
Loan interests and other interest income B R R A A A — (6,066)
Finance costs Tl & R AR 57,911 35,788
Depreciation of property, plant and W~ WE KT
equipment 211,870 209,068
Release of prepaid lease payments TEAFH & 11,111 10,357
Dividend income from financial assets FZAFEFH A Z
at fair value through profit or loss R R 2 BB A (13,763) (23,183)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - B M
plant and equipment 5 H 172 445
Fair value changes in respect of financial AT EF ARG Z
assets at fair value through profit or loss BRGNS THESE 1,497 (16,446)
Change in fair value of investment properties BB EZ N TEHED) (297,763) (63,154)
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity JRE A — % e ) 42 o) e i ) (29,393) (24,252)
Share of profits of associates TREAG B 45 N ) ks A (221,892) (99,632)
(Reversal of) write-down of obsolete RS (3 []) A7 BB
inventories (355) 1,012
(Reversal of) impairment for other receivables A R SRR T U (L (43 ) 38 44 (142) (71)
Share-based payment expense JBe A A5F 3 B S 2,513 15,365
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary o — [ B 2 ] 3 ) 38 (36,067) —
Discount arising on acquisition of additional WS — KM A m) LA
interest in an associate ME#5 AR 2 YTl 39 — (114,556)
Operating cash flows before movements in BEE S REHRE B
working capital i 2,228,065 1,808,547
Increase in inventories &R m (9,163) (2,110)
Increase in trade and other receivables JRE AT B 2 e HAth JE AT 2 TEL 14 o (90,316) (50,017)
Decrease in pledged bank deposits AR SRAT A7 i D — 120,203
Increase in trade and other payables JREAST R K e At B At 3 JE 4 A 302,618 105,187
(Increase in amount due from) decrease in JRE A — R[] e o
amount due to a jointly controlled entity FRIE > GRIE RS ) (99,833) 29,934
Cash generated from operations KBS TS Bl 4 2,331,371 2,011,744
Interest received EL WA 52,035 18,450
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BV A s R A5 B0 (261,670) (216,640)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid [BY CHE e LT (116,731) (33,503)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded NS BERL 1,749 1,984
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REE R P Bl G A 2,006,754 1,782,035
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2011 2010
R4 R
NOTES HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 SR Tk
INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETE
Purchase of financial assets at fair value W 4% N TE RN A B AR
through profit or loss 2 A (532,660) (855,938)
Addition to prepaid lease payments TEASHAEL B T — (59,150)
Addition to and deposit paid for property, WL~ R Bt %
plant and equipment O (956,363) (334,715)
Purchase of investment properties L=< C/ES (82,175) (60,609)
Purchase of club debenture i AT R — (1,981)
Decrease in loans receivable A Wi Bk > — 159,246
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at A ETE ARG Z
fair value through profit or loss B B E T K 218,094 423,214
Repayment from a jointly controlled entity e — 5 e ] 42 o T 8 2 O — 47,484
Interest received from financial assets at A THERI AR 2
fair value through profit or loss SRV E 2 oL 1,608 14,214
Dividend received from financial assets at FAFERI AR 2
fair value through profit or loss RS EE 2 TR 13,763 23,183
Dividend received from an associate —RKBE A FZ Bk E 10,551 —
Dividend received from a jointly controlled —F I E A 2 TR R
entity 20,986 66,552
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary (net of R AR — [ B 2 W) A (24T
cash and cash equivalents disposed of) R T s 2 B 4 e B A S AE ) 38 596,726 —
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEYZE - WS K
and equipment gk 22 477
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties &8 &G 2EFT15 3K 13,553 4,889
Proceed from disposal of prepaid lease payments 8 Fi 4 FH 65 5% 8 15 2 — 154,527
Acquisition of additional interest in an associate i l— I 2w EAME 25 — (157,584)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES B B B 4 (695,895) (576,191)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES AL B
New bank borrowings raised HE AT & 7,833,537 2,479,000
Exercise of share options A0 g e 25,679 34,193
Advance from a non-controlling shareholder 1o BB N ) FE 42 g gk
of subsidiaries R — 163,542
Repayment of bank borrowings R RAT R (4,633,595)|  (2,291,600)
Dividends paid BRI (642,223) (531,866)
Repurchase of ordinary shares T8 [ -5 % (281,063) —
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders £ JRf 45 k42 e i o e 8 (74,389) (51,090)
Finance costs paid AT Rl B A (68,929) (40,567)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) FINANCING T2 55 80 O 45 (9 ) B 4 9 O
ACTIVITIES 2,159,017 (238,388)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH B4 K B4 5 e
EQUIVALENTS poE ] 3,469,876 967,456
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE [ERER 2 PR
DIFFERENCE 38,589 23,883
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT AEWIBLG R B
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 3,760,829 2,769,490
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END RS RBEEEY -
OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTING BANK R SRAT &5 42 S Bl 4
BALANCES AND CASH 7,269,294 3,760,829
PR EEARA Y] 2R 67



Notes to the Consolidated Frnancial Statements
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for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % — & ——4E+ =] =+—H IF4E)¥
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9812 era/

The Company is a public listed company incorporated in
Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The Company’s holding and
ultimate holding company is Real Reward Limited (“Real
Reward”), a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The
addresses of the registered office and the head office and
principal place of business of the Company are disclosed in the
Corporate Information to the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollar (“HK$"”), which is also the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are the operation
of “lifestyle” department stores and other retailing format and
property holding.

%ppﬁ'ea/z’on of New and Keovrsed
ﬂony %ony z'nazzcz'a[g?epor/[ny
Standards /“]7[7(5757&53 ”/

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS"s),
HKFRS, amendment and interpretations (“INT”s) (hereinafter
collectively referred to as “new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”).
Amendments to HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs issued
in 2010
HKAS 24 (as revised Related party disclosures
in 2009)
Amendments to HKAS 32 Classification of rights issues
Amendments to HK(IFRIC)* Prepayments of a minimum
-INT 14 funding requirement
HK(IFRIC)-INT 19 Extinguishing financial liabilities
with equity instruments

* IFRIC represents the IFRS Interpretations Committee

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in
these consolidated financial statements.
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%ppﬁ'ca/z’on of New and Kevised
]{ony %ony z'nancz'a[g?epor/iny

Standards /“]2[7(979655 ”/
/con/[nueo//

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
financial statements (as part of Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in 2010)

The amendments to HKAS 1 clarify that an entity may choose
to disclose an analysis of other comprehensive income by item
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity or in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements. In the current
year, for each component of equity, the Group has chosen to
present such an analysis in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income with a single-line presentation of other
comprehensive income in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity. Such amendments have been applied
retrospectively, and hence the disclosures in these consolidated
financial statements have been modified to reflect the change.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

Disclosures — Transfers of financial
assets!

Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and financial liabilities?

Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9
and transition disclosures’

Amendments to
HKFRS 7

Amendments to
HKFRS 7 and

HKFRS 9
HKFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements?
HKFRS 11 Joint arrangements?
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other
entities?
HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement?
Amendments to Presentation of items of other
HKAS 1 comprehensive income®
Amendments to Deferred tax — Recovery of
HKAS 12 underlying assets*

HKAS 19 (as revised
in 2011)
HKAS 27 (
in 2011)
HKAS 28 (as revised
in 2011)
Amendments to
HKAS 32
HK(IFRIC)-INT 20

as revised

Employee benetfits?
Separate financial statements?

Investments in associates and
joint ventures?

Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities®

Stripping costs in the production
phase of a surface mine?

2.

JRE YR w1 M REAE R i s o5 ¥k

5 HEHI )

A o ah AR 1SR IEET — WB Rz
53 (A7 2010 47 5 i 1) 7 98 S0 5 it o8 e J)
VO i —ER 43 )

A AU SR 1 SRR R Y o — AT AT L
RS P A A 5 A SR B R B A A B ORI R
T H AL T AAEIE B 47 « TEAAE R > A HE
4t A AR 23 > AR [ R A A A T AL i
o LURRAT 5200 A G W i 5 B 2 v R A 2 TR
A REFZNT o BT B W > A ETE
T S f e B R Y 4 B A1 o DA A R
it o

A [ S 40 TR 71 8 A L o A A8 2 T RT %
REAG AT A s P B s T )

BB I 758 B — MERE R E

(EFTA)
s — e R
PENN
T B R EREE 798 B v HISE 9 9%
AL HEN P o A
W R
T BRI 1098 45k
TSRS 11 9% L 2ok
BRSNS 129 RIMER 2R
2 IiEE?
T B R 1398 A ERHR?
AU G THENIE 198 HAb 2 AEH
(EFTA) M5k
TGRS 1258 HEAERITE + Ui A B 7
(EFTA)
G THENLE 1998 & B 4R A2
(2011 FFFEHTA)
AU G FHENES 27 9% T B R 2
(2011 4FEHA)
T Gt S 28 5% NS A T A A
(2011 FFEFA) s -
G THENLE 3298 B 4 i
(EHTAR) SR e
HHEUHRERRERG BRI ERE
R 2098 PR AR 2
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%ppﬁ'ca/z’on of New and FKevised
]{ony %ony z'nazzcz'a[g?epor/z’ny

Standards /“]f%chSs ”/
/con/z'nueO//

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
financial statements (as part of Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in 2010) (continued)

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2015.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012.
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012.

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

woe W N =

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
In June 2011, a package of five standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures was issued,
including HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2011) and HKAS 28 (as revised in 2011).

Key requirements of these five standards are described below.

HKFRS 10 replaces the parts of HKAS 27 “Consolidated and
separate financial statements” that deal with consolidated
financial statements and HK(SIC)-INT 12 “Consolidation

— Special purpose entities”. HKFRS 10 includes a new
definition of control that contains three elements: (a) power
over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to
use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the
investor’s returns. Extensive guidance has been added in
HKFRS 10 to deal with complex scenarios.

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 “Interests in joint ventures” and
HK(SIC)-INT 13 “Jointly controlled entities — Non-monetary
contributions by venturers”. HKFRS 11 deals with how a joint
arrangement of which two or more parties have joint control
should be classified. Under HKFRS 11, joint arrangements are
classified as joint operations or joint ventures, depending on
the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. In
contrast, under HKAS 31, there are three types of joint
arrangements: jointly controlled entities, jointly controlled
assets and jointly controlled operations.

In addition, joint ventures under HKFRS 11 are required to be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting, whereas
jointly controlled entities under HKAS 31 can be accounted for
using the equity method of accounting or proportionate
accounting.
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%ppﬁ'ca/z’on of New and Kevised
]{ony %ony z'nancz'a[g?epor/iny

Standards /“]2[7(979655 ”/
/con/[nueo//

New and revised Standards on consolidation,
joint arrangements, associates and disclosures
(continued)

HKEFRS 12 is a disclosure standard and is applicable to entities
that have interests in subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and/or unconsolidated structured entities. In general,
the disclosure requirements in HKFRS 12 are more extensive
than those in the current standards.

These tive standards are effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013. Earlier application is permitted
provided that all of these five standards are applied early at the
same time.

The directors of the Company anticipate that these five
standards will be adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning 1 January 2013.
The application of these five standards may have significant
impact on amounts reported in the consolidated financial
statements. The application of HKFRS 10 may result in the
Group no longer consolidating some of its investees, and
consolidating investees that were not previously consolidated
(e.g. the Group’s investment in associates may become the
Group'’s subsidiaries based on the new definition of control and
the related guidance in HKFRS 10). However, the directors
have not yet performed a detailed analysis of the impact of the
application of these Standards and hence have not yet
quantified the extent of the impact.

HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements.
The Standard defines fair value, establishes a framework for
measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value
measurements. The scope of HKFRS 13 is broad; it applies to
both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value
measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements,
except in specified circumstances. In general, the disclosure
requirements in HKFRS 13 are more extensive than those in
the current standards. For example, quantitative and
qualitative disclosures based on the three-level fair value
hierarchy currently required for financial instruments only
under HKFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures” will be
extended by HKFRS 13 to cover all assets and liabilities within
its scope.

2.
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HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement (continued)
HKFRS 13 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that HKFRS 13 will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
the annual period beginning 1 January 2013 and that the
application of the new Standard may affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statements and result in
more extensive disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income

The amendments to HKAS 1 retain the option to present profit
or loss and other comprehensive income in either a single
statement or in two separate but consecutive statements.
However, the amendments to HKAS 1 require additional
disclosures to be made in the other comprehensive income
section such that items of other comprehensive income are
grouped into two categories: (a) items that will not be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that
may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific
conditions are met. Income tax on items of other
comprehensive income is required to be allocated on the same
basis.

The amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The presentation of items of
other comprehensive income will be modified accordingly
when the amendments are applied in the future accounting
periods.

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax —
Recovery of underlying assets

The amendments to HKAS 12 provide an exception to the
general principles in HKAS 12 that the measurement of
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities should reflect the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the entity expects to recover the carrying amount of an asset.
Specifically, under the amendments, investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model in accordance with
HKAS 40 “Investment property” are presumed to be recovered
through sale for the purposes of measuring deferred taxes,
unless the presumption is rebutted in certain circumstances.

The directors anticipate that the application of the amendments
to HKAS 12 may have a significant impact on deferred tax
recognised for investment properties that are measured using
the fair value model. However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has
been completed.
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cSzynz/zcan/ Acco unting FPolicies
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis except for investment properties and
certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair value,
as explained in accounting policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein.

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-
controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance (effective from 1 January
2010 onwards).

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying amounts
of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.
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3. cSz'ynzfz'can/ %ccoan/z’ny Folicies
/con/z'nueoO

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries (continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and liabilities
of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the date when
control is lost, (ii) derecognises the carrying amount of any
non-controlling interests in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost (including any components of other
comprehensive income attributable to them), and (iii)
recognises the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest, with any
resulting difference being recognise as a gain or loss in profit or
loss attributable to the Group. When assets of the subsidiary
are carried at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets (i.e. reclassified to
protfit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as
specified by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
instruments: Recognition and measurement” or, when
applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
an associate or a jointly controlled entity.

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business
combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as
the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree.
Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in profit or
loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the
acquisition date, except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised
and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income
taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee benefits” respectively;
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cSz'ynzfz’c ant Accountin g Folicies
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Business combinations (continued)

3 liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for
sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current assets
held for sale and discontinued operations” are measured
in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-assessment, the
net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase
gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types
of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair value or,
when applicable, on the basis specified in another Standard.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee
but is not control or joint control over those policies.
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cSz'ynzfz'can/ Accountin g Folicies
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Investments in associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting, except when the investment
is classified as held for sale. Under the equity method,
investments in associates are initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of the associates. When the
Group’s share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its
interest in that associate (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of an
associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in an associate. When
necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount, any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and
losses resulting from the transactions with the associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements
only to the extent of interests in the associate that are not
related to the Group.
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Jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of a
separate entity in which venturers have joint control over the
economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly
controlled entities.

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities
are incorporated in the consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method,
investments in jointly controlled entities are initially recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the profit
or loss and other comprehensive income of the jointly
controlled entities. When the Group’s share of losses of a
jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that
jointly controlled entity (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net
investment in the jointly controlled entity), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of that jointly controlled entity.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of a jointly controlled entity recognised at
the date of acquisition is recognised as goodwill, which is
included within the carrying amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the
cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with
respect to the Group’s investment in a jointly controlled entity.
When necessary, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of assets” as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and
fair value less costs to sell) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with its jointly controlled entity,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with the
jointly controlled entity are recognised in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of interests
in the jointly controlled entity that are not related to the
Group.
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3. cSzynz/zcan/ ﬁccoan/zny Folicies
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Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for

sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally

through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly

probable and the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition.

Management must be committed to the sale, which should be
expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within

one year from the date of classification.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of

control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria

described above are met, regardless of whether the Group will
retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after

the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for

sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for

goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts and sales related taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are sold and title has

been passed.

Income from concessionaire sales is recognised upon sales of

goods by the relevant shops.
Service income is recognised when services are rendered.

Minimum guaranteed commission income representing

commission charged to consignors based on certain percentage

of turnover made, or floor area is recognised in accordance
with terms of contracts when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset including financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is accrued on a time basis, by

reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective

interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Dividend income from investment is recognised when the

shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.
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Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in
progress are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional fees
and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such properties
are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benetfits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain
or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the amortisation of
prepaid lease payments provided during the construction
period is included as part of costs of buildings under
construction. Buildings under construction are carried at cost,
less any identified impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings
commences when they are available for use (i.e. when they are
in the location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management).
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Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation (including properties under
construction for such purposes). Investment properties include
land held for undetermined future use, which is regarded as
held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are measured at cost, including any
directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the
period in which they arise.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties under
construction are capitalised as part of the carrying amount of
the investment properties under construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when
the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benetfits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the profit or loss in the period in which the item is
derecognised.

Club debenture
Club debenture is measured at cost less any impairment losses.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased
asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Contingent rentals arising under operating
leases are recognised as an income in the period in which they
are incurred.
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Leasing (continued)

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benetfits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction
of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance or
an operating lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an operating lease.
Specifically, the minimum lease payments (including any
lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated between the land
and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made
reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted for as an
operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease payments” in the
consolidated statement of financial position and is amortised
over the lease term on a straight-line basis except for those that
are classified and accounted for as investment properties under
the fair value model. When the lease payments cannot be
allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the
entire lease is generally classified as a finance lease and
accounted for as property, plant and equipment.

R R ()

ME ()

7% 45 1 2 R FLA

BRIEE S —MAFEEFERE R ZHE S
EE T A4 A5 468 9 ) 2 %) R T A 2 A A B AR
A E M HIE B A X - REEE
AR B R At AR I T R B S o

Al AR A B R N bl
R AT BRIFA D — 0 R AL YE R e R
{8 7 5 LB T MRS RS A 0 I AR K R
R T4 B AR A e S R

AL b3l R 5

WA AL L A Sy > AR e iR R A
18] AR A43 1 BEE AY F) 48 DK B 493 i B D [ s 2 15 o
o B A S T (1) L Al L 57 A5 45 8 10 > LA S 2
PRSI o BROJFAR WIS > 2% 709 IR A 43 34 2
REHE > EEMEFIT - B E RS K
AR o HHAH > SR B AR (A ARl — K
PETE AR 2 7E B UG R 5 IR Lt B A7 R A8 5 A T
LS Z AT E > f B 2 OB £ S
By o

1E—E 2 B AR 15 2 R W) S o3 e > AR - A
4t LA T TR AR B R OE | TR 455 BB R IR R B IR £
KGR o S TEFH BN 1 A RS > BREIR
BEAE BT 2 BIRSIIR A BUE W 2 -
5 2 A ] 5 3 W A b R @ AR L0y o REEAR
T — AU T L B 2 ~ S B e

R EE A R AT R AR 8 1



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contlnued) %Aﬂﬁ’%iﬁﬁﬁﬁni(@)

for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % ~ZF——4F+ _H =+—H1E

3. cSzynz/zcan/ ﬁccoan/zny Folicies

/con/znueoO

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group

entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional

currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the entity operates) at the

rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions.

At the end of the reporting period, monetary items

denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates

prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are

retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured

in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,

except for exchange differences arising on a monetary item

that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a foreign

operation, in which case, such exchange differences are

recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
equity and will be reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal of the foreign operation. Exchange differences arising

on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are

recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which
cases, the exchange differences are also recognised directly in

other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign

operations are translated into the presentation currency of the
Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rate prevailing
at the end of the reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year, unless

exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of

transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in

equity under the heading of exchange reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a

foreign operation, a disposal involving loss of joint control over
a jointly controlled entity that includes a foreign operation, or

a disposal involving loss of significant influence over an

associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to

profit or loss.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the
computation of taxable protit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from
goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the extent
that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits
against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax
liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax is
recognised in protfit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories, which represent merchandise held for resale, are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost of
merchandise is determined by the retail method and is
computed by reference to the retail selling price of goods less
the average gross profit margins. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair
value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost less impairment loss
(except for debt investments that are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss on initial recognition):

o the asset is held within a business model whose objective
is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows;
and

3 the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on

specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest method for debt
instruments measured subsequently at amortised cost. Interest
income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
“investment income” line item.
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Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVITPL”")

Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL,
unless the Group designates an investment that is not held for
trading as at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) on initial recognition. The Group has not
designated investments in unlisted equity securities as at
FVTOCI on initial application of HKFRS 9 (see note 27).

Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria
(see above) are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria but are
designated as at FVTPL are measured at FVTPL. A debt
instrument may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Group has
not designated any debt instrument as at FVTPL on initial
application of HKFRS 9.

Debt instruments are reclassified from amortised cost to FVTPL
when the business model is changed such that the amortised
cost criteria are no longer met. Reclassification of debt
instruments that are designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition is not allowed.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss is included in the “investment
income” line item in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on these
financial assets.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial assets, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been
affected.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, objective evidence
of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 30 days, as well as observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the
impairment loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly with the exception of trade
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the
use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When
a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written otf
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with to the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial
liability is either held for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together
and has a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-
taking; or

o it is a derivative, except for a derivative that is a financial
guarantee contract or a designated and effective hedging
instrument.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including bank borrowings, trade and
other payables, concessionaire sales payable and amount due
to a non-controlling shareholder of subsidiaries are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of employee services received in an equity-
settled share-based payment transaction is determined by
reference to the fair value of share options at the grant date.
The fair value of employee services is expensed on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share-based payment reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the original
estimates during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in
profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the
revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share-based payment reserve.

When the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payment reserve will be transferred
to share premium. When the share options are not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
based payment reserve will be transferred to retained profits.
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Government grants

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group recognises
as expenses the related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate. Other government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Group
with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

%ey Sources ofasfzmafz'on
(Z/ncer/az'n/y

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. The following are estimates that the directors have
made in the process of applying the entity’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
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Income taxes

At 31 December 2011, no deferred tax asset has been
recognised on the tax loss of approximately HK$606.3 million
(2010: HK$491.6 million) due to the unpredictability of future
profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future assessable protits or
taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In
cases where the estimated future assessable profits or taxable
temporary difference are more than previously estimated, a
material recognition of deferred tax assets may arise, which
would be recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the period in which the revised
estimate takes place.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

As described in notes 27 and 38, the Group has investments in
unlisted equity securities with carrying amount of HK$50.7
million in the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2011. The management estimated its fair value
taking into account discount for lack of marketability.
Favourable or unfavourable change to the estimation could
affect the fair value of the investments measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

Investment properties situated in the PRC

As described in note 18, investment properties situated in the
PRC are stated at fair value determined by the directors of the
Company by reference to a valuation performed by an
independent professional valuer. The valuation of properties
was arrived at using income method by capitalising future
rental income derived from the property interest at an
appropriate market yield with due allowance for the
reversionary income potential of the properties. In relying on
the valuation reports of the professional valuer, the
management has exercised its judgment and is satistied that
the method of valuation is reflective of the market conditions
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Any changes in
the market conditions will affect the fair value of the
investment properties of the Group.
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Gapz'/a/gez's[ Man agem ent

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which
includes the bank borrowings disclosed in note 31, net of cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and
retained profits.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the
issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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Financial Instruments LR T H
Categories of financial instruments A T RN
2011 2010
e S 5 TR AR
HK$000 HK$000
T T
Financial assets ARl E E
Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) TN TR A TR 5 2 4l e
(note 27) (fft5E27) 1,144,574 786,370
Financial assets measured at amortised cost TR SH AT B 2 4 Tl
(including cash and cash equivalents) (O F5 35 8 S 3 55 E ) 7,434,084 3,914,932
Financial liabilities Al £ 1%
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost R AT R SR A S 8,457,286 5,261,890
Derivative financial liabilities fir A 4 Rl B A& 14,333 —
Financial risk management objectives and Vo 255 D i 4 B W B SR

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include bank balances
and cash, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables,
derivative financial liabilities, amount due to a jointly
controlled entity, concessionaire sales payable, bank
borrowings and amount due to a non-controlling shareholder
of subsidiaries. Details of these financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated with these
financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.
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Financial Ynstruments (continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Currency risk

The functional currency of the Company and its major
subsidiaries in Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of the
transactions are denominated. The functional currency of those
subsidiaries operating in PRC is RMB in which most of its
transactions are denominated. Certain bank balances and bank
borrowings of the Group are denominated in United States
Dollar (“US$”) amounting to approximately HK$561,057,000
(2010: HK$543,785,000) and HK$433,974,000 (2010:
HK$155,400,000), respectively. In addition, certain financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are denominated in
US$ amounting to approximately HK$1,011,431,000 (2010:
HK$684,639,000). The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy as HK$ is effectively pegged to
US$. However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arises.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 0.5% (2010: 0.5%) in exchange
rate of US$ against HK$ while all other variables are held
constant. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 0.5%
(2010: 0.5%) change in foreign currency rates.
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IC > HRRIB A L U oA T o T B A
WA T 2 hRE R A AR BErh RS
DDANRB&E T AEEET 08l 5ERY
561,057,000 %5 JC ( & — & 4F 1 543,785,000 15
JG) ZERITEEAT J 433,974,000 5 0 (. F —FA4F ¢
155,400,000) Z SRATEEYILIE L H © Mo
T A B B4 1,011,431,000 # 0T (& — 24 ¢
684,639,000 %5 70) Z &N TR AR 3 2 4 Rl E
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Year ended 31 December
w2+ -HA=Z+—HILFEE

2011 2010
—ER A TR RAE
HK$000 HKS$’000
Tt T

Increase (decrease) in profit for the year AF TR R (D)
— if HK$ weakens against US$ — f# s T SR T (E 5,692 5,365
— if HK$ strengthens against US$ — A ke 5L E T THE (5,692) (5,365)

In management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the inherent foreign exchange risk as the
year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the
year.
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6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6. BT H )
Financial risk management objectives and Vb 255 D i 4 B I B BB (4)
policies (continued)
Interest rate risk 1 3 L B
As at 31 December 2011 and 31 December 2010, the cash flow W F - ER CF-RET = H B
interest rate risk relates primarily to the Group’s floating-rate A5 T e ) 2 g o BRLAS 42 1 2 R SR AT A R
bank deposits and bank borrowings. The Group currently does SRATAE BAT B o 7 A2 ] B0 IR NI 0 A 40 1) 5 3 o
not have an interest rate hedging policy. However, the S o SR - G BERE E HER R R B - I A T IR
management monitors interest rate exposure and will consider 7 i S b B R 3 L B
hedging significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.
The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk has been AR A (9 3 B4 T R S A B 2 IR IR R A i
determined based on the exposure to interest rates for bank M & H R OREAEREE 2 SRAT I BAE
borrowings (excluding the specific bank borrowing for FER) KT BT R R R E R - USR5
construction purpose) and floating rate bank deposits at the AR A B AT AR ) B A 8 i A A A AR A B
end of the reporting period and the reasonably possible change 1 %2 ° 10018 FE 25 (2010 = 100 5 B) 1 i 5k 38 >
taking place at the beginning of each year and held constant F HoAt 77 B A5 Bk > AQFRAT HLE R % T e A B
through the year. A 100 basis points (2010: 100 basis points) BN FEAG o BT E 0.001% IR ERITAS 1
increase or decrease is used for other variable rate balances, T 43 BT AR R LR SR B R REE 0% 1 B
which represents management’s assessment of the reasonably JRBE o TR HA S RN - BB R E
possible change in interest rates. For those bank balances with AAC AT TR TRRAR A% SR A R A i 465 5 H 3
interest rate of 0.001% per annum, the analysis below reflects =R R B U AR
the sensitivity that the interest rate may drop to 0%. The
Group’s sensitivity to interest rate risk at the end of the
reporting period while all other variables were held constant
after taking into account the impact of the finance costs
capitalised in construction in progress is as follows:
Year ended 31 December
KEF A=+ —HIR4RE
2011 2010
R4 CER—RAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
RR(F AR
Increase in profit for the year A A T A
— as a result of increase in interest rate — WA BT 20,271 3,626
— as a result of decrease in interest rate — HR R R T 32,806 33,944

The sensitivity to profit for the year has shown as an increase
during both years due to a higher bank balances against the
bank borrowings.
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Financial Ynstruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 31
December 2011 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying amount of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. In order to
minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
formulated a defined fixed credit policy and delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
receivable regularly at the end of the reporting period to ensure
that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced. Retail sales
are mainly on cash basis, either in cash, debit card or credit
card payments.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies or government authority.

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
relation to trade and other receivables, with exposure spread
over a number of counterparties and customers.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Hong Kong, which accounted for 66 %
(2010: 62%) of the total trade receivable as at 31 December
2011.

Price risk

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and derivative financial liabilities are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period. Therefore, the Group is
exposed to price risk. The management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risk
profiles. Details of the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and derivative financial liabilities are set out in
notes 27 and 32 respectively.
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Financial Ynstruments (continued) 6.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Price risk (continued)

The Group’s sensitivity to price risk on the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
liabilities at the end of the reporting period while all other
variables were held constant is as follows:

G T o
A 5 il B 4 B H Y B BOR ()

fE AR JEL B (7

E A S BOAERS AN SE T > AR A i 0 TR A
H S PR A 6 2 S ST A i A
T2 A R R B TS

HK$’000
T
2011 e
Reasonably possible change in price B 22 TT EA B ) 5%
Increase (decrease) in profit for the year AR A T R (i)
— as a result of increase in price — R E RS 56,512
— as a result of decrease in price — A E RS WD (56,512)
2010 e S 23
Reasonably possible change in price B 2 AT e A B ) 1%
Increase (decrease) in profit for the year AR A T R ()
— as a result of increase in price — R E RS 7,864
— as a result of decrease in price — A E RS WD (7,864)
Liquidity risk it Bl 4 B

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank borrowings and
ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank borrowings as a significant source of
liquidity. As at 31 December 2011, the Group has available
unutilised borrowing facilities of approximately HK$261.7
million (2010: HK$62.5 million). Details of which are set out
in note 31.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The table has
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the
Group can be required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curve at the
end of the reporting period.
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Financial Instruments (continued) 6. T E
Financial risk management objectives and Vo 755 D i 4 B D B BOSRE (4
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) it B < JE b (%)
In addition, the following table details the Group’s liquidity WAL > T FRFES AR SR AT A R T
analysis for its derivative financial instruments. The tables have IIHT o % RARTE T I B A AT A T R B
been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual net cash HHENFBLAE GRA) KU RARLeqi A TE 4
(inflows) and outflows on derivative instruments that settle on FEGE S 2 R ARSI () S th il sg o 5 MEAT 4
a net basis, and the undiscounted gross (inflows) and outflows AR E - Peds 27027 AR SE0IE SR (W75
on those derivatives that require gross settlement. When the R B RIS EIE R TR ) MEE - AEBMATE
amount payable is not fixed, the amount disclosed has been BT HE A B AT IR A A B > R
determined by reference to the projected interest rates/ MR L > GAE BB TR AE TR B AR
exchange rates as illustrated by the interest rate/exchange rate [ [ IR o
existing at the end of the reporting period. The liquidity
analysis for the Group’s derivative financial instruments are
prepared based on the contractual maturities as the
management consider that the contractual maturities are
essential for an understanding of the timing of the cash flows
of derivatives.
Liquidity and interest risk tables i) e KRB
Weighted Carrying
average Total amount at
effective undiscounted 31.12.2011
interest rate Less than 1-3 3 months Over 1 cashflows  R-F——4
T 1 month months to 1 year year B A=A
HRHE ~fRR ~EZWA ZHAE-E —EpLE kAT ZJRiif
% HKS/000 HK$/000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$/000 HKS'000
Tin Tt Tin Tin Tt Tin
201 3k
Non-derivative financial liabilities Jefik 2 5
Trade and other payables FE(TIRS R M SR - 1,211,065 366,742 31,826 49,540 1,659,173 1,659,173
Bank borrowing — fixed rate T kS 3.50% - 3,131 9,394 379,779 392,304 357,860
Bank borrowings — variable rate Rt E - FHAE 1.16% 2,503,063 14,406 248,239 3,777,100 6,542,808 6,265,874
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder TR A F— 2 e
of subsidiaries Bz 3k - - - - 174,379 174379 174379
3,714,128 384,279 289,459 4,380,798 8,786,664 8,457,286
Derivative — gross settlement fitk LA — BELH
Interest rate swap Fisesf]
— Inflow — %A - - (133) (401) (17,033) (17567)
— Outflow —Hii - - - 1,719 33,692 35411
- (133) 1318 16,659 17,84 9,994
Derivative — net settlement ik TH — B4R
Cross currency swap X KR - - - 6,543 - 6,543 4339
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6. Financial Instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables (continued)

I

Ao 1 5 AR I (A)
Gii's

6. i T E
A 5 il B 4 B H Y B BOR ()

i B AL (A
i) B KRS R B ()

Weighted Carrying
average Total amount at
effective undiscounted 31.12.2010
interest rate Less than 13 3 months Over 1 ashflows — RZE-FEF
i 382l 1 month months to 1 year year BENE AR
B AR —E=fif  ZHAEF —HUE HeE IR
% HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T Tt i
2010 e 23
Non-derivative financial liabilities FitSRAK
Trade and other payables TEATHR SR S MR 3R - 968,798 623,349 74,622 - 1,666,769 1,666,769
Bank borrowings — variable rate ity s kS 224% 179,072 191 2,843,882 490,019 3,513,164 3,398,200
Amount due to a jointly controlled entity T —R LR E AR - 29934 - - - 29,934 29,934
Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder RERH I A 7l — 4 FE
of subsidiaries T2 Bk - - - - 166,987 166,987 166,987
1,177,804 623,540 2,918,504 657,006 5,376,854 5,261,890

The amounts included above for variable interest rate

instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is subject to

change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those
estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.

Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

SRR 7 4 2 R B R R TR 2
W VB L% B A7 B 0 455
A T4 5

I FA
EEEREMARZ A FEBEENT

98

the fair value of financial assets with standard terms and
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;

the fair value of derivative instruments is calculated using
discounted cash flow analysis using the applicable yield
curve for the duration of the instruments for non-
optional derivatives; and

the fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying
amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate to their fair values.
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Financial Ynstruments (continued) 6.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition
at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to
which the fair value is observable.

. Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from
quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical
assets or liabilities.

o Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

Btz =
55 B BIR DL e e 58 =2 A AT =

TR BRI AN T E R AR 7T 2 el TR
o A T BB SRR By — B =4

o B—BATMERR YA O B R
IS VR P T T

. 55 RN TR AT B TIBRES — AR A Z i fE
Ao B R AT (AR ) B
(AER AR ) B A BRI -

. 5 TR R B TR A IR AR T
T35 Bl (IR B A i A\ B ) 2 A A
TR AT A o

31 December 2011
SF AN
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B BH BEH Ak
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T BRI T#0
Financial assets at FVTPL: AR AR
CEREE
Held for trading FE AR
investments
— Listed equity — kAR S
securities 82,483 — — 82,483
— Unlisted debt — kLl
securities — 1,011,431 — 1,011,431
Others HAts
— Unlisted equity — kb
securities (note) JRATE S (&) — — 50,660 50,660
Total st 82,483 1,011,431 50,660 1,144,574
Financial liabilities at FVTPL: 4&/A {3t A4 %5 2
=N
Derivative financial
liabilities FrHE 4 B i —_ 14,333 —_ 14,333
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6. Financial Instruments (continued) 6.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

(continued)

Ao 1 5 AR I (A)
Gii's

G T o

T ok 5 YA B IR D 2 W i 2 4 P T & ()

31 December 2010

R -REF A=+ —H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B . B Mk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
THso T T T 0 T T
Financial assets at FVTPL: AR AR B
ZEMER
Held for trading REEERE
investments
— Listed equity — LA S
securities 101,731 — — 101,731
— Unlisted debt — ¥ EiifEs
securities — 671,041 — 671,041
Others HoAty
— Unlisted equity — B AR SR
securities 13,598 — — 13,598
Total st 115,329 671,041 — 786,370

Note:

The unlisted equity securities investment at 31 December 2011 represents the
retained 10% equity interest in Shenyang Jiajian after the disposal set out in note
38. There is no change in fair value after it is transferred from investment in

subsidiary.

There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 in the current and prior years.

7. Turnover

Turnover represents the amount received and receivable for
goods sold by the Group to outside customers, net of discounts
and sales related taxes, income from concessionaire sales,
service income and rental income during the year, and is

analysed as follows:

R EE AR T b B2 IR B R SR B AR M 38
T A1 A 9 e R R B 1 109 JBOHE © 2P BL7E ol B 2 W) 4%

HMB IR AR -

S BN A HIAE S AR SR AR A RS

(i

BRFAE AL B AR A B i AR S A I B
S A TR A 0 2 B A BRL B EL - R RT

T

SR A~ MRES WA DA R AL A - 2293

2011 2010
ZE AR ZE A
HK$000 HK$'000
Tt Tt
Sales of goods — direct sales B — H 2,871,430 2,491,562
Income from concessionaire sales R FFELE B B A 2,046,443 1,657,353
Service income AR WA 112,410 90,360
Rental income A UA 101,667 78,190
5,131,950 4,317,465

The cost of sales are analysed as follows: FHE AT
Cost of goods sold B AR 2,045,005 1,772,081
Other cost of sales HoAth g5 45 A 87,072 64,141
2,132,077 1,836,222
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cSeym ent gn/orm alion

Information reported to the board of directors of the Company
(the “Board of Directors”), being the chief operating decision
maker, for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment
of segment performance focusing on sales of goods, provision
of services and lease operations in distinct geographical
locations.

The Group has two reportable and operating segments
geographically, Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”) which are managed separately. The Group
determines its operating segments based on the internal reports
reviewed by the Board of Directors that are used to allocate
resources and assess performance.

The Group has no customers that contributed over 10% of the
total revenue of the Group for both years.

Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable and operating segment:

o1 HRE R

EH EORHG 1 fy ERE R AR E & 2 H
Y 2 B e o7 N [ [ ) B 4~ RS A B
B BRI HE R 23 MR R BLA AT A

A A T A A 3 B A B 2 ol [ A 0 - R i
Ferp e NRSRE ([H B ]) o ALEEEmESR
2 B Sl R A ) PR TR 2 R R R E LA

o

AAAE B RAF AR G 0 7 5 B Rk R AN 4R
Z AR 10% ©

Vi LW E 3
AR B W] 0 TR O 2 iR B CERUMTINT

Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
il H ogtg kil
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt Tkt
For the year ended 31 December 2011 ®BE_ZF——4T2AH
Zt—HIEE
Revenue Wi it
External sales HAMEE 4,091,393 1,040,557 5,131,950
Result E
Segment result Ve 1,756,746 282,217 2,038,963
Fair value changes on investment TG YIE AT E ST
properties 297,763
Investment income BN 64,301
Share of profit of a jointly controlled JRE At — R B[] 4 1 4 i
entity 29,393
Share of profits of associates JRE A 2 ) i 221,892
Finance costs [Ei3-97% (57,911)
Profit before taxation A i v A1) 2,594,401
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I

8. cSeymen/ gn/orma/z'on (continued) 8.

Segment revenues and results (continued)

O3 TR E R} )
L& W ES 16

Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
itk o SRR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tt Tt Tt
For the year ended 31 December 2010 BEZZ-ZHTTA
ZEt—HIEE
Revenue i 4
External sales HoM e 3,451,605 865,860 4,317,465
Result e
Segment result Vs 1,386,817 185,554 1,572,371
Fair value changes on investment PG SE N5 )
properties 63,154
Discount arising on acquisition of Wl — R O W A
additional interest in an associate HE i 7o A 2 YTl 114,556
Investment income BEWA 58,079
Share of profit of a jointly JAE it — % e[ 42 ) B i )
controlled entity 24,252
Share of profits of associates JRE At e A ) s 99,632
Finance costs Rl A (35,788)
Profit before taxation BB i 1,896,256

The accounting policies of the reportable and operating
segments are the same as the Group’s accounting policies
described in note 3. Segment profit represents the profit earned
by each segment without share of profits of associates and
jointly controlled entity, discount arising on acquisition of
additional interest in an associate, fair value changes on
investment properties, investment income and finance costs.
This is the measure reported to the Board of Directors for the
purposes of resources allocation and performance assessment.
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cSeymen/ Ynformalion (continued) S I ERE R @

Segment assets and liabilities NEEERAR
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities AR [ 4% ARG IRy 2 G R AT
by reportable and operating segment:
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
il i fogtg kil
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
T T T
As at 31 December 2011 w-oZ——#+_-A=+—H
Assets B
Segment assets IR 7,343,148 7,485,063 14,828,211
Financial assets at fair value through A HER AR 2
profit or loss SRE e 1,144,574
Interest in a jointly controlled entity A — % e[ 42 T T B RE A 486,089
Amount due from a joint controlled entity — REUlg— 5 2t 5] £ il B B4 5 H 69,899
Interests in associates TR A FIHER 2,039,839
Unallocated assets KOO 7E 12,737
Consolidated total assets GAEEMAE 18,581,349
Liabilities AafH
Segment liabilities S 1,174,792 903,941 2,078,733
Bank borrowings SRITIE B 6,623,734
Unallocated liabilities OBl fE 672,184
Consolidated total liabilities A A B 9,374,651
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
Hil i ogtg kil
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
Tt Tt T
Other segment information HoAlb 43 3% R
Amounts included in the measure TR A AR 0
of segment profit or loss or (Okipa ¢
segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets TR E 46,979 928,147 975,126
Depreciation of property, plant EN GG P
and equipment 75,251 136,619 211,870
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - RE K
and equipment b 73 — 172 172
Impairment for (reversal of LA RECHIE R E (458 [0 )
impairment for) other receivables 120 (262) (142)
(Reversal of) write-down of HESH 17 6 B (43 ) 8t
obsolete inventories (439) 84 (355)
Release of prepaid lease payments T & FE R — 11,111 11,111
Share-based payment et A 3K 2,513 — 2,513

R EE A R AT R AR IL @3



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contlnued) %Aﬂﬁ’%iﬁﬁﬁﬁni(@)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % ~ZF——4F+ _H =+—H1E

8. cSeymen/ gﬁ/orma/ion (continued) S I ERE R

104

Segment assets and liabilities (continued) AEbEE R AR
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
i o SRR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI TH T TT
As at 31 December 2010 HoEF—FHE+-H=+—H
Assets i
Segment assets A 4,348,087 6,909,005 11,257,092
Financial assets at fair value through AR A £ 2
profit or loss GG E 786,370
Interest in a jointly controlled entity i — 5% [ 47 T B R £ 467,929
Interests in associates RSN FIRERS 1,348,828
Unallocated assets ROy BLE 12,737
Consolidated total assets AERESEHE 13,872,956
Liabilities Atk
Segment liabilities A i 962,850 1,046,613 2,009,463
Amount due to a jointly B A — % ] 42 ) ¢ B T
controlled entity 29,934
Bank borrowings AT & 3,398,200
Unallocated liabilities P =L 532,305
Consolidated total liabilities A A EAE 5,969,902
Consolidated
Hong Kong PRC total
il et SRA R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TH T THIT
Other segment information oAt 3 5 & R
Amounts included in the measure TR MR 5 B
of segment profit or loss or L2 B
segment assets:
Addition to non-current assets eI A 1,310 214,990 216,300
Depreciation of property, plant LIERN &Y Pk
and equipment 79,540 129,528 209,068
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BRFE Kt
plant and equipment 2 (figsi ) R (103) 548 445
(Reversal of impairment for) ﬁ{m}@l{i%’,}(lﬁ
impairment for other receivables Z (30 WifE (112) 41 (71)
Provision for write-down of obsolete b B 1 5 BB £
inventories 638 374 1,012
Release of prepaid lease payment TR T — 10,357 10,357
Share-based payment FREA A 3 15,365 — 15,365
At 31 December 2010 and 31 December 2011, the unallocated W oFE R+ A= —HM_E——

segment assets represent club debentures held by the group
and unallocated segment liabilities mainly represent deferred
tax liabilities, amount due to a non-controlling shareholder of
subsidiaries and derivative financial liabilities.
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cSeymen/ Ynformalion (continued) S I ERE R @

Geographical information i [ R
Analysis of the Group’s non-current assets by geographical 2 T A M i ) 43 2 AR AR [ I A D 7 4 T
location of the assets are detailed below: K
2011 2010
E AR R
Hong Kong PRC Hong Kong PRC
T rh B i ]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T#I0 T#0 T T#IT
Non-current assets i By 1,832,374 5,317,943 1,910,910 4,863,837
Note: Non-current assets excluded interests in associates and jointly controlled BEFRE © VAL AN B A A ) R ] 2 i BB £ o
entity.
Otbher Income 9. HABWA
2011 2010
I —E T
HK$000 HK$'000
AR FHsT
Management fee income ESLE TN 72,990 59,730
Project income THH A 5,360 7,769
Government subsidy BT A Bl 25,964 23,805
Net exchange gain e TN N 12,157 2,209
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal A — D Jo8 2 D IR i 5%
of a subsidiary i 50,5 5 36,067 —
Others (Note) HoA (B 5T 97,360 79,101
249,898 172,614
Note: Others mainly represent bank credit card recharge and entrance fee BEGE - Al T BEARIRATAE A R 2 Wl R U -
income.
Ynvestmen! Income 0. TEEWA
2011 2010
TR TR
HK$000 HK$000
T T
Interest income on bank deposits SRATAF K Z AL E U A 52,035 12,384
Interest income on loans receivable JRE B3R 2 A A — 6,066
Dividend income B A
Held for trading HIEEEHRE 13,763 23,183
Change in fair value of financial assets B B AR E)
Held for trading investments FEEEE 12,391 16,446
Derivative instruments ik TR (13,888) —
64,301 58,079
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/2.

/3.

106

I

Fair Ualue Céanyes on 71. BB SN -VH )
Ynvestment Trop erties
2011 2010
G 2 TR R
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt T
Change in fair value of investment properties: EVS<C/E VNS F]
— realised gain on disposal of other — A S Bl A
investment properties 1,564 1,128
— realised gain on disposal of an investment — WA BOE Y 3 M A Y
properties holding subsidiary (note 38) s B R (B 5T 38) 201,782 —
203,346 1,128
— unrealised gain — KRB 4 94,417 62,026
297,763 63,154
Finance Costs 72. B g
2011 2010
R4 TR R
HK$000 HK$’000
Tt T
Interest on: PIFIEEZ B
Bank borrowings and overdrafts: SATIEEE JIBE L -
— wholly repayable within five years — JEU AR I B A 57,779 31,320
— wholly repayable after five years — ZRh AR R R 4,739 8,110
Others oAb 6,411 1,137
68,929 40,567
Less: Amounts capitalised K EAR 4 FE (11,018) (4,779)
57,911 35,788

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arising on HK
dollar denominated borrowings and RMB denominated
borrowings at interest rates calculated by reference to Hong
Kong Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”), ranging from 0.35%
to 1.51% (2010: 0.36% to 0.75%) per annum and at fixed
interest rate of 3.5% per annum respectively, on qualifying

R BEEARCZBVE AT A A G EE -
O30l B 225 U ERATIR EHR B A T 0.35 A 1,51
JH (A AT 036 HE 0.75)E) BT EHE A
B2 s e B8 DL A 2R 0 3.5 TR AT R E 2
NERMEAEE -

assets.
Jaxation /3. BilE
2011 2010
. S R4
HK$000 HK$'000
Tl AR
The charge comprises: LS N AIEE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax 7 s AR 279,144 228,720
PRC Tax (note) e i SE AR AL (B 5E) 194,799 69,030
Underprovision in prior years: AR LN LA AR
Hong Kong Profits Tax IR 162 3,067
474,105 300,817
Deferred tax charge (note 33) RACHIIE S (B E 33) 61,046 29,593
535,151 330,410
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/3. 7axa/1'012 /Con/inueo//

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated

assessable profit for both years.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of
the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from

1 January 2008 onwards.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends in
respect of profits earned by PRC subsidiaries from 1 January
2008 onwards. Deferred taxation of HK$19,356,000 (2010:
HK$16,826,000) was recognised in respect of distributable
profit of PRC entities amounting of HK$193,563,000 (2010:
HK$168,264,000) have been provided during the year ended

. B IE )

T v R AT AR 5 A0 A T 2 A 5 I B 0 ) 4
16.5% w3 ©

AR5 b e A B [ A ZE T AR BLTE ([ A 22T 19 Bl
B 0) KA ZERT S B BRG] > PRI E A A A
TERENF—H—HRZBLEL25% °

MR FE T ERE > - FR/F—H—HEH
U ogf v 2 5 2 R0 A B % R 2 sk S A L
Bilo R F——4 -+ A=+—HIEE > PR
FEAE AT 4 R A 2 #EH 193,563,000 (& —&
A MK 168,264,000) T e 58 2 I 1L Bl TE £ 15 W
19,356,000 (2010 : #%16,826,000)

31 December 2011.

Note: BERE -
2011 2010
Bk —E
HK$000 HK$'000
Tt T

The PRC Tax charge for the year comprises: ARAE S P B RS S R LA

Tax arising from disposal of investment properties in the PRC o B 1 SE A R IE 112,701 —
PRC Enterprise Income Tax o ) i 2 T 15 Bl 82,098 69,030
194,799 69,030

The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit before
taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as follows:

BRI

AR ST LA

A TS A 2 B 7 BR BRI A 2

2011 2010
R4 TR R
HK$’000 HK$'000
Tt T
Profit before taxation R B i v 2,594,401 1,896,256
Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate P HE PGB R 2 BLIH 428,076 312,882
Tax effect of share of profit of a jointly R A — R [ 2 o) B s ) 2 BT
controlled entity (4,849) (4,002)
Tax effect of share of profits of associates JRE A B A2 T35 R 2 o T 2 (36,612) (16,439)
Tax effect of income not taxable for PRI A 2 BLIE R
tax purpose (19,644) (26,729)
Tax effect of expense not deductible for AT FIBLBA 7 2 BIE R 2
tax purpose 6,319 4,280
Tax effect on utilisation of tax losses B P LA R R R 1R B
previously not recognised (438) (867)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised KRR TE TR 2 BiIE R 19,365 17,901
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries A A ) R e A B A )
operating in other jurisdictions ANIR] ot 3 2 B VE R 28 9,469 19,535
Underprovision in prior years TR AR BERS L 3 162 3,067
Tax arising from disposal of a subsidiary B — IR Rf a2 W) 2 B IE 112,701 —
Withholding tax FEIE 19,356 16,826
Others HoAth 1,246 3,956
Tax charge for the year AR BT S 535,151 330,410
smmmgmanan —z-—wen 107
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I

/4. ?ro/i//or /Aeyear 74 A5 i )

108

2011 2010
&4 TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#x T
Profit for the year has been arrived AT AR T AIEE -
at after charging:
Directors’ remuneration: (note 15) HWAHME - (BEE15)
Fees 14 1,000 1,000
Other emoluments At 357 2,400 2,400
Bonus TE4L 20,000 10,000
Share-based payment A Ak — 9,150
Retirement benefits scheme contributions AR ARAE A | E 12 12
23,412 22,562
Other staff costs HoAth B T A 331,132 284,403
Retirement benefits scheme contributions, ARRAE I G B AR A R
net of forfeited contributions 16,037 14,213
Share-based payment JBe AT 3 2,513 6,215
Total staff costs A T A 373,094 327,393
Auditor’s remuneration BT 4 4,227 3,672
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #% ~ Fi5 J sk fff 2 185 211,870 209,068
Release of prepaid lease payments TA AL B BT 11,111 10,357
Write-down of obsolete inventories i B A O — 1,012
Rental payments paid under operating lease in  St&S A B 1 H S 5
respect of leasehold land and buildings to 18] LA N = 3 A 2 AR 4
— a jointly controlled entity — — I [R] E E 191,554 173,346
— other parties — HAb A+ 96,487 71,585
Loss on disposal of property, plant and B - WS PO 2 e 18
equipment 172 445
Cost of inventories recognised as expense HERR LS S 2 A7 B A 2,045,005 1,772,081
and crediting: LKA T SIIEE -
Gross rental income from investment properties 4% &) %41 4 4058 14,950 1,424
Less: Outgoings expense Tk ARE B S (13,850) —
Gross rental income from sub-letting of [l RZE Zagickis Rk ¥
commercial properties 86,717 76,766
Less: Direct operating expenses in respect of BB+ A AR FH A SR T AR BH S
sub-letting of commercial properties (72,973) (65,052)
Net rental income FH B TR AR 14,844 13,138
Reversal of impairment for other receivables L R 0 i O R (4% (] 142 71
Reversal of write-down of obsolete inventories TS AE B 38 ] 355 —

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
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15. Directors’ anofamp/oyees’ 15, E 3 NAR B4

Kemuneration
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 10 (2010: 10) B4 10 44 (& B4 104) EREMBEMZ
directors were as follows: (LR 1 N
2011 —B——AF
LauLuen  Doo Wai ChengKar LauLuen LauYuk LamSiu  Cheung ShekLai Hui Chiu Total
Hung, Hoi, ChengYu Shun, Hung, Wai, Lun, Yuet Man, Him,  Chung, At
Thomas  William Tung Henry Joseph Amy Simon Raymond Abraham  Stephen 2011
i i) Bl BRM A HER kB L35 fitk I S5
HKS$'000 HKS$'000  HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
T T Tk T T Tk Tiki Tiki Tk Tk T
Fees 4 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1,000
Other emoluments Hlbmse
Salaries and other benelits Hd R MARR 2,400 — - - - - - - - - 2,400
Bonus* fe4L 20,000 — - — - - - - - - 20,000
Contributions to retirement SRR e
benefits schemes 12 - - - - - - - - - 12
Share-based payment IR - - - - - - - - - - -
Total emoluments LR 22,512 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 23412
2010 o s
LauLuen  Doo Wai ChengKar  LauLuen  LauYuk  LamSiu Cheung  ShekLai  Hui Chiu Total
Hung, Hoi,  ChengYu Shun, Hung, Wai, Lun,  Yuet Man, Him, Chung, st
Thomas William Tung Henry Joseph Amy Simon  Raymond  Abraham Stephen 2010
o HE [ 57 Lip & ke g3 LES MEBE Rl ALt Fii G — S 20
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tkt Tt Tt Figt Tt i T T T T
Fees % 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 1,000
Other emoluments HAbm s
Salaries and other benefits EEy il 2,400 — — — — — — — — — 2,400
Bonus* fea 10,000 — - — — — — — — — 10,000
Contributions to retirement RIRER 5
benefits schemes 12 — — — — - - - — — 12
Share-based payment iRk 9,150 — - — - - — — — — 9,150
Total emoluments M4 21,662 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 100 22,562
No directors waived any emoluments for both years. I JHE 3 = A AR A T 25 A TR BT AT P 4 -
* The bonus is determined having regard to the performance of the Group * JEALBUR R AR I A R T G B

and market trends.
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I

15. Directors’ anofamp/o ees’ 15, w3 MR B4 @)

Kemuneration (continued)

Of the five highest paid individuals of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2011, one of them (2010: one) was a
director of the Company whose remuneration is disclosed
above. The remaining four (2010: four) are employees of the
Group, details of whose remuneration were as follows:

WE_R——F T _H=ET—HILFE . ALH
TAEwmEmHALT > B (R =2 R
AN FEIH S - IR SRR o AN (
T BAE ) MR ASEER B > 105 2 e RE
HFHRINWT

2011 2010
SR TR
HK$000 HK$000
Tt Tt

Employees: & :
Salaries, allowances and other benefits B > HERG A AR 6,926 7,482
Retirement benetfits scheme contributions SR RAE A A R 48 48
Performance related incentive payments L B i ) 58 5 7,980 4,480
Share-based payment A 759 2,011
15,713 14,021

The emolument of the remaining four were within the
following bands:

FLER DU 2 f i N 2 BT LR AR

2011 2010

R TR

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

N i N

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 # 7T % 2,000,000 #5 7C — 1
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 #5 7T % 2,500,000 #5 70 — —
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 #5 JL % 3,000,000 5 ¢ 1 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 # 7T & 3,500,000 #5 JC — —
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 #5 7C % 4,000,000 #57C 1 —
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 #57C % 4,500,000 #5 70 1 —
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 #IC % 5,000,000 #57T 1 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001 #5 75 £ 5,500,000 #5 7 — 1

During the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010, no
remuneration was paid by the Group to the director or the four
highest paid employees as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

H 1@ Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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/6.

/7.

Dividends

/6. B% B

2011 2010
&4 TR R
HK$000 HKS$'000
T#x T
Dividend recognised as distributions ENFER A IR Z IR
during the year:
Final dividend in cash paid for year ended wWE-F-FF I+ _H=1—H
31 December 2010 — HK cents 19.0 1A DABR 2 R A 2 R IR
per share — BB 19.0 #E Al
(2010: HK cents 17.0 paid for year (CF—FAF R R
ended 31 December 2009) CEENFE+ A=+ —H
IR 17.0 L) 319,268 285,115
Interim dividend in cash paid for WE T ——FNA=THIEAMEA
six months ended 30 June 2011 PABL A IR A+ 2 w0 i S5
— HK cents 19.2 per share — B 19.2 ¥ Al
(2010: HK cents 14.7 paid for six months (CF—FAF R R
ended 30 June 2010) ZEFRFEANH=THIE
SRR 14.7 AL 322,955 246,751
642,223 531,866

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend
of HK cents 25.7 (2010: HK cents 19.0) per share has been
proposed by the directors which is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming general meeting.

C‘jarninys per Share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the Company is

based on the following data:

17. BHEELH)
EN/NCIR S Y & RS E NN 3 R I DAE S
FE IR R

A U P 4 AR R RS AR A S A
25. 7 WA (2 —F4F 0 19,091l > ZE TR BB
JE Jes i SR 4K LA o

2011 2010
R i TR R
HKS$000 HK$'000
Tt T#T
Earnings BA
Profit for the year attributable to owners st A SR A B v R i
of the Company for the purposes of basic LRGN AT NI AR A Vi
and diluted earnings per share 1,886,301 1,407,534
2011 2010
&4 TR
000 ‘000
Tk T
Number of shares Jie At BH
Weighted average number of ordinary shares EE A AR R 2
for the purpose of basic earnings per share W R 2 1,678,376 1,677,245
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares AN E A SR E N Al TR T2
issuable under the Company’s share TERAE A i 2 s
option scheme 14,762 10,422
Weighted average number of ordinary shares bR e S (=
for the purpose of diluted earnings per share S I BT 1,693,138 1,687,667
Aumsgmanan —z—een 111
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I

18. Ynvestment yjroper/ies 18 HWEYE

112

Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties  construction Total
CHERBEWE TR hREWE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THTT THTT Tt
FAIR VALUE AR
At 1 January 2010 WoR - —H—H 876,718 534,390 1,411,108
Transfer from property, plant and EL/E NN VS
equipment [LEEH 1,320 — 1,320
Additions during the year FENRE 73,021 12,368 85,389
Increase in fair value recognised in the R ERA AT S R TER
consolidated statement of ZAFESm
comprehensive income
— Realised gain on disposal — WEF BTG 1,128 — 1,128
— Unrealised gain — REBH 20,029 41,997 62,026
Disposals i (4,889) — (4,889)
Exchange adjustments [ b, i 4 31,631 21,305 52,936
At 31 December 2010 S S
+ZHA=+—H 998,958 610,060 1,609,018
Additions during the year HRRE 20,734 39,884 60,618
Increase in fair value recognised GRS AT R LR
in the consolidated statement of ZAFESm
comprehensive income
— Realised gain on disposal — BRI 1,564 — 1,564
— Unrealised gain — RE B 94,417 — 94,417
Disposals o (13,553) — (13,553)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38) HiE — R 2 ] (B 3T 38) — (662,352) (662,352)
Exchange adjustments EE 5, 74 45,141 12,408 57,549
S
At 31 December 2011 +ZHA=+—H 1,147,261 — 1,147,261
The carrying amount of investment properties shown above DL B W 2 R T R L
comprises:
2011 2010
i T AT
HK$000 HK$'000
Tt T
Land in Hong Kong held under medium lease A AR P A R 2 53,250 52,480
Land in PRC held under medium lease T AR P AL A R A 2 1,094,011 1,556,538
1,147,261 1,609,018

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties in Hong
Kong at 31 December 2010 has been arrived at on the basis of
a valuation carried out on that date by Knight Frank Petty
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group. Knight Frank Petty Limited are
members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and have
appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation was arrived at using direct comparison method by
reference to relevant market prices for similar properties in the

same locations and conditions.
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18. Investment gjroper/ies (continued)

Fair value of the Group’s investment properties situated in the
PRC as at 31 December 2010 has been arrived at based on a
valuation carried out on that date by Shanghai BDGH
Chartered Valuation Surveyors Co., Ltd. The fair value of
completed investment properties are determined based on the
income method by capitalising future rental income derived
from the property interest at an appropriate market yield as at
31 December 2010 for the remaining term of the land use
rights of the property. While the fair value of investment
properties under construction are determined based on residual
approach by reference to comparable sales evidence as available
on the market and deduct the expected construction cost
estimated to complete.

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties in Hong
Kong at 31 December 2011 were determined by the directors
of the Company. At 31 December 2011, the directors of the
Company carried out an assessment on the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties in Hong Kong with reference to
a valuation report prepared by CBRE HK Limited (“CBRE”), an
independent qualified professional valuer not connected with
the Group, carried out at 30 November 2011 and recent
property market data of similar properties in the relevant
locations during December 2011. In the opinion of the
directors, the fair values of these properties at 31 December
2011 approximate the fair value at 30 November 2011. CBRE
are members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, and
have appropriate qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant locations. The
valuation at 30 November 2011 was arrived at using direct
comparison method by reference to relevant market prices for
similar properties in the same locations and conditions.

Fair value of the Group’s investment properties situated in the
PRC as at 31 December 2011 were determined by the directors
of the Company. At 31 December 2011, the directors of the
Company carried out an assessment on the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties in the PRC with reference to a
valuation report prepared by CBRE, carried out at 30
November 2011 and recent property market data of similar
properties in the relevant locations during December 2011. In
the opinion of the directors, the fair values of these properties
at 31 December 2011 approximate the fair value at 30
November 2011. The fair value at 30 November 2011 of
completed investment properties are determined based on the
income method by capitalising future rental income derived
from the property interest at an appropriate market yield as at
30 November 2011 with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the properties for the remaining term of
the land use rights of the properties.

/8.

WEY)ZE )

24 3 o B 2 A G B B
b F 2 AT SRR L i\ B H
T2 AR » 2T )5 REE I AE - 5 2
ALY T MO FEHE 2 B A I R — T A
T = b H 2 B T R R A
S A AT 5 - T 7 5 op B B 2 1
B (7 v 5 5 1 T 5 45 (8 T L 0
Sl BR T T B 0 A T o

AEEEFENBED R —F ——F+ 2]
ErH AT ER AN R ESEHEE - B F
——AEF AR AR R HE RS IR
V9 7 08 ] o8 22 98 S A LA (L L IR A AL
FARAF (M BEAL) ) £ =F ——4
A+ 3 = AR R TR B 26 A (E
o T A AR T AE AR B R R S
% - € JITE BN ol R (S R T o S Y R =
BEMEE L ——HF+ A=A ER-%
— A = HZ A TEAE o R AL
TR W BT ER e B o A A HE Y RS A R
TE A T i B 50 DL A0S (A o Y = — —4F
0 =1 B E T 275 S U 270 A ] 7
BT A B B i (R BT L Pk R
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i N DI/ASS X [ We i S/ i DA =
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WA =T —— 4 — ] = A EAR NS
P gE AR ER A > M T ——AFE A AEA B
b ) A0 2 T A5 B ) 36 L PR AR e /A
ERERR BRREWEE F -+ A
St AR E A A S B2 AT
o DRMZBEYER —F——F+— A=+
H AP AL - 3 % —— %+ —H
= B G R R SR 2 R AR 4 AL T
fiEAE > S S0 7% R I H A TR 2 R 5 4 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #%# & 0% 2% Mk (41)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % ~F——4+ " =+—H L%

/9. gjroper/y, Plant an0/67u1)0me12/ 19. W& ~ s St

Leasehold Furniture,
land and Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Construction
buildings  improvements machinery equipment  Motor vehicles in progress Total
IR ] LEEIES iR B
i 52 303 i e e % B Rk i TR At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tl Tl Tl Tl Tl Tl
COST AR
At 1 January 2010 REF—FE—[—H 4,202,064 792,787 213,308 121,184 10,946 117,244 5,457,533
Exchange adjustment I e 48,968 11,452 3,149 1,840 197 2,261 67,867
Transferred to investment properties % # &% — — — — — (1,320) (1,320)
Additions wE 28,365 5,952 11,557 7,429 1,817 25,185 80,305
Disposals i - (232) (1,101) (124) (669) — (2,126)
Transfer L83 — 2,030 — — — (2,030 —
At 31 December 2010 WoF—F4
FZH=+—H 4,279,397 811,989 226,913 130,329 12,291 141,340 5,602,259
Exchange adjustment T St 8 64,206 18,143 4,427 7,259 311 6,791 101,137
Disposal of a subsidiaries (note 38) i — & A 7
(it 38) — — — (56) _ _ (56)
Additions E 203 11,265 6,111 18,084 1,177 272,469 309,309
Disposals e — (4,924) — (359) (841) — (6,124)
Transfer fLe 4,197 7,143 — — — (11,340) —
At 31 December 2011 WZF——FF
+ZA=+—H 4,348,003 843,616 237,451 155,257 12,938 409,260 6,006,525
DEPRECIATION ik
At 1 January 2010 REF-FE—[—H 841,217 508,076 134,522 74,708 3,996 — 1,562,519
Exchange adjustment [ 78 6,230 7,689 1,339 1,133 341 — 16,732
Provided for the year ERrE 119,339 60,211 16,518 11,093 1,907 - 209,068
Eliminated on disposals R R B - (232) (531) (107) (334) - (1,204)
At 31 December 2010 e
+ZA=t—H 966,786 575,744 151,848 86,827 5,910 - 1,787,115
Exchange adjustment SR 10,913 11,138 2328 2,296 856 - 27,531
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38) & —HIHEA R
(Hf3E38) — — — (33) _ _ (33)
Provided for the year AR 122,649 57,876 18,277 11,191 1,877 — 211,870
Eliminated on disposals R B — (4,924) — (323) (683) — (5,930
At31 December 2011 WoF——4f
+ZA=+—H 1,100,348 639,834 172,453 99,958 7,960 — 2,020,553
NET BOOK VALUES L
At 31 December 2011 WoF——4
+ZA=t—H 3,247,655 203,782 64,998 55,299 4,978 409,260 3,985,972
At 31 December 2010 REF—FAE
+ZA=+—H 3,312,611 236,245 75,065 43,502 6,381 141,340 3,815,144
Included in construction in progress is borrowing cost and 1 TREELRAF N B EA L 2 A B A B A
prepaid lease payments capitalised during the year, amounting BAIE > 43 Al 511,018,000 70 ( — & — FA4F -
to HK$11,018,000 (2010: HK$4,779,000) and HK$11,914,000 4,779,000 #57C) % 11,914,000 %570 ( = —FA4F
(2010: HK$8,544,000) respectively. 8,544,000 #57C) ©
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/9. yjroper/y, Plant anofayuz)omen/
/con/[nueo//

The above items of property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are depreciated after taking into
account their estimated residual value, using straight-line
method at the following rates per annum:

9. WZE ~ R E S wets e

Brred TSk - bty - ks B i B 5 n
W T HAGFH R - A E SR A4 R5H AT
-

123

Leasehold land Over the shorter of lease terms FHEE b J A i FH 4 4 Bl g -4
and buildings or 40 years (DA f 2
Leasehold improvements  Over the shorter of the lease LiENER/E S22 Fi 4 47 A ) AR
terms, or 5 years (LA 4 By i)
Plant and machinery 10 years TR I35 e e i T4
Furniture, fixtures 5 years BRI ~ e TLAF
and equipment Y&
Motor vehicles 5 years RS T
2011 2010
8 TR
HK$’000 HKS$'000
Tt T
The carrying amount of leasehold land and LR b R Ak S R T L 5 DA R b
buildings comprises land and buildings: MM
— long lease in Hong Kong — (LA U 32 R IR 4 B 467,633 476,502
— medium term lease in Hong Kong — A R 2 v A A 1,167,993 1,206,043
1,635,626 1,682,545
— medium term lease in the PRC — A R 32 R R A 1,612,029 1,630,066
3,247,655 3,312,611

The Group has pledged certain leasehold land and buildings in
Hong Kong with net book values of approximately HK$1,502.9
million (2010: HK$1,547.3 million) to secure general banking
facilities amount of HK$5 billion (2010: HK$4 billion) granted
to the Group.

Certain of the Group’s property, plant and equipment in the
PRC with carrying value of approximately HK$1,489.3 million
(2010: HK$1,500.8 million) have been pledged to secure loan
facility. Details of which are set out in note 43.

7 45 8 B 4K I 1 (.4 1,502,900,000 7 7T (-
F—FAE 1 1,547,300,000 4 00) 2 & T E L H
Bt > DI T A4 1815,000,000,000 %5 76 (—
F—FA4E © 4,000,000,000%70) Z —RIRATIEE

7 45 [3] 8 77 B 18 {H 49 1,489,300,000 i 0 (%
—Z4E 1 1,500,800,000 #k 7T ) 1 i H B 2 2 T
¥ WE A DI SRS > FRANE R
T 43 -

M a AT —2—aeg | 1D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁl‘fﬁi(@)

for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % ~F——F+ _H=+—H 1k

20. gjrepaz'ofﬁease yjaymen/s

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

I

20. TEATHH & K IE

AR SR 2 T R R AL

2011 2010
e S TR
HK$000 HK$'000
Tl Tk

Leasehold land in the PRC AL 2 A0 5 b
Medium-term lease (Note) HIRR A (B3R 1,395,848 1,356,486

Analysed for reporting purposes as: 2R HE AT

Current portion R 073 22,715 21,721
Non-current portion 7 BB 1y 1,373,133 1,334,765
1,395,848 1,356,486
Note: As at 31 December 2011, the Group has not yet obtained the legal fiaE : MRoF——FE P H =1 —H o A R USRI

document in respect of the land use rights in the PRC with carrying value
of HK$650,172,000 (2010: HK$621,721,000). The Group is in the process

of obtaining the land use rights certificate.

650,172,000 % 7C ( — % —F4F © 621,721,000 % 7T) {17
P 2z i T 2 3 SO o AR S JLIE JHE B 3% - Hb

A 8 2 T4 -

21. Bony~£7erm @eposi/s Parid 27. ef RIS
2011 2010
R4 R
HK$000 HK$'000
P RGP
Deposit paid for: AN SO AT 4
— acquisition of land use rights — S I el £ R 610,000 —
— acquisition of property, plant and equipment — — U2 - FgE K&kt 21,214 3,083
631,214 3,083
-~ : A i .
22. Ynterests in Associates 20, NGRS FIMERS
2011 2010
R4 R FAE
HK$000 HK$’000
T 0 T
Unlisted, at cost I b A 1,514,131 1,068,986
Discount arising on acquisition of WA Bl — R v A W) B AMRE R 7 A 2 BT
additional interest in an associate 114,556 114,556
Share of post-acquisition profits and JRE A Wi B A% 2 s ) B HL At A TET U A
other comprehensive income 411,152 165,286
2,039,839 1,348,828
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22. Ynterests in Associates (continued)
As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group had interests in

the following associates:

22, JRUE 2 A RESR ce
BoE - ERCFFE L A= H A

I A S B A R 2 AR EORMBE R AN T

Proportion of nominal
Place/country value of issued capital/
Form of b of establishment/  Principal place registered capital held Proportion of
Name of entity structure incorporation of operation by the Group voting power held Principal activity
akfbA REMPTECRITRA
iy 240 EHHMEA Ak % TEARNS sk A T € 4 b FEEH
2011 2010 2011 2010
SR | CERE | R | CRoRr
AR EER Incorporation PRC PRC 49% 49% 49% 49% Tnvestment holding of
AR Ll A PR i a group of companies
(“Beiren Group”) engaging in the operation
(note 1) of department stores,
(ML AR supermarkets and
(W3E1) property leasing
TEFrak - Bl R E
EHZEMAR 2GR
TALALBER T &5 Incorporation PRC PRC 48% 48% 48%  Retailing business
HRAMLAT i i G| in the PRC
(“Future Mall”) e v B B % T
(Note 2)
(TERT B )
(r5E2)
Dragon Sign Limited Incorporation Hong Kong PRC 50%. 50% 50% Investment holding of a
HEEHRAR FE AL itk Lilz1 company engaged in
operation of restaurants
in the PRC
EPERFRREE L AR
REHR
Notes: [T

(1

The Group’s 60% owned subsidiary holds equity interest of 49% (2010:
49%) in the Beiren Group.

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group’s 60% owned subsidiary,
Ample Sun Group Limited, held equity interest of 48% in Future Mall. As
at 31 December 2010, this 48% equity interest in Future Mall was
presented under “assets classified as held for sale” but the disposal was not
concluded at the end and the agreement was subsequently terminated on
30 June 2011 (note 29 below).

At 31 December 2010, Future Mall was also owned as to 51% directly by
the Beiren Group. During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Beiren
Group transferred its 51% equity interest in the Future Mall to a non
wholly-owned subsidiary and as a result reduced its effective interest
therein from 51% to 37.7% as at 31 December 2011.

3 ] AT PR ]

AL FRFA 60% HE i 2 BF i 22w 154 0 AN SE 8 49% (=
BRI 2 49%) AR -

e L A L S S S e N
H o AT 60% M 2 WO 24 71 4 R 48 B LA 7
FEAT 92 KT A 48% WA M3 < 18— % — B4 | )]
SF - a8 K TSN R 2511 [P
e 05 | LR Mt MR 0K 49 40 B
Bk =T —— AN = B AR (RRUT R 29) -

HER-FEL A= B AAEEEERFE51%
FERTRSG o = F——4F+ =] =+—HEEHMH >t
SR T 52 0 8 9 KR B35 51 % 1 IR AR BE 4 43 B — %
FREMEAR - F > HEHHGER - F——4F+ A
= HES51% ME37.7% ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) ## & B % it 2 Bl sk (41)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % ~F——4F+ _H =+—HILFE

I

22. Ynterests in Associates (continued)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s

23.

118

associates is set out below:

22. NBE S FIRE AR ()
5 B A S TR A 7 2 RS VR B

2011 2010

i T AT

HK$000 HK$'000

Tt T

Total assets B AR 10,649,337 8,719,961

Total liabilities B EsaE 8,026,830 6,467,056

Net assets e 2,622,507 2,252,905

Group’s share of associates’ net assets A [ A B N ) VR 2,039,839 1,348,828

Revenue I 45 16,807,982 11,049,111

Profits for the year AR AFJE i ] 305,654 160,084

Other comprehensive income oAt A A 58,904 33,180

Group’s share of profits of associates for the year — 7s 42 [3] A5 B2 2\ 7] A 4F B i ] 221,892 99,632
Group’s share of other comprehensive income A B R A W ) AR A

of associates for the year HoAh A A 42,762 20,240

Ynterest in atg%in/

(th{y

{?(janﬁm[ﬂ%/

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group had interests in the

following significant jointly controlled entity:

23. & S [F] 2 A A

RN oF - ER CF-RET A= —H A
S| N 3 B L R P B A R A

Proportion
of nominal
value of
Place of issued Proportion
Form of business establishment/ capital held of voting
Name of entity operation by the Group power held Principal activity
A% 445 1
CFATRA Jin F B SR
A BEL, R T 48 BE ] Ll R
L VEWT RS AR AR Sino-foreign equity  PRC 50% 50%  Property holding
(Shanghai Joinbuy Gilo and leasing
City Plaza Co., Ltd.) TG EGERE Y ESSEEDST N

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011



23.

24.

Ynterest in a goz'lz/fy Controlled

812/1'17 /con/inueofj

Jointly controlled entity is accounted for using the equity

method of accounting:

23. A —F I FE I E RS @

S [7] 42 o) B F AT B AR AR

2011 2010
A ZE R
HK$000 HK$'000
Tt Tt
Cost of unlisted investments in a jointly — LR PR B R TR 2 AR
controlled entity 433,104 433,104
Share of post-acquisition profits and A3 AR 2 i R S HA A T SOA
other comprehensive income, net of dividend R E YRS
received 52,985 34,825
486,089 467,929

The summarised financial information related to the Group’s

A B AR 2 0 () 42 o T 2 i S R

interest in the jointly controlled entity is set out below: it R
2011 2010
G S TR R
HK$000 HK$'000
Tt T
Non-current assets I i B 1,409,082 1,426,688
Current assets L) 19,645 35,397
Current liabilities i) A 246,769 325,627
Non-current liabilities N =R 209,780 200,600
Income A 235,068 188,429
Expenses BH 176,282 139,925
Other comprehensive income HoAt 4> A 19,506 15,862
Group'’s share of profit of the jointly controlled 7 42 [E) A\ ] 42 o) O R
entity 29,393 24,252
Group’s share of other comprehensive income A S5 (8] R A [ 4 o) At
of the jointly controlled entity EXTON 9,753 7,931
. sy
Ynventories 24 1+ 8
2011 2010
ZE AR TR FAE
HK$000 HKS$'000
T#T T
Merchandise held for resale FEA 1R e 5 71,949 61,611
Hmmmemanan —2ren 119



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) ## & B % it 2 Bl sk (41)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % ~F——4F+ _H =+—HILFE

I

25. Trade and Other Recervables

25, IR 3 Ky HAth B Wi ik T

2011 2010

&4 TR

HK$’000 HK$'000

TH#T T#TT

Trade receivables JREMS A 3K 93,128 73,762
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts W R R (2,070) (2,665)
91,058 71,097

Prepayment TA AT K 71,833 44,522
Deposit paid B4 20,869 15,309
Value added tax (“VAT”) receivable TS 38 (B 69,181 59,870
Others HoAt 73,732 23,214
Total trade and other receivables JHRE oS B o LAt R o 4 326,673 214,012

The Group's retail sales to customers are mainly made in cash,
through debit card or credit card payments without a defined
credit policy, as its major trade receivables arise from credit
card sales and the receivables are normally settled 30 days in
arrear. The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
net of allowance for doubtful debts presented based on the
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

AR T i A o R G R B DIBLE AR
FLAR R B TR AR o dhy AR 4 ) 3 B AR A Rk
A EAE AR 8 - T H RO FOE F R = A A
W Im] > S e B A SR o DA 8y I i o 0 )
AR RSO AR (I B R AR A ) AR B SE H I
R AT o

120

2011 2010

I 2 TR R

HK$000 HK$'000

Tt T

0-30 days OH=30H 89,456 67,432
31-60 days 31HZ 60 H 1,335 2,495
61-90 days 61 H&90H 235 236
Over 90 days o0 H 32 934
91,058 71,097

Included in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors
with aggregate carrying amount of HK$2,053,000 (2010:
HK$1,170,000) which are past due at the end of the reporting
period for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss. The Group does not hold any collateral over these

balances. The average age of these receivables is 90 days (2010:

90 days).

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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25. Trade and otber Kecervables

26.

/con/[nueo//

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due

but not impaired

25, JESER 3K N LA JE IS R TE (o)

8 Y1 AR L 2 W VR e ik 1 e i 4

2011 2010

A ZE R

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#x THTT

0-30 days 0HZE30H 1,786 —
31-60 days 31 HZ 60 H — —
61-90 days 61 H#90H 235 236
Over 90 days i oo H 32 934
2,053 1,170

The Group has not provided fully for all receivables over 90
days because historical experience is such that receivables are

recoverable from the relevant debtors.

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debt on

trade receivables

A G [ S R 9 BT A R 90 R JE ISR A A
i > TR 2 AR B 1 A - SR T AR AT R

e [ % 56 IR

JRE W W sk A W 98 A 52 )

2011 2010

G S TR R

HK$000 HKS$'000

Tt T

Balance at beginning of the reporting period s W A5 ok 2,665 3,578
Written off as uncollectible SRR (595) (913)
Balance at end of the reporting period W A R 2,070 2,665

Amount @ue/rom
Gon/ro[[eoféjn/i/y

//0/ a goz'n/[y

As at 31 December 2011, the amount due from a jointly

controlled entity is prepaid rentals, unsecured and interest free.

As at 31 December 2010, the amount due to a jointly

controlled entity is trade nature and aged within three months.

26. MEW (EAT) — FRIL[E] 428 i & fe

NIH

TE T = BRYBRE R B -
MK R o — R —RE+ A =+ — AN

WAV - RIS =M X -

3 ] AT PR ]

IR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁl‘fﬁi(@)

for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % ~F——F+ _H=+—H 1k

I

27. Financial Assets at Farr Oalue

24.

122

7£r0uyé (erofz'/ or LDoss

27 ¥ EFFARIZ

Bl

2011 2010
R4 R
HK$000 HK$’000
Tt Tk

Financial assets held for trading purpose: FRE B BT %& 2 4 a2
— listed equity securities in Hong Kong — AT TR S 68,430 88,702
— listed equity securities in Singapore — RTINS E T RAS R R 10,483 13,029
— listed equity securities in London — AR T A R 3,570 —
— unlisted debt securities — JF bilifiEds 1,011,431 671,041
1,093,914 772,772

Others: HoAth

— unlisted equity securities I b RARRE I 50,660 13,598
1,144,574 786,370

At 31 December 2011, financial assets at FVTPL with carrying
amount of HK$465,907,000 (2010: HK$154,429,000) have
been pledged as security for loan facility granted to the Group.

As at 31 December 2011, the unlisted equity securities
represent the retained 10% equity interest in Shenyang Jiajian
after the disposal as set out in note 38. The fair value is
determined having regards to the most recent disposal
transaction between the Group and a third party and adjusted
by applying discount for lack of marketability of the
investment.

The fair value of the remaining financial assets at FVTPL is
determined based on the quoted market prices and valuations
provided by counterparty financial institution with reference to
price derived from the over-the-counter market.

zdﬂé‘ %d/d]?CGS dﬁO/GG\S‘A

At the end of the reporting period, bank balances and cash
comprised mainly short-term deposits which carry interests at
prevailing market rates ranging from 0.01% to 2.66% per
annum (2010: 0.001% to 0.36% per annum) with maturity
not more than 6 months.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following amounts
denominated in currency other than functional currency of the
relevant group entities:

28.

ATE——dEF T = B B SR
465,907,000 % 70 ( & — F 4 : 154,429,000 %
JC) 2N TEFE AR 2 SR E - DIERIZ T
AR LE [ Rl G R o

B FE - = H s R LT RAE SR
JHARERI M 5E 38 AR S (E I Z AR M ERZ 10%
HERR o FLO P IR DA A 412 [ B 5 = 0 2 M) dec il
SO A 5 oy R TR B 45 e i 3 2l e T

% .

RN Z A TR AR 2 BB 2 TR
MR I R 2 T 5 B R A 7 R ik 2 2%
BN G 85 T E T 5

SRATEE AT S B 4

R I A H o SRATE T KB A R
BATHT SRR G R GERI R AT 0.01 JEE 2.66 J5)
(B —FAF  AFFRAF0.001 B E0.36 1) H
AR Z i 75 A8 H B0 S8 A 3K -

SRATHSAF KB ELAE N 31 LUAH B Sk I RS T Re
WA B W TS A

2011 2010

— TR AT

HKS$’000 HK$"000

T#E Tl

Us$ e 561,057 543,785

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011



29.

30.

C&;ﬁv;e/s G/assz’/z’eofas ]fe/offor 29. T ATFHELEEE
ale

The conditional sale and purchase agreement signed on 16
December 2009 in respect of disposal of Ample Sun Group
Limited was terminated on 30 June 2011 due to non-
fulfillment of certain conditions precedent. As a result, the
assets attributable to Ample Sun Group Limited is no longer
classified as held for sale and reclassified as interests in
associates as at 31 December 2011. The assets classified as held
for sale at 31 December 2010 represented the Group’s
investment cost in Ample Sun Group Limited amounting of
HK$445,145,000 and share of post-acquisition loss amounting
of HK$8,236,000.

ATEENFET AT ANH > AR EGERE
FI AR AR FT 2 AR S ik A Toeik
BefE R REJB AT N % — —4ER H =+ B pisk
ke W A=F——HE+ZH=+—H @R
SR PR W BT A R 40 R T A w) R
fi o RSB AFERE - RZF—FTF 2
H = BB R AR 8 7 A A 1 i
72 R AT PR W 2 % & AR 445,145,000 5 o0
R AR Wi 42 i 43 Tid 2 598 8,236,000 s T ©

2011 2010

SRR R

HK$000 HK$'000

Tt T

Interest in an associate held for sale A — F AR SN w2 — 436,909

Trade and Other yjayagfes 30. JEAST R S HoAth E AT 3R IH

2011 2010

& e S 2a8

HK$’000 HKS$'000

T#T T#ETT

Trade payables JREAT IR 291,820 257,526
Concessionaire sales payable JEASH 4 I AR Y B S OE 1,168,121 997,314
Deferred income i3 13E 151,786 137,528
Rental deposit received CU i B4 53,378 50,667
Accrued expense e 214,395 286,392
VAT payable JREAST B (BB 31,298 21,723
Others HoAth 167,935 258,313
2,078,733 2,009,463

MR BRI A RAT B4R
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for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % ~F——F+ _H=+—H 1k

30. Trade and Otber Tayagfes

317.

124

/con/I'nueo//

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented

I

30. FEAS B 3K M HoAth FEAST R IE ()

AT 70 T 309 THD 45 0 0 B A0 MR AR 2 % 552 11 04

based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period. Z IR T o
2011 2010
- TR
HKS$000 HK$’000
T#T T
0-30 days OH%E30H 251,839 225,904
31-60 days 31H®60H 37,459 29,263
61-90 days 61 H#90H 514 557
Over 90 days oo H 2,008 1,802
291,820 257,526

The average credit period of trade payables and concessionaire
sales payable is within 45 days. All concessionaire sales payable
are aged within 45 days. The Group has financial risk
management policies in place to ensure that all payables are

paid within the credit timeframe.

A ASF B B A T AR 5 T 2 P 1 1 )
545 H AN o BT MEAST 5 5 S0 85 45 3R0E 2 R %
¥k as H AN o 48 45 [ W05 i 45 BRI »
Tl AR BT AT R SE A B B K A =

. S AN
DLank gorrowznys 37. AT &
2011 2010
R R4
HK$000 HK$’000
Tl Tk
Bank borrowings comprised bank loans and SRATAE B0l SRAT BRI -
analysed as: S RA R A3 AT
Secured EEE el 5,865,874 3,315,600
Unsecured HESEAT 757,860 82,600
6,623,734 3,398,200
Carrying amount repayable: JE R R MR T E -
On demand or within one year JEE SR B —F N IR 2,693,114 2,985,200
More than one year, but not exceeding two years — 445 {H 8 i 4F 395,300 59,000
More than two years, but not exceeding W AEARAE A B o = 4F
three years 898,940 59,000
More than three years, but not exceeding AR E AN A DY A
four years 674,520 70,800
More than four years, but not exceeding VU A% {H AN g8 T4
five years 1,887,820 70,800
Over five years B AR 74,040 153,400
6,623,734 3,398,200
Less: Amounts due within one year shown ks AR B & R — A N 2
under current liabilities 2 FJE (2,693,114) (2,985,200)
Amount due after one year —FERBE| W 2 FOH 3,930,620 413,000

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011



31. LBank f/?orrowz'nys/con/mueo//

Fixed/Variable rate borrowings comprise:

37. SRATIE & )

I E LR TR SR

Carrying amount

O e L
2011 2010
. S S TR
HKS$000 HKS$'000
SR AR
HKS$ bank loans at a range from HIBOR + 0.29%  #s e 17458k » % & MR 8717 264k B
per annum to HIBOR + 1.22% per annum! IR 0.29 B A 1,22 JHFHE O 5,400,000 2,700,000
US$ bank loans at a range from FETCERAT R > He Al SUERAT W] 2
LIBOR + 0.3% per annum to LIBOR + PB4 R 0.3 E 0.35 HgHE @
0.35% per annum® 433,974 155,400
Other RMB bank loans® HAb N REERITER O 789,760 542,800
Total borrowings {5 %E 6,623,734 3,398,200

o Repayable in one to five year (2010: one year) and interest rates will be

repriced every one month to three months.

@ Repayable on demand and interest rates will be repriced every three
months.
) Included in RMB bank loans were amounts of HK$431,900,000 (2010:

HK$542,800,000) which were repayable in six years (2010: seven years)
and the loans carry interest with reference to benchmark loan rates of
financial institutions set by The People’s Bank of China. The remaining
RMB bank loans carry at fixed interest rate of 3.5% per annum and

repayable in three years.

The ranges of effective interest rates of the borrowings are also
equal to contracted interest rates ranging from 0.34% to 6.63%

per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has undrawn

ORI (CF R ) R TR
A T -

) B SER AR - A S0 1 =0 ] TR AR -

o N BB SR AT BE 30 4245 431,900,000 # 0 ( —F —FA4F:
542,800,000 ¥ 70) Z B - AN (ZF 4 L)
R A B A 2 R B L2 BN RBRAT 2 2 4
TR A O O 3R 5y B HEE o BRI N R MR ORAT S UV
FEAAE L 3.5 B 2 [ 7 Bl 5 S B0 = AR AT -

SRR RIEE (F BN F0.34)E % 6.63 ) IR

BLRT 49 R AR o

TR A IS F A 2 P R AT

borrowing facilities as follows: R ¢
2011 2010
G 5 TR R
HK$’000 HKS$'000
T T

Floating rate e\

— expiring within one year — —FENEH — 23,600
— expiring beyond one year — — R EI 261,666 38,850
261,666 62,450

MR BRI A RAT B4R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) ## & B % it 2 Bl sk (41)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % ~F——4F+ _H =+—HILFE

I

32. Derivative Financial Lrabilities 32. fiiHE 4 ml A il

2011 2010
&4 TR
HK$’000 HKS$’000
TH#T T#TT
Other derivatives (not under hedge accounting): HoAl ik TH
(RS Ersh) -
Interest rate swaps FI e f ] 9,994 —
Foreign currency forward contracts AR 0] & 4 4,339 —
14,333 —
Major terms of the interest rate swaps are as follows: R w18 R T
Notional amount Maturity Swaps (note)
HESW FWA ) (FFRE)
US$3,000,000 20 May 2021 From 3.23% to LIBOR
3,000,000 3T CECHETHA A H1 3.23 J2 22 A SRAT ) 3607 B
US$3,000,000 9 June 2041 From 4.025% to LIBOR
3,000,000 T SR —AEANHIJULHE H1 4.025 JE 5 ffiy 8R4 7 7] 27 B
Note: The Group will pay fixed interest on the notional amount semi-annually BEFRE = AR 2 R 7 A A 4 42 388 S AT 1 2 )G 42 ) e 4 1
and receive floating interest on the notional amount quarterly based on BRI S BRI B FLE
the interest rate swaps contracts.
Major terms of the foreign currency forward contracts are as AN A AT E BT
follows:
Notional amount Maturity Exchange rates
HEEW FWHA i 2%
Buy US$19,889,841 13 April 2012 US$1: RMB 6.536
£19,889,841 %G CE-THENAT=A 1 %705 6.536 AR
Buy US$13,848,284 25 May 2012 US$1: RMB 6.499
# 13,848,284 3% CER-CAELA ST 1 £I056.499 AR
Buy US$6,155,740 25 May 2012 US$1: RMB 6.498
5 6,155,740 0 SRR A H 1 #I05,6.498 N

HZ@ Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011



33.

34.

@e/erreaf Tax Liabilities

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised

33. #E fk Bl TE B4
DATR B AN 4 [ Rl 5 2 3 T 408 i i TE B DL RO AR

and movements thereon during the current and prior years: AR BB AR BERY SR E) -
Distributable
profits of
PRC
Property, subsidiaries,
plant and associates
equipment/ and jointly
investment controlled
properties entity Total
o B B 2 W)
W~ W R Wk A R
Befl BE LRI
mE AR HEk
HK$'000
(note) HK$000 HKS$'000
T
(BH3E) F#c Tt
At 1 January 2010 A E—FE—H—H 146,551 22,432 168,983
Charge to profit or loss (note 13) OB AR (3R 13) 12,767 16,826 29,593
At 31 December 2010 h R —RE+ - H=+—H 159,318 39,258 198,576
Charge to profit or loss (note 13) ER B4 (FfEE13) 41,690 19,356 61,046
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38) HiE — IR 2 7 (B 3E 38) (39,027) — (39,027)
At 31 December 2011 R —— = 1—H 161,981 58,614 220,595

Note: The amounts represent deferred tax liabilities recognised in relation to
accelerated tax depreciation of property, plant and equipment and fair

value changes of investment properties.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$606.3 million (2010: HK$491.6
million) available for offset against future profits. No deferred
tax asset has been recognised in respect of such losses for both
years due to unpredictability of future profit streams. At 31
December 2011, all tax losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

Amount Due to a Non-
Gon/ro//iny Stbarebolder 0/
Subsidiaries

The amount is unsecured and interest free. The non-controlling
shareholder of subsidiaries agreed not to demand for
repayment within one year from the end of the reporting
period.

34.

WERE LIRS - WR BB 2 PRBL I T 8 et e 3

F 2P ( 5 ) 2 AT BT A e -

R AR A AL A B A BUEEIRL
606,300,000 ¥ G ( = F — F4F 1 491,600,000 #5
JC) AT HVEREES B A& A o i H A% T A A IR 4 D
FE > W5 2 A B A A 49 31 20 3R 0t e 415 e 5 A A
BEEE R _F——HF+_H=1T—H > Ff
R0 T s 1 4 ] S R 6 e o

JREAST B JBg 2 W] — 44 JE 2 IR

Z KA

%k Ty A S 5 o BRI 2 W) 2 I R B
7] AN B BORTE A IR AR — 4 N (U U -

3 ] AT PR ]

IR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %Aﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁni(@)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % ~ZF——4F+ _H =+—H1E

. L
35. Share Gapz/a/ 35. &A=
Details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during HWE_Z—-—F T H=T—HIEFE » &2AH
the year ended 31 December 2011 are as follows: BB FERE W
Number of
shares Amount
ety 8 H HIH
HKS$’000
T#T
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each as at FHE~H—H
1 January 2010, 31 December 2010 and —FEF A= HK
31 December 2011 —4iE+ " H=+—H
E%E{E0.00S HESTWARL S]] 4,000,000,000 20,000
Issued and fully paid: BT AL
At 1 January 2010 — ordinary shares of HFE-FE-H—H
HK$0.005 each — 3R TAI{E 0.005 5 Tt 2 L@ 1,673,620,000 8,368
Exercise of share options — ordinary shares of T8 I IR HE — 491
HK$0.005 each T {1 0.005 ¥ 7T 2 5 40 i 5,365,000 27
At 31 December 2010 W_E-FETFZH=Z1—H 1,678,985,000 8,395
Exercise of share options — ordinary shares of AT RS I — BRI 0.005 HE 7T
HK$0.005 each (note a) 2B (KsEa) 4,016,000 20
Shares repurchased (note b) W] 2 ey (B3R D) (15,487,500) (77)
At 31 December 2011 WoER—— =+ —H 1,667,513,500 8,338
Notes: i
(a) During the year, 100,000 shares (2010: 596,000 shares) of HK$0.005 each (a) RN o AR AR I R A AT =B AR RO 2 —
were issued at HK$6.16 per share (2010: HK$6.16 per share) upon FFIUF MR (2 25 L 51 36) B4 AL R ik 6.16 5 T
exercise of the 2005 share option (as defined under note 36) and (ZZ—Z4E  Flke.1615I0) #17100,000 I (—F—%
3,916,000 shares (2010: 4,769,000 shares) of HK$0.005 each were issued A 1 596,000 11%) A ML {H 0.005 #5702 By S 4% 45 K 6.40
at HK$6.40 per share (2010: HK$6.40 per share) upon exercise of the T (2% R 4@%46 407 78) 173,916,000 /% (=
2009 share option (as defined under note 36) of the Company by share T4 1 4,769,000 ) BT £ 0.005 PEJEZJJH’} it
option holders and all these shares rank pari passu with other ordinary M5 7 T34 B AR 2 ) FLAh 28 e A () S i
shares of the Company in all respects.
(b) During the year, the Company repurchased its own shares on the Stock (b) R A FIERE 52 7 BT B ] 2 A m IRy RS A T
Exchange as follows:
Number of
ordinary shares Price per share Aggregate
Month of HK$0.005 each 1B AR AR consideration
repurchased 4% B I 0.005 # 7T Highest Lowest paid
[DECYER7 S 2 e e 9 H B I A B abET
000 HK$ HK$ HK$'000
T Tt T Tkt
September 2011 SR —-—FILA 351 18.80 17.94 6,425
October 2011 —E——44H 7,489 18.44 16.54 131,293
November 2011 ZE A 6,810 19.98 17.18 128,436
December 2011 —“E——fE+TA 838 17.18 16.64 14,225
15,488 280,379

Note: The above shares were repurchased and cancelled during the year.

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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36. Share- Based Taymen/

Transactions

The 2004 Share Option Scheme

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was
adopted for a period of 10 years commencing 27 March 2004.
Under the Scheme, the Company may grant options to selected
full-time employees and directors of the Company and its
subsidiaries, to subscribe for shares in the Company.
Additionally, the Company may, from time to time, grant share
options to eligible advisors and consultants to the Company
and its subsidiaries at the discretion of the Board of Directors.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any point of time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders. The
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to any individual in any
one year is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any point in time, without prior approval
from the Company’s shareholders. Options granted to
substantial shareholders, independent non-executive directors,
or any of their respective associates (including a discretionary
trust whose discretionary objects include a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director or any
of their respective associates) in excess of 0.1% of the
Company'’s share capital or with a value in excess of
HK$5,000,000 must be approved by the Company’s
shareholders.

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit
specified in the offer letter (which shall not be later than 5 days
from the date of offer), upon payment of HK$1 per option.
Options may be exercised at any time during a period
commencing on or after the date on which the option is
accepted and deemed to be granted and expiring on a date to
be notified by the Board of Directors to each grantee which
shall not be more than 10 years from the date on which the
option is accepted and deemed to be granted. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and will
not be less than the higher of (i) the closing price of the
Company'’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the average closing
price of the shares for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company'’s share.
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36. Share- Based gjaymen/

I

130

Transactions (continued)

The 2009 Share Option Scheme

The adoption of a new share option scheme (the “2009 Share
Option Scheme”) was approved by the shareholders of the
Company in an extraordinary general meeting held on 3
March 2009 for a period of 10 years commencing from 3
March 2009 as incentive or reward for the contribution of the
eligible participants to the growth of the Group and to provide
to the Group with a more flexible means to reward,
remunerate, compensate and/or provide benetfits to the eligible
participants.

Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme, the Company may
grant options to (a) any full-time or part-time employee of the
Company and/or any subsidiary; (b) any directors (including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
director) of the Company and/or any subsidiary; and (c) any
consultant or adviser (whether professional or otherwise and
whether on an employment or contractual or honorary basis
or otherwise and whether paid or unpaid), distributor,
contractor, supplier, service provider, agent, customer and
business partner of the Company and/or any subsidiary who,
at the sole determination of the Board of Directors, have
contributed or will contribute to the Company and/or any
subsidiary.

There is no general requirement on the minimum period for
which an option must be held or the performance targets
which must be achieved before an option can be exercised
under the terms of the 2009 Share Option Scheme. However,
the Board of Directors may offer to grant any options subject to
such terms and conditions in relation to the minimum period
of the options to be held and/or the performance targets to be
achieved before such options can be exercised and/or any other
terms as the Board of Directors may determine in its absolute
discretion.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options which may be granted under the 2009 Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 166,860,950 shares,
representing 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at 3 March 2009, the date on which the 2009 Share Option
Scheme was approved by the shareholders of the Company.
The Board of Directors may seek approval by shareholders in
general meeting to renew such limit provided that it must not
exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company at the
date of approval of the renewed limit. The maximum aggregate
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
2009 Share Option Scheme and any other scheme must not
exceed such number of shares as shall represent 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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36. Share- Based Taymen/

Transactions (continued)

The 2009 Share Option Scheme (continued)

Where options are proposed to be granted to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company or any of their respective associates, and the
proposed grant of options will result in the total number of
shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all options
already granted and to be granted (including options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant representing
in aggregate over 0.1% of the issued share capital of the
Company on the date of offer and having an aggregate value,
based on the closing price of the shares at the date of each
grant, in excess of HK$5 million, such grant of options must be
subject to the approval of the shareholders taken on a poll at
general meeting. The connected person involved in such
proposed grant of options and all other connected persons of
the Company must abstain from voting in such general
meeting (except that any connected person may vote against
the proposed grant provided that his intention to do so has
been stated in the relevant circular to the shareholders).

Option granted must be taken up within the time limit
specified in the offer letter (which shall not be later than 5 days
from the date of offer), upon payment of HK$1 on acceptance
of the offer. Options may be exercised at any time during a
period to be notified by the Board of Directors to each grantee
which shall not be more than 10 years from the date of the
offer. The exercise price is determined by the directors of the
Company, and will be at least the highest of (i) the closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant, (ii) the
average closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the nominal
value of the Company’s share.
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36. Share- Based Taymen/

Uransactions (continued)
Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

36. B35t FR3E 5 )

A SO SRR 2 e I T

Adjusted
Exercise exercise
Option type Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period price price
Vi P HEE BB 5 B8 W A1 [ERCXisd TR
HK$ HK$
T HEYIH
Under the 2004 Share Option Scheme
1E 2004 4 WEHCHERTH T
2005 7.10.2005 7.10.2005-7.10.2008 7.10.2006-26.3.2014 12.32 6.16
TR TETAR CEEFHFETALRERE CEENFETALAER (note 1)
THLH CERNETHLH ZE-PEZH A (B&EL)
2007A 31.8.2007 31.8.2007-1.10.2011 1.10.2009-26.3.2014 37.00 18.50
CERELEH CERLAE CEEREEANAZYHE SFEFNETAHE (note 1)
AH=+—H “E TR CE-AE=HZNH (PfF3E 1)
2007B 31.8.2007 31.8.2007-1.10.2010 1.10.2008-26.3.2014 37.00 18.50
TERERELEL ZERELAE CEELENAZT—HBE SEFRNETFA-BE (note 1)
NH=+—H ZER=FETH—H TER—UEZH A NH (BF&ED)
2007C 31.8.2007 31.8.2007-1.10.2010 1.10.2008-26.3.2014 37.00 18.50
TRBELAEN TEREALAE ZEEEFANAZT R ZEREANFETHA-HR (note 1)
ANAZ+—H R -FELH—H CE-PEZH A (BH&EL)
Under the 2009 Share Option Scheme
TE 2009 FWEBRE R 8
2009 (note 2) 2.2.2009(note 3)  2.2.2009-7.2.2012 7.2.2010-26.3.2014 6.40 6.40
ZERRIUE (M5E2) CERIF CERNEN A CE-FECNLHE
THZH M3 —EF—-T4ETHEH R —WAE=AZANH
Notes: Bf3E -
(1) The exercise price has been adjusted upon sub-division of shares of the (1) THECR _EZEZLFE LA L doolETHESR

Company of HK$0.01 to HK$0.005 on 27 September 2007.

(2) During the year ended 31 December 2009, 20,400,000 share options were
newly granted as replacement for the cancelled share options under
option types of 2007A and 2007B and this is accounted for as a
modification of the original share options.

(3) Option subject to approval by independent shareholders was proposed and
granted by the Board of Directors on 2 February 2009. The approval was
subsequently obtained on 3 March 2009, which is the date of grant as
defined in accordance with HKFRS 2.

A R AR PR AR 2 0.005 HEIC ©

(2) BOE =R IAET A =+ —HIREE > AKX AR
20,400,000 T3 - ARUIY — B R LR R B LA
C I EHERRISTIE T O a6 2 R - 36 LA ol i e i 2

T RAM ©

3) R TR R UAE T T E R R A ST IR R
2 A > FLAR AR A e S i M S5 2 B e 2

R A = F T U = = ARSI ©
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36. cSéare~yjase0/Taymen/ 36. AR AR AL Ty ¢
Transactions (continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s TR TR B S E S PR 2w B 2 2
share options held by certain employees and directors: &
2011 TR AR
Outstanding Outstanding
at Exercised Lapsed at
31 December during during 31 December
Option type 2010 the year the year 2011
A S 22 [/ S S
+ZH=Z+—H +ZA=Z+—H
Ji 2 2 W ARAT 1 AN AT AN R W ARAT 8
2005 e e 694,000 (100,000) — 594,000
2007C EREEER 17,020,000 — — 17,020,000
2009 CRTIAFE 15,107,000 (3,916,000) (240,000) 10,951,000
Total it 32,821,000 (4,016,000) (240,000) 28,565,000
Exercisable at end of the year A4 H] FAT{l 22,859,000
HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$
It i o It
Weighted average exercise B ORI 17 (A
price per share 12.67 6.39 6.40 13.60
2010 g
Outstanding Outstanding
at Exercised Lapsed at
31 December during during 31 December
Option type 2009 the year the year 2010
e SIS A
+oA=t—H +ZA=+—R
S PRI i AT FNATE CANPSIE i A AT
2005 CRERAT 1,290,000 (596,000) — 694,000
2007C ZETLEN 17,020,000 — — 17,020,000
2009 TERENAE 19,960,000 (4,769,000) (84,000) 15,107,000
Total Fii 38,270,000 (5,365,000) (84,000) 32,821,000
Exercisable at end of the year ~ JAE& T FAT{l 20,929,000
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
T T T T
Weighted average exercise TRONRET AT
price per share 11.77 6.37 6.40 12.67

In respect of the share options exercised during the year, the
weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is
HK$21.13 (2010: HK$14.99).

The Group recognised an expense in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income of approximately HK$2.5
million (2010: HK$15.4 million) for the year ended 31
December 2011 in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

AN CAT I RENT S > AT 2 I HE T
YIRS B 2113 Me o0 (ZF —F4E 1 14994870 -

WEEE—-—F T A =t —HIEFE > KE
B S0 AR 2 ) 45 D S R % 4 T A i 3 W R BH S 4
2,500,000 #5 7 (—F—%4F © 15,400,000 #570) °

133

MR BRI A RAT B4R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) ?ﬁﬁﬁ?fﬁiﬁﬁl‘fﬁi(@)

for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % ~F——F+ _H=+—H 1k

I

37. Keserves

34.

134

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for foreign
investment enterprises in the PRC, the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to maintain a statutory surplus reserve
fund. Appropriation to such reserve is made out of net profit
after taxation as reflected in the statutory financial statements
of the PRC subsidiaries while the amounts and allocation basis
are decided by its board of directors annually. The statutory
surplus reserve fund can be used to make up prior year losses,
if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by means
of capitalisation.

37. fatithi

FEAT B b B S A 2 2 A B R SR - AR ]
2 R B O R R B E AR o AT B R 2
TG BB e 2 R ik o B R 2 BRBLR
RUA - TR Bl YE S AR E < 3
FE O3B A AT R TR AR B 2 e AR () > I
FLEAAL 2 77 s S A o

C/)Asposafofa cSugsz'ofz'ary 36. & —[H] B &g A F]
On 17 June 2011, the Group entered into a sale and purchase R ——ERA TR AEEBR—HE =T
agreement with a third party for the disposal of 90% equity N F)ET LB Wk o DAE N R 540,000,000
interests in a subsidiary, Shenyang Jiajian, at a cash JG (AR & A %9 657,726,000 95 76 ) H B — [ B 8
consideration of RMB540,000,000 (or equivalent to AR EDERZ 90% 4R o WL O —F——
approximately HK$657,726,000). The transaction was FrH=FT—HZEW -
completed on 31 October 2011.
Analysis of assets and liabilities disposed of: A 2 EEM AT
HK$’000
Tk
Investment property EVa-L7/ES 662,352
Property, plant and equipment LES N 23
Other receivables oAb R Wi 2,710
Bank balances and cash SRATHS AT B 61,000
Other payables HoAth A5 3IH (180,398)
Tax payables JREAE i 42 (56)
Deferred tax liabilities 0 AL ol T 2 £ (39,027)
506,604
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE A — [HT B8 2 ) 2 Wi i
Consideration received S EE 657,726
Net assets disposed of HEZIRERE (506,604)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss PR Z A TERI AT 4 2
retained BRI 50,660
Cumulative exchange differences in respect of the KL B A ERE - AR
net assets of the subsidiary reclassified from equity TG M S T B R A 1
to profit or loss on loss of control of the subsidiary AR 36,067
Gain on disposal A Z kg 237,849
Gain on disposal recognised: 2 i R
as realised gain on change in fair value of BEYEN T HEE 2 S B
investment properties 201,782
as reclassification of exchange differences accumulated ¢ B 5o fif 4 57 70380 5 Hoflig A 22
in exchange reserve to other income BT HE LS 36,067
237,849
Cash inflow arising on disposal: R T A A 2 BLB A
Cash consideration received BB 4R 657,726
Less: Bank balance and cash disposed of o BEZRITAE MRS (61,000)
596,726
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39.

40.

. 7] . 7 . ey K — e
Discount ﬂrzszny on ﬁcyuzsz/zon 39. Wi — F Wi E S A BEAIMRE 4 oS
o/ ., . N o
?[ﬂofofzfzona[gn/eres/ in an 2 YTk
Associate
In February 2010, the Group’s 60% owned subsidiary, /4t /E —H AR AR 60% BAEZ W
TR EH FR/A | (“Hebei Xuyuan”), entered into an equity R A AR > BT E S KT B A B R A IR TT AR
interest transfer agreement and a debt transfer agreement with ~H (Ff‘ﬁfTJ);%i%Eﬁ ) %ﬁffﬁﬂﬁ%%
AL KN 5 i B EE A BRITATE A F) (“Xiantianxia”), an i e AP I > R (1) SRR I R
independent third party, whereby (i) Xiantianxia agreed to TR LA PRI A EE R P £ 52 5 A7 R (T
transfer to Hebei Xuyuan its 100% equity interest in -t 3% e 48 O ME G J) Z2100% M fE AU N R
M5 & 2 4 IR/A 7] (“Beijing Huitong”) at a consideration of 100,000,000 7C (A1 # 1 4 113,700,000 # 7t ) i
RMB100.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$113.7 B PO S AL NS B 2 B M (i) SBR[ 2
million) and its major asset is investment in Beiren Group and AL T AL J 5 R L Eﬁ&?ZF@H&ZE@?{K/\E “'r'?%‘
(ii) Xiantianxia agreed to transfer to Hebei Xuyuan an account 246,500,000 7 - fCAF SPGB ] = SE AL Lt
receivable of RMB246.5 million owing by Beijing Huitong for a M HEM AR - AEM AL NI REC Y2
consideration of the same amount. Following the completion 49% °
of the aforesaid transfer of equity interest, the Group’s equity
interest in the Beiren Group had been increased to 49%.
An amount of HK$114.6 million, representing the excess of the fE{E 114,600,000 75 7T (£ A 175 JE 4 T k5l
Group’s share of net fair value of the identifiable assets and 7 S B T O T BRSO A (9 22380 TR
liabilities over the cost of the acquisition was recognised in TR -EBELTH = HILFE R
protfit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2010.
0pera/1'ny Leases 40. $EE
The Group as lessee A EAE 25 AR AL
2011 2010
R4 TR R
HK$000 HK$'000
Tt T-HE T
Minimum lease payments paid under operating W RRGEL ST A E A2
leases during the year: AR A FIE
Other assets HoAth B 1,496 1,786
Leasehold land and buildings FHE - Hh S pd e 199,006 174,615
200,502 176,401

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group incurred
HK$87,539,000 (2010: HK$68,530,000) contingent rental
which was based on certain percentage of sales.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

WEE - ——4E+ A=+ —HILEE > Ak
(9] 2 B 5 5 T 40 b S AT BOAR AR 42 4 87,539,000
WL (ZF—F4 © 68,530,000570) ©

T IR AS > AR A W] R A AR A
Z R A A AR A THI T

2011 2010

R TR R

HKS$000 HK$'000

Fioe T

Within one year —4E R 161,826 157,596
In the second to fifth year inclusive A (B E R WA 617,075 600,693
Over five years A AR 1,195,437 1,297,233
1,974,338 2,055,522

Operating lease payments represent rental payable by the
Group for certain of its leasehold land and building amounting
of HK$1,974,091,000 (2010: HK$2,043,250,000) and other
assets amounting of HK$247,000 (2010: HK$12,272,000).

S A AR TE G h A4 B S A TE AL R R
J#1,974,091,0004 7T (& —F4E 1 2,043,250,000
e oT) M HA ' 247,000 0 (B — T

12,272,000 #570) FL4E o

3 ] AT PR ]

IR

135



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contlnued) %Aﬁﬁ’%iﬁﬁﬁﬁni(@)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % ~ZF——4F+ _H =+—H1E

40. Opera/z'ny Leases /con/ﬁzueo// 0. B A @

The Group as lessee (continued) *%@1’?*’3 R (4

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the %*ﬂ A 3T G A A [ AL v A 2 S A
Group for leasing commercial properties and other assets which B (RPA R ) MEAST 2 AH G o T JRE AT 2 L 46 JU) TR A
represented machineries and rentals payable are predetermined Iﬁl FE M8 BR T — SRR B L A9 2 e AR
at fixed amounts except for certain lease of which contingent WS IR 4 W AL A o FHLA — 4% LB ) — &2 AR I
rental are charged based on the percentage of sales. Leases are T o A < [ E A — B WA ROE M DL A A
generally negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years BRAb

and rentals are fixed for terms ranging from one to two years
except the following:

(a) Lease of Shanghai Joinbuy Cityplaza by Shanghai (a) ARG AR LAt H AR
Ongoing Department Store Limited, a non-wholly owned A E TR S A B LA RO s L A
subsidiary of the Company, for the period from 1 October M R —H 2 ZF U4
2004 to 30 September 2024, with an option to renew for JUA =11 g — DM 4 - H
a further 10 years upon the request from Shanghai O E B R R JEAE AL R
Ongoing Department Store Limited not less than 12 HIA D 1248 A 42 5K o

months before the expiry of the lease terms.

(b)  Lease of the Amazon, No. 12 Salisbury Road, Tsimshatsui, (b) () |3 &ARA R LA B LR
Kowloon by Sogo Hong Kong Company Limited for the ’J‘(Jrﬂﬂbmt LA 12 98 A AR 2 FH AT > A
period from 30 September 2005 to 29 September 2020, Wh - EEAFNLHA =T HE - RF
with an option to renew for a further 5 years upon the JUHZAJUH » g — D B 14
provision of a written notice by Sogo Hong Kong R55 5 (i) B B A BR 2 ) 28 1 Fil B B B
Company Limited not less than 3 months before the JiE R TS A0 A 3 08 R R T A
expiry of the lease terms.

The Group as lessor A AR 25 AL

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted AR H > AT A TS0 H &

with tenants for the following future minimum lease HARFAFIEM T -

payments:

2011 2010
R4 R
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Tt AR

Within one year — AR 76,952 73,023

In the second to fifth year inclusive B R AT (B R W4T 100,187 111,909

Over five years B AR 1,625 7,917

178,764 192,849

Leases are generally negotiated for terms ranging from one to FHA) — AR A — R IAER R o

five years.

In addition, the Group had contracted with its concessionaires BEAT > A% S ] BRLRCARE S SRR AR 4 SR S

to receive contingent rentals based on the concessionaires’ AT B RIS AE  — B WA 2 B4

turnover for terms ranging from one to two years.
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42.

43.

Gapi/a/anof Ottrer Commitments 41, EAR S HABAAYE
2011 2010
&4 TR R
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#x T#TT
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition A BMEAYWE - FiE Kk
of property, plant and equipment EARPH
— Authorised but not contracted for — CPHEME R T &Y 537,700 1,584,400
— Contracted for but not provided in the — CRTR MR
consolidated financial statements S5 RS TR A 430,700 390,500
968,400 1,974,900
Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition & 5T £+ B 1= 1
of PRC land use right contracted for but not I REAR R AR A5 B TR
provided in the consolidated financial BRI E AR X
statements 2,434,300 —
3,402,700 1,974,900

Contin yen/ Lrabilities

Pursuant to two sales and purchase agreements entered into
among the subsidiaries in 1985 and 1996, certain properties
were transferred within the Group. The assignments of these
properties have not been executed. If no exemption for stamp
duty is granted under the Stamp Duty Ordinance, upon
execution of the assignment of the properties, the Group will
be subject to an aggregate stamp duty of approximately
HK$38.9 million.

T[eofye 0/ Assels

At 31 December 2011, the Group has pledged certain leasehold
land and buildings in Hong Kong with carrying values of
HK$1,502.9 million (2010: HK$1,547.3 million), together with
certain shares of the Company’s subsidiaries, to secure the
banking facilities of HK$5,000 million (2010: HK$4,000
million) granted to the Group of which HK$5,000 million
(2010: HK$4,000 million) has been utilised.

In addition, certain of the Group’s property, plant and
equipment in the PRC and Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss with carrying value of approximately
HK$1,489.3 million (2010: HK$1,500.8 million) and HK$465.9
million (2010: HK$154.4 million) respectively have been
pledged to secure loan facilities in the amount of approximately
RMB350.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$431.9
million) (2010: HK$460.2 million) and US$55.9 million
(equivalent to HK$434.0 million) (2010: HK$155.4 million)
respectively.

42.

43.

R A2 ) I8 2 ) A — LN TLAE e — JUIL S 4E 5T 37
Z WY E R R o T SN AR SR B A A (]
o MERZ AR R B SR HAT o MR AR DR
ENTE B (4 ¥R S ENTE L - FU) A 2 [0 A gt % 45
YZERE » SISZEEAT A 15£938,900,0008 JTCEIIERL ©

J=gEiiil

R E T = H o> AR SR R
£51,502,900,0004% 7 (& —24E : 1,547,300,000
Wot) MR FBZ A THE L R HEE
/NS N /NI R (11 R (S N AR 27
SR 17 B & %5,000,000,0004% TT( . F — FAE
4,000,000,000%5 76 ) Z #& 1 > M "15,000,000,000
o0 (ZF—F4E 1 4,000,000,000 #70) CEIH o

AN A 4E ) BR T {E 4 1,489,300,000 #E 7T ( &
—Z4F 1 1,500,800,0005 70 ) 2 AL 2
k55 B s At M T 465,900,000 #E 7T (2 — &
4F 1 154,400,000 #570) Z A TEFFA R 2 &
il 2 243 B A N B HE 350,000,000 TG (B H0
431,900,000 #70) (- F—F4 460,200,000 #5
Jt) 55,900,000 3 It (FE it 434,000,000 5 IT)
(. F—F4E 155,400,000 % 7T ) 53K il & AR 1 3
;]tEﬁ o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (contlnued) %Aﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁni(@)

for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % ~ZF——4F+ _H =+—H1E

44. %efa/eofyjar/y Disclosure

44, A BN P

(a) Transactions @ &5
During the year, the Group had entered into the N ARG DL A BN L K B
following significant transactions with the following NLET FIIERZS -

related parties and connected parties:

2011 2010

TR ZR R

Nature of transaction HKS$’000 HK$'000
2o %Y Tl THTT

Name of related parties

HHENLAE

Shanghai Joinbuy City Plaza Rental and management fee (note 1) 234,174 212,720

Co. Ltd. (“Property JV”) T4 S A (e 1)
tﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ@&ﬂ
(TMERERED

Connected parties

PN

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Co., Ltd. Income from concessionaire sales (note 2) 25,366 14,170

(“CTF Jewellery”) FERTEURE S B A (3% 2)
JARARRE SATAH RA R (TR E D)
JRRARERE AT (FEM) A PR A Income from concessionaire sales in 4,159 4,000
(“FIKAERRMNERE ) Suzhou store (note 2
I M T T SRR B B A (B R 2)
Income from concessionaire sales in 3,936 3,247
Shanghai store (note 2)
JA b R R G £ A (W3 2)
JER I RAR R E 21T A RAF Income from concessionaire sales in 1,447 315
(AR RRAERE) Dalian store (note 2)
AR T 5 SR B B A (B 2)
Rental income in Tianjin store (note 2) 2,956 101
TR RE A A (B3 2)
B R AR SR B B A R ) Income from concessionaire sales in 119 —
(“ERERKERE) Shanghai store (note 2)
i U T A R S A A (B 2)
Income from concessionaire sales in 1,758 —
Suzhou Store (note 2)
TR T R T SRR B B A (B R 2)
Hong Kong Island Development Rental, vetting fee, air-conditioning charges 61,626 54,212
Limited (“Hong Kong Island”) and management fee paid (note 2)

HRERARAA(EE]) AT ~ AR - 2wl g i (M5 2)

Notes: 5L -

(1) Property JV is a jointly controlled entity in which the Group has a (1) WA BRI AEMIEA 50% i 1 2 355 £
50% interest. T -

(2)  CTE Jewellery, FIRARBRMNBREL » JU5T AR ARBREL » B F) K A (2) JARABEREL + JH KRS B ON BRET ~ b AR Bk
#% and Hong Kong Island are companies in which Dato’ Dr. Cheng B~ B KA Bk B Sy AN E R
Yu-tung and Dr. Cheng Kar-shun, Henry, directors of the A o R R R S - A 2 TR RE F) 2 )
Company, have control over the companies.

(3) At 31 December 2011, concessionaire sales payable included (3) AR T H = H o BRSO S
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amounts of approximately HK$39,644,000, HK$10,860,000,
HK$1,735,000 and HK$2,609,000 (2010: HK$20,147,000,
HK$10,406,000, HK$1,157,000 and nil) aged within 30 days due
to CTF Jewellery, A RAGRRMBREL » L3t I RAGERET and & B K
&k respectively. The amount was trading in nature and related
to payables arising from concessionaire sales. These trading
balances are unsecured, non-interest bearing and repayable
according to the terms of the concessionaire dealership agreement.

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011

B AL 30 RN ST B KA
TRTT e JE R AR 6 M 3R T R b s JA R AR R T M o B
JE R AR 8 %k 2 5CTE 43 Rl £939,644,000 # T
10860000{%75 1,735,000 ¥ 7C % 2,609,000 ifs

T — % 120,147,000 % JC * 10,406,000 #
JL&IIWOOOJ&/L&IJL ) o WZAEIE R H 5
B o B R AR T R A A RKEAR B o LS
SRR A R 4 A AR S S R J P A2 B
R -




44. We[a/eo/Jar/y Disclosure

/ continued, /
(b) Compensation of key management
personnel

The remuneration of executive directors during the year
was determined by the remuneration committee having
regard to the performance of the individuals and market.
Details of which together with the other 4 highest paid
management personnel are disclosed in note 15 above.

45. Retirement f/?ene/z'/s Schemes

46.

Hong Kong

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme under
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance (“ORSO
Scheme”) and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF
Scheme”).

For members of the MPF Scheme, both the Group and the
employee contribute 5% of the employee’s relevant income to
the Scheme according to the MPF ordinance.

The ORSO Scheme is funded by monthly contributions from
both employees and the Group at 5% of the employee’s basic
salary.

PRC

The employees of the Group in PRC are members of state-
managed retirement benefit schemes operated by the respective
local governments in relevant jurisdictions. The Group is
required to contribute and recognise a specified percentage of
payroll costs to the schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligations of the Group with respect to these schemes are to
make the specified contributions and recognise the respective
retirement pay in accordance with terms set out in the schemes
and relevant jurisdiction requirements.

The total cost charged to profit or loss in respect of the above-
mentioned schemes in the relevant jurisdictions amounted to
approximately HK$8,699,000 (2010: HK$7,219,000).

Event af/er the J(?epor/iny Period

In January 2012, LS Finance (2017) Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, issued corporate bonds (“Corporate
Bonds”) in aggregate amount of US$350,000,000
(approximately equivalent to HK$2,719,500,000). The
Corporate Bonds carry fixed coupon rate 5.25%. The maturity
of the Corporate Bonds is 5 years from the date of issue. Details
of which are set out in the announcement of the Company
dated 26 January 2012.

4.

45.

46.

A BN L EE w

(b) FEFEAEHM
SER S AT S 2 A T i HN R B ek
1 7] 28 B R T MR 0 1 > 0 SE 2 T
[) EL B DU 42 F Ui A B B AR B 2 T 4
i A b SRR 15 g -

IRAARAE A F1E

ik

A 4 [ 2 BT 2R AR R B R R E It ?’X*fg
(TR ARG B ) Rt st #] (Rt st# )

fER RS FH 8 8 > A & B T A8 5 A
WW’US%H@Aﬁﬁﬁ%1ﬂO

W ZEBARGTE B T AR SEE A H 1 B TEAM
&2 5% HEHEEK o

H

AR T B ) B TR A B R i e 9 A
[k 3t 777 B A ) [ A AR AR A R A
B o A P ZRUBR NI i R R A B 4 T 0 L

It ) DA ) A7 B AR M) o A SR ]l 2 4 o —
FEWS IR AE 48 1 A oll: il 5 4 R ) O o £

AT B 7] 32 [ ) SR 2 A BB AR T

A7 B bl AR DR AR Y T R AR 45 1Y AR AR
A 2 ) 4858 49 15 8,699,000 TG (L — 4R
7,219,000 7T) ©

s W% A

TR TAE—H s RN A EME S > LS
Finance (2017) Limited » #4719 2 " & %4 ([ A&
A& Z7 1) #E 350,000,000 0 ( & T A
2,719,500,000%%77:) o &ﬁﬂﬁ#ﬁa‘f’%%%‘eﬁﬂ
F525% o N AR IABR AR %52 HEFh 2
54F o HFRFBERAAF ZF—2F—H =+~
H 2 A i o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #%# & 0% 2% Mk (41)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % ~F——4+ " =+—H L%

47. Particulars o / Porin cip al
Subsidiaries

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the details of the Company’s AR R TR RES T = H R
principal subsidiaries, all held indirectly, are as follows: N BT 2 EEME A RIFE G T

47, EZME A REE

Place/Date of
incorporation/
establishment and Issued and fully paid Attributable equity
Name of company operation share capital/registered capital interest of the Group Principal activities
REME L R 2 B
e VTR SAE] CRAT RIS/ A RS RN R A FEER
2011 2010 2011 2010
R ~3-% Bk L
Ample Sun Group Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
i REMARA 17 August 2007 10,000 76 10,000#7C Eiazeid
Eik
SRR
Congenial Company Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 HK$10,000,000 100% 100%  General trading and
24 April 1981 10,000,000 ¥ 76 10,000,000 # 7t property holding
& LUV SR
—AA—EMA A
Eastlord Development Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Property holding and
IFE B REA TR A 21 August 1987 500,000 7% 500,000 #7C Jeasing
ik VESGY TN
—“WAEEARZT—H
Everwin Worldwide Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 HK$2 100% 100%  Property leasing
KEERA R AR 17 November 2000 23k 2T LIRSl
ik
“EETET-ATLH
Fine Shine Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 HK$2 100% 100%  License holder
ERARAT 11 September 2003 28650 28 Fr A
H
“ER=HEARL-H
Forceworld Investments Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Property holding
Limited 15th July 1988 500,000387C 500,000 S
AEREHR AR B
VL ATER
Future Develop Limited British Virgin Islands/ Us$3 Us$3 100% 100%  Investment holding
Hong Kong 3% 3ETL R
12 December 2003
KEETARE/ B
e S
FZATZH
Glory Line Management Hong Kong HK$500,000 HK$500,000 100% 100%  Provision of property
Limited 5 September 1995 500,000 7 500,000 70 security and
REERERAT i management services
—AARFEAALR SRR R R
Grand Kinetic Limited Hong Kong HKS$2 HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding and
BEARAT 7 February 2001 2870 2T leasing
ik VESTI TN
“FZ-%-AtH
Pacific Trump Development Hong Kong HKS$2 HK$2 100% 100%  Property holding and
Limited 6 July 1995 2870 2T leasing
MRERARAH ik VESTI TN
—LEELAAH

140

Lifestyle International Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011




47. Particulars o / Porin cip al

Subsidiaries (continued)

47, FEME A FIFEE @

Place/Date of
incorporation/
establishment and Issued and fully paid Attributable equity
Name of company operation share capital/registered capital interest of the Group Principal activities
REME L R
ks UNEA L SAE] T TR/ R AR RS AN R A B FREH
2011 2010 2011 2010
SR ~5-% SRk 5B
Public Might Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000 HKS$1,000 100% 100%  Property investment
HEARAT 30 August 1984 1,000 76 1,000 and provision of
i building management
—“UAEEALZH services
VESA VTN )
BT
Ronson Kwok Asia Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Building management
Pacific Limited 5 October 1993 1,000,000 7% 1,000,000 #7C and club operator
ik KEERR G EE
—“WAEFEHAEA
Sogo Hong Kong Company Hong Kong HK$4,000,000 HK$4,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
Limited 23 September 1983 4,000,000 % 7& 4,000,000 #7C FHER
96 (Tl HHARARA il
—“WAZERAZ =R
Superlite Limited British Virgin Islands/ Uss$1 Us$1 100% 100%  Property holding
Hong Kong 157 1% WERH
3 April 2001
KRAEMHE/ Bk
“EEHEMAZR
FlBACHEERAT People’s Republic US$12,000,000 US$12,000,000 65% 65%  Retailing business
(Shanghai Ongoing of China 12,000,000 %G 12,000,000 % & R
Department Store Limited) 26 July 2004
i ARFEA
ZEENELAZAAH
Wingold Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 HK$10,000 60% 60%  Investment holding
20 April 2007 10,000 %78 10,0006 ¢ REHR
“ZTLENA-TH
Tl R B AR T People’s Republic US$94,762,988 US$94,762,988 100% 100%  Property holding
of China 94,762,988 76 94,762,988 % ¢ ST
1 December 2006
LN
“EERELZA-H
S B AR AT - People’s Republic US$74,990,000 US$74,990,000 100% 100%  Property holding
of China 74,990,000 % 76 74,990,000 % ¢ VS
12 March 2007
L= INGE S
CEFLEEATIA
AR (BEM) A IRA R People’s Republic RMB600,000,000 |  RMB600,000,000 100% 100%  Property holding and
Lifestyle Plaza (Suzhou) of China AR 600,000,0007C | ABH 600,000,000 7T leasing
Co, Limited 1 March 2007 BN S
LN
“ERLEEA-H
rmmmemanan —2ren 141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) #%# & 0% 2% Mk (41)
for the year ended 31 December 2011 # % ~F——4+ " =+—H L%

47. Particulars o / Porin cip al

Subsidiaries (continued)

47 FEME A AR @

Place/Date of
incorporation/
establishment and Issued and fully paid Attributable equity
Name of company operation share capital/registered capital interest of the Group Principal activities
FE AL B
KA ARk s BB CEIT LTS/ MR A RS T FEEH
2011 2010 2011 2010
“E R “E-TE SRk e S S
JORE & (BRM) A FRA ] People’s Republic US$12,000,000 US$12,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
of China 12,000,000 56 12,000,000 % 7C TEER
17 January 2008
e INGES
ZEFNE-ATEA
R EEMEARA People’s Republic RMB277,500,000 |  RMB277,500,000 10% 100%  Property holding
of China N8 277,500,000 | AR 277,500,000 78 (note 1) VB
20 June 2006
L NP
ZEFANEAAZTA
PR CRHE) IR = People’s Republic US$845,000,000 US$45,000,000 100% 100%  Retailing business
of China 45,000,000 %% 45,000,000 %78 FHER
9 October 1993
L INTS: 2l
RS ARA
PR (KME) AR A # People’s Republic U$540,000,000 US$40,000,000 100% 100%  Property holding & leasing
Li Hua Jie of China 40,000,000 376 40,000,000 7 YR RS
Commercial Building 7 August 1996
(Tianjin) Co., Ltd LR NSl
—“AEARLA
FEHE ER) HIRAR = People’s Republic RMB225,000,000 |  RMB225,000,000 100% 100%  Property holding
of China AR 225,000,000 | AR 225,000,000 70 WERA
31 December 1995
LN
“MAEF+ZA=T—H
W RV AR T A IR ] People’s Republic US$$18,000,000 US$18,000,000 100% 100%  Property holding
of China 18,000,000 %G 18,000,000 5 7t WERA
16 October 1995
LEINEE
—“AREETATAHA
* a sino-foreign equity joint venture established in the PRC. * AR RO 2 A A
ki wholly foreign-owned enterprises established in the PRC. o AP RS 2 A AN A 3
Note 1:  In October 2011, the Group disposed of its 90% equity interest in ¥ P B 1 TR AR A A A T P D
B 2P A IR/ F) to the independent third party. Details are A FRS F 9 90 %% JBEHE BB S 45 = 07 o R R B 3E
disclosed in note 38. 38 ¢

RISl E IR A RS 2 BN U B hig <y
EZ W) oy w) o SEHE S o PR H AL B 2 W
REEEGHE R R -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the Bt 2 F) A R B 455 H MR 8 T -
end of the reporting period.
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48. Statement

0/ 753 Gompany

0/ Financial Position

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period includes:

48. AN T EABS AR L 3=

S WSS A RIS IR LR BB LS

2011 2010
SE A TR
HK$000 HK$'000
Tt Tt
Non-current asset JE i) &
Interests in subsidiaries T B 2 FIAE 25 4,194 4,194
Current assets it o
Other receivables A JRE AR TE 486 1,580
Financial assets at fair value through profit N THERT AR #2224
or loss — 10,925
Tax recoverable JRE AR TE — 1,398
Amounts due from subsidiaries T Wi o BB N ] O 5,970,366 5,559,753
Bank balances and cash BRATHE A7 M B4 4,777 5,172
5,975,629 5,578,828
Current liabilities it ) B fi
Other payables FAt A5 30H 1,742 1,927
Amounts due to subsidiaries HEAST o JB8 4 ) k0 1,795,360 2,004,592
Tax payable JRE 4R T 785 —
1,797,887 2,006,519
Net current assets it ) 4,177,742 3,572,309
4,181,936 3,576,503
Capital and reserves AR R At
Share capital &N 8,338 8,395
Reserves it 4,173,598 3,568,108
4,181,936 3,576,503

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2011 of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$1,500,528,000 (2010:
HK$420,759,000).

Under the Company Law (2009 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is available for
distribution or paying dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its memorandum or articles of association and
provided that immediately following the distribution of
dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due
in the ordinary course of business. The Company’s reserve
available for distribution as at 31 December 2011 consisted of
share premium of approximately HK$530,652,000 (2010:
HK$1,424,231,000) and retained profits of approximately
HK$3,485,191,000 (2010: HK$1,984,505,000).

WE—E 4+ A=+ —HIL4EE > AN
2 % F 4 %5 1,500,528,000 9k I6 (L& — AR ¢
420,759,000 7 JC) ©

HRIEBH & BEE N 71k (2009 187]) » AN H 2 B0y
T A A AR A L 2 ) 4 A R A s A B 2 K
O3 R T I SRS AE 2 1 T e ROUR 5 o b X B S
IURAE » AR WA RE T SO R R 2R AR
R e R F A=
AR ) 2 Al A IR kAR R B 6 B 49 530,652,000
Hot (T F —F4E 0 1,424,231,000 7 70) MR H
W A %93,485,191,000% Jo( — &F — & 4
1,984,505,000 i 7C) ALAY -
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71°Ue~year group gz'nancz’a/(Summary
2FEEARFBR

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 31 December

R AR R
WET__H=+—HIEERE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
R ZE-RE ZEENE ZEENE ZRFLA
HKS$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Tl Tt Tt Fioc Tt

Turnover BER 5,131,950 4,317,465 3,756,208 3,521,633 3,112,368
Profit attributable to owners A E A NS

of the Company It I 1,886,301 1,407,534 1,142,468 927,226 1,024,085
Earnings per share (HK cents) BIREA ()

— Basic YN 1124 83.9 68.5 54.5 60.2

— Diluted — 111.4 83.4 68.1 54.3 59.8
Total dividends per share S A

(HK cents) (sl 44.9 33.7 28.0 24.0 24.0
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position ik A PA IR DL
At 31 December Wr=—H=+—H

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
R ZEREE SETNE CEENE SRR
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T Tk Tk Fiko Tk

Total assets B 4y 18,581,349 13,872,956 12,301,402 10,562,218 10,434,243
Total liabilities B R A (9,374,651) (5,969,902) (5,618,395) (4,707,235) (5,216,563)
Total net assets B A 9,206,698 7,903,054 6,683,007 5,854,983 5,217,680
Non-controlling interests TR R I I AR £ (806,526) (686,170) (561,538) (677,271) (560,962)
Total net assets attributable to g /ak PN A

owners of the Company R AR 8,400,172 7,216,884 6,121,469 5,177,712 4,656,718
Net assets per share (HK$) T A A (s T) 5.52 4.71 3.99 3.50 3.06
Net assets per share attributable to A/ 7 4 AR

owners of the Company (HK$) T ¥ VHE (T 5.04 4.30 3.66 3.09 2.73
Number of shares issued EEIT R A 1,667,513,500 | 1,678,985,000 1,673,620,000 1,673,965,500 1,705,083,000
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Lifestyle International Holdings Limited
20/F., East Point Centre, 555 Hennessy Road
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

45 B P 4 [ A PR )
BBHBETRREESS5%
A L2201

Telephone: (852) 2833 8338
Facsimile: (852) 2831 2932
info@lifestylehk.com.hk
www.lifestylehk.com.hk



	封面
	目錄
	企業簡介
	企業資料
	財務摘要
	二零一一年大事回顧
	董事總經理報告
	管理層討論及分析
	企業管治報告
	董事簡介
	董事會報告書
	獨立核數師報告書
	綜合全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	五年集團財務摘要
	內封面
	封底



